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Financial Highlights
BTS2

Revenue by Activity*
REB DAz W
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Building Construction and Civil Engineering
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Property Development and Rental
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Other Operations
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Source of Funds
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company
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Included a write-back of impairment loss of HK$38 million for a property under development
for sale in Guangzhou, PRC.
EREEAL R B M 2 B R W S e 2 B (B85 18 B 48 5 38,000,000 ©
Included total write-back of impairment loss of HK$127 million for a property under
development for sale in Guangzhou, PRC and attributable interest in a hotel property in

Hong Kong.
BEEA AP EEM 2 SRR P YER AR EE 2B E Y EE GRS ZRE
EREIA A 278%127,000,0007T

Included total write-back of impairment loss of HK$55 million for a leasehold land and
building and attributable interest in a hotel property in Hong Kong.

EIEE IR E S 2 L) T3 RAE T N — I8 ) S e (b i ME&Z/WEEE}E@}%E B
55,000,0007T °

Included a provision of HK$109 million for impairment in value of a property under
development in Guangzhou, as offset by the write-back of provision of HK$60 million for
a leasehold land and building in Hong Kong, HK$32 million for gain on deconsolidation of
liquidated subsidiaries and HK$18 million for write-back of special retirement benefit costs.
BIEHEI AN 2 B R P YR 2 R ER#FE%109,000,0007T @ WHIBE L AEEZ
AL RIS F AR 188 #60,000,0007T © ARGAFTEERTIMBARMEL 2S5
78#32,000,0007T Je o R (R 1) # 3 [21 48 18,000,0007T

Assets Employed

& E .

56.4% m

Fixed Assets!
BT & E
Intangible Assets and
Deferred Income Tax Assets
ERAEREEREHEE
Associated Companies and
Jointly Controlled Entities
B o I HEE I E 82
[ Other Investments?

Hipig &2
M Net Current Assets
BN E EFEE

33.5% u

0.2%
7.6%

2.3%

Including property, plant and equipment, investment properties and prepaid premium for
land lease.

BIEME  MEBERRE  REVERENTHEEEA -

Including non-current held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.

BRI AR R EZ MBEE -



Financial Ratios
B RS K

% Change
2008 2007 BEL K
Income Statement Ratios BRREER
Operating margin (excluding financial B FE
and securities income) (RBEFBRBHRAN) 4.0% 3.1% 29.0
Pretax margin BB BT RS FI 4.8% 3.7% 29.7
Net margin (excluding jointly controlled entities SFBRIRFE
and associated companies) (T EIELRE ST RS 4.2% 3.5% 20.0
Interest coverage ratio FleEsx
- basic —&AXK 177.6 16.9 9.5x
— exclude non-cash assets impairment write back — R RIEB M 7 BERE R B 176.3 11.2 14.7x
Basic earnings per share (cents) GREAREF L) 19.1 16.5 15.8
Diluted earnings per share (cents) SREEERF (L) 18.7 16.5 13.3
Dividend per share (cents) SREEE () 9.5 14.0* -32.1
Dividend payout ratio B R 49.7% 84.8% -41.4
Balance Sheet Ratios BESERLE
Current ratio MENL & 1.4 1.3 7.7
Quick ratio B R 1.2 0.9 333
Assets coverage ratio BEBEHE 1.8 1.6 12.5
Debt to capitalisation ratio BEHERL R 0.0% 4.0% -100.0
Net assets value per share (cents) SREESED 97.6 91.8 6.3
Cash Flow Statement Ratios RemBRIER
Capital expenditures to depreciation ratio BRATHTEL X 0.9 0.1 8.0x
Capital expenditures coverage ratio BARXBELE 19.3 183.0 -89.5
Depreciation to cash flow ratio WEHBESREN X 6.1% 4.2% 45.2
Cash flow from operation per share (cents) BREEES TS 16.7 273 -38.8
Rate of Return Ratios B 37L&
Return on average equity TR R R 20.0% 18.5% 8.1
Return on total capital and borrowings EAR B e s E R 20.7% 20.6% 0.5
Total Debt to Cash Flow Ratio HEBHRSREBLE
Total debt to cash flow ratio MEBHESREL R 0.0 0.1 -100.0
Market Price Ratios TELE
Dividend yield g & o=
Year high 2FRS 9.4% 25.9% NM
Year low 2FHRE 2.6% 12.5% NM
Price to earning ratio ilE
Year high 2FRS 18.9 6.8 NM
Year low 2 ERE 5.3 33 NM
Note: P -

Formula of certain financial ratios as set out above are presented on page 163 for easy

reference.

NM: Not meaningful

* Included special dividend of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share

EEFHBL R A ERARE163ETIHIAFELE -

N[V 3

* BERHIRESREBEEE.0
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

Introduction

It gives me great pleasure as Chairman to introduce this annual report and
the financial statements of the Company. The financial year 2007/08 was
a truly momentous one for the Company. In November 2007, the Mission
Hills Group acquired the controlling shareholding interest of the Company
from the YEH family. Upon completion of a general offer in compliance
with the requisite laws and regulations, the Board was reconstituted. Dr.
Geoffrey YEH Meou-tsen of the founding family of Hsin Chong agreed to
assume the Non-executive Honorary Chairmanship of the Company.

I am proud to say that the Group's results showed continuing
improvement in the year. Riding on the positive market sentiments and
the economic boom in the Macau SAR, our core engineering construction
business recorded a significant growth in the year. The Company has an
excellent reputation and is recognised in the industry for delivering quality
projects. We will continue to leverage on these strengths to grow our
engineering construction business in Hong Kong, Macau and the Chinese
Mainland.

The Group has set up a property development division recently targeting
the emerging middle-class residential market on the Chinese Mainland. |
am confident that in time, contributions from property development will
be another major income stream of the Company.

Results

The Group's results showed continuing profit improvement in terms of
absolute reported earnings and the quality of the current earnings, which,
unlike previous years, did not include any significant exceptional or non-
recurrent items. Net attributable profit for the year was HK$123.9 million
which was a 17.6% increase over the reported profit of the previous
year of HK$105.4 million. It is pleasing to note that most of the recurrent
pre-tax profits earned was from the core engineering construction
business of building construction; provision of construction / project
management consultancy services; civil engineering construction; electrical
and mechanical engineering installation; and renovation and fitting-out
operation. Such profits, together with the Group’s share of related joint
venture projects, associated company'’s results and finance costs, reached
HK$115.9 million and were significantly better than the comparable
figure of HK$40.2 million reported last year. This is the third consecutive
year of profit improvement in the Group’s underlying core engineering
construction business.

4  Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008
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ReSUhS (continued)

The Group's balance sheet also shows continued improvement. The net
shareholders’ funds at year end were HK$654.5 million (2007: HK$586.5
million) and the net cash position — being the sum of current deposits, cash
and bank balances and without any bank indebtedness — amounted to
HK$635.7 million. This provides an excellent financial platform from which
to grow the Group's business.

As announced on 26 June 2008, the Company entered into a share
purchase agreement with Hsin Chong Holdings (H.K.) Limited on 19 June
2008 to acquire 220,448,000 shares (approximately 66.4% of the existing
issued share capital) in Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
at a consideration of HK$348.3 million, equivalent to HK$1.58 per share.
The said acquisition, which is subject to shareholders’ approval at a special
general meeting to be convened as soon as practicable, will provide the
Company with the flexibility to build a business model which integrates
property construction, property development and property management
service capability, with each complementing the others. It will also facilitate
the further development of the Chinese brand name “#7&" jointly by
the Company and Synergis, on a group basis. Both factors are expected
to enhance the Group’s competitiveness. We would then be able to offer
multi-service capabilities to our clients. The said acquisition will be entirely
in cash, utilising the Group’s internal resources and available banking
facilities.

Final Dividend

With due consideration given to the cash requirement for the potential
acquisition of a controlling stake in Synergis and meeting the related
commitments, the Board recommends the payment of a final cash
dividend of HK4.0 cents per share (2007: HK4.0 cents per share) for
the year ended 31 March 2008. Subject to shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming 2008 annual general meeting of the Company, the
proposed final dividend will be paid on Wednesday, 3 September 2008
to shareholders whose names appear on the registers of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 27 August 2008. Together with the interim cash
dividend of HK5.5 cents per share (2007: HK4.0 cents per share) already
paid, total dividends for the year will amount to HK9.5 cents per share
(2007: HK14.0 cents per share, which included a special dividend of HK6.0
cents per share), representing a payout ratio of 49.7% on the earnings for
the financial year.

REMZEEABRTRBEENZ - NEEBZBREES
5 EE A 654,500,0007T ( ZEE+4F ¢ ##586,500,000
) MEFRE (BESRER - e RIBTET ML EEBITE
%) 2 &5 A7E%635,700,0007T ° BLIFF ARERZ ¥5518
Ri2E—E+HBEMETES -

WU —ZEENFANAZTNERAAH - RARIRZZTZTNF
NATNBEFEEE(ER)ERARFBRGE - N
KRB #E348,300,0007T (B IR EE B M 1.58 7T ) B A &
BMARSGMBRARERLETZFEEEEERBR AR
(TFEEE ) 21 220,448,000% ({5 IREF B TR AL
66.4%) - ZBUWBESRERERREAZBREFIAE
EHERF AEE - MZBRREEREAIGATAARES
M B —ESEEMERE  MESRRYESEREIL A
BEME 2 EBER o LRI AEAQRETEERER—
SETEFANE—TEREFNRE —FE] - LillwE
ARBHARALNEBZHFE N - ERAEEBAERE
FlRRMZERME 2N - ZERBHEE2HEUBRS TN X
EEB 2z AHERR A BRRITEER -

REARR B
ERDERREEREFSEEZERESRENBEZA
EOTFEMTHESE EFeEENBE_TT/NF=A
=+ —HLEFERFERPRSBRESRBELN(ZEZ £
F - GRABMEAN) - FRERARRIBRITZZZZN
FREAFAE LIER - BIRRPREZR=ZZZNFEAN
AZBH(EHZ)RETFTR-_ZTZN\FENA=-TLH(EHD)
ZHRARBIRREMAZRE - BRDIKMN 2 FHHRE
REFIBESSIN(ZTTLF - FRBEE40) - AFF
ZREBEAEAEGIRBEEISN(ZTTLF : FREE14.0
il &R EEERRETREE6) IAMRFEE A
AR B EHBA.T7% ©
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Chairman’s Statement /7 &

Outlook

The prospects for the core engineering construction business in its
traditional markets in Hong Kong, Macau and the Chinese Mainland are
encouraging given the increase in demand for infrastructure, residential
and commercial projects.

The Group is also reviewing opportunities for expansion into the property
sector in the Chinese Mainland. The Central People’s Government is
continuing to introduce austerity measures to cool down the overheated
economy and combat inflation. We consider these measures to be
necessary and appropriate. Indications are that such measures are helping
to steer the property market towards a healthier and sustainable growth.

The present adjustments in the property market in the Chinese Mainland
have not dampened our confidence. Together with the strong economic
growth, and with the GDP expecting to grow by 8% in 2008, the current
situation gives companies with solid financial health better opportunities to
screen sites and projects.

The acquisition of Synergis will allow the Company to leverage the
Chinese brand name; will enable cost rationalisation; will enable intra-
group business to be expanded; and will enable the Hsin Chong Group to
offer multi-service options to our customers. All of these are expected to
profitably add to the Group’s results.

And, lastly, the Group will continue to look out for related business
expansion opportunities and we expect to be able to report continued
business growth in the future reporting periods.

Appreciation

In closing, | wish to express my gratitude and appreciation to all of the
Company'’s stakeholders, to our shareholders, our suppliers, our business
partners, our staff and our customers — for their continuing support and
confidence. This last year has been one of significant change for the Hsin
Chong Group, and also one of significant improvement in profits and share
price / market capitalisation. We, the management, will work tirelessly to
continue such improvements.

David CHU Shu-ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 July 2008
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Managing Director’s Review
B AKIRmE

Review of Business

E A

Operating Results BEXE
Financial Highlights HHEE Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—HLEE Change
2008 2007 BE)
HKS$ million HK$ million %
BYEET BEEET Ao
Revenue Wrzs 2,495 3,007 =17
Profit attributable to equity RATERFEA
holders of the Company FE(ESHF 124 105 +18
HK cents HK cents
=42 1T PEEEAL
Basic earnings per share HFRERZEF 19.1 16.5 +16
Diluted earnings per share FRREERT 18.7 16.5 +13
Interim dividend per share % HAIRR B 5.5 4.0 +38
Final dividend per share FRCREARR B 4.0 4.0 -
Special dividend per share TR RIRR B, - 6.0 -100

The Group reported revenue of HK$2,494.7 million in the year, a 17.0%
decrease compared with last year. The decrease was attributable to firstly,
lower volume of both electrical and mechanical installation activities and
construction work in Hong Kong and the PRC as more projects were
in their final stage of completion in the year and secondly, less sales
were generated from the property development and rental segment.
Nonetheless, the construction management business in Macau continued
to make significant progress and recorded revenue of HK$1,059.3 million,
an increase of 31.8% compared with last year. Gross profit soared
27.3% to HK$218.5 million, compared with last year, owing to higher
profits derived from more volume of construction management business
in Macau and better margins achieved in newly awarded electrical and
mechanical installation projects secured last year. Other income increased
by 5.5% to HK$48.3 million in the year, due to higher revaluation gain
in the investment property portion of Hsin Chong Center. Overheads and
other operating expenses increased slightly by 3.9% to HK$142.4 million
while finance costs decreased by 73.3% to HK$1.7 million as a result of
full repayment of bank borrowings during the year. Meanwhile, results of
jointly controlled entities turnaround from a loss of HK$3.9 million last year
to a gain of HK$13.3 million in the year as a result of improvements in the
civil projects. Overall, the Group reported earnings of HK$121.0 million for
the year (2007: HK$114.0 million). After taking into account of the impact
of minority interests, HK$123.9 million was attributable to equity holders
of the Company (2007: HK$105.4 million).

NEEAFE RGNS A% 2,494,700,0007T * BEFE R
17.0% ° WamR P BEXERAFERNEBRTBEERZKE
CEREBREETIERENGERIRBEMSIRERD © &
HAHRERBREEDEMELEZHERRIMN - &
B RPIZBRETEERBENSBREER - WHEUH
#75%61,059,300,0007T + EAFEIENN31.8% © BEFEEF
FEMF27.3%Z48%218,500,0007C + L JhRPI 2 2GS
BEBIRSBMMSEFEM  UREFEEH 2 TER
WELZETREE ZFHERRAB - AFE 2 HMP AL
hn5.5% &% #48,300,0007T  REAFEF LIHWERE Y
oz Efbe=gm - MR EAMEEERMA3I%E
75 1£142,400,0007T + M &AL A RIEF N B EE 2 IRIT
B T F£73.3%Z#581,700,0007T © L1t EE - HEEE )
BERETZIATIREEEFSIRE EXERAMEERA -
=T E RS EIEA 3,000,000 AR F RS RSB
13,300,0007T - BEEME - AEEAFE2 M BN AELE
121,000,000 T( ZEZ+4F : ¥ 114,000,0007T) ° &£5FA
VBB RERS 2 FER - ANBIERHE ABRER A
123,900,0007T( =TT+ 4F : % 105,400,0007T) °
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Managing Director’s Review & = 24X i}

of

Segment Analysis
(1) Building construction and civil engineering

8

Revenue for the building construction and civil engineering segment
was HK$1,973.4 million, a slight decrease of 5.9% compared
with last year. The decrease was attributable to lower volume of
construction work in Hong Kong and the PRC due to completion
of projects in the year. In Macau, the construction management
business continued to make significant progress and recorded
revenue of HK$1,059.3 million, an increase of 31.8% compared
with last year. Profit after finance costs was HK$80.6 million, an
increase of 51.9% compared with last year. This was mainly due
to higher profits derived from the increases in the construction
management business in Macau. Building construction and civil
engineering activities undertaken through jointly controlled entities
reported a gain of HK$13.3 million (2007: loss of HK$3.9 million) for
the year, mainly due to cost savings and additional income from the
civil projects. Overall, the building construction and civil engineering
segment performed satisfactorily during the year.

During the last few years, the Group has successfully positioned
itself in the Macau market. Following the Venetian Sands Casino,
the successful completion of Parcel 1 of the Venetian Cotai project
in just two and a half years and to such a high standard of finish
is a significant achievement and something which the Hsin Chong
team can justifiably be proud of. This project was on a massive scale,
employing 22 tower cranes and an on-site workforce which peaked
at 11,300. Building structure incorporated 650,000 m3 of concrete
and 90,000 tonnes of reinforcement. To date, the Parcel 2 and Parcels
5/6 of the Venetian Cotai project are progressing on track and are
expected to be completed in 2008-2009.

Looking forward, we shall seek to continue the alliance relationship
with the Las Vegas Venetian group and develop other opportunities
to complement our existing business in Macau.

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008

Left : Green Crest

Right: The Venetian
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Seg meﬂt Aﬂa|ySIS (continued)

(1

(2)

Building construction and civil engineering (continued)

In Hong Kong, the Group was awarded several major contracts
in the year, including the Design and Construction of Prince of
Wales Hospital — Extension Block from the Architectural Services
Department (in joint venture with another renowned construction
group in Hong Kong); the Atrium Hotel at Pacific Place from the Swire
Group; ELS (Excavation and Lateral Support Works) and Demolition
Works, Proposed Redevelopment of Hennessy Centre at 500
Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay; the Extension to Canossa Hospital
(Caritas) at No. 1 Old Peak Road; and the Reconstruction of Main
Sewers from Grandstand 2 to Mafoo Quarter at Sha Tin Racecourse
from The Hong Kong Jockey Club. These awards ensure the Group’s
presence in the Hong Kong traditional contracting market.

In China, the Group successfully completed two construction projects
in the year, including the Beijing CBD project — Central Park Phase 2
Group Il and Phase 3. Leveraging on the strong economy in China and
Mission Hills Group’s established network and experience in China,
the Group expects that there will be increased business opportunities
in future years. To date, the Group has restructured and streamlined
its China operation management so as to ensure that the resources
of the Group are being utilised efficiently and effectively to explore
profitable business opportunities in China.

Electrical and mechanical installation

Revenue for the electrical and mechanical installation segment was
HK$467.0 million, a decrease of 26.5% compared with last year.
Lower volume of work was attributable to the fact that more projects
were completed in the year, while new contracts secured last year
had just commenced work. Profit after finance costs was HK$22.0
million (2007: loss of HK$8.9 million). The significant improvement in
results was attributable to better margins achieved in newly awarded
projects secured last year, together with the absence of share of
loss of joint venture project and write-off of goodwill and intangible
assets as last year.

: Beijing Central Park
Phase 3
Pok Oi Hospital

LR BIR AR
5535
: BEERR

DD e

(10

(2

EFREERTIKRKIZ®

RES  AEBFRNEEBLEERAL  BIEREER
TR T B ERNER AT REETE (L h 8
REBERREEERTAYOERN) AHEE
B2 A ESAuMBEEEE « AR REEERHE
500552 EF O 2 BB AAMAE TR EFETIRY
BEREE  CREILEE 1S SR MBR R
B AREBESeET2OAEE _SNIEREAES
KESEHKERERIER - BE LR ANBEDRER
EBNEBEFAETIBNZ A -

RAE - AEERFERIENZZSRRIEEERR - 85
RIEREBP LR ZIPERARE —ME_HELE
—HIERE - BBREETRBRYEEERMTERZEBE
FBFERFEENT BB R 2 R AER - AEETR
HARRFERERESHE - 2581 FEEEEER
LEHERTEz2EEE  BRAKEZERESRT
MR A M E AR FRIR A B R IRER A 2 i -

BREIR
WEZRTIREHE 2 W AB®A467,000,0007T @ K&
FERD265% c ITRERIZREABFNERZIEE
BT MAFFEZEHNRRBRET - HBREER A
1% 2% ¥ &7%5%22,000,0007L (Z2Z+F : [HEEK
8,900,0007T) ° ¥BEHENES IHNEFHEREE 2
MEREE  BUYRNEFE—REREIEZAED
¥BEEHEBULMEREREREAEZER
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Managing Director’s Review & =42/ IR {5

Segment Aﬂa|ySIS (continued)
(2) Electrical and mechanical installation (continued)

During the year, the Group successfully completed three projects
at the Hong Kong Science Park Development in Taipo and the
subcontract work for Pok Oi Hospital Redevelopment and Expansion.
The ongoing projects are all progressing well.

Leveraging on the prior successful experience in the electrical and
mechanical work for hospital projects, during the year, Hsin Chong
Aster Building Services Limited (“Hsin Chong Aster”), the wholly
owned electrical and mechanical installation subsidiary of the Group,
secured the award of Prince of Wales Hospital — Extension Block
project with a subcontract value of HK$548.0 million. It is the largest
hospital project ever undertaken by the electrical and mechanical
arm. Only a few well-organised and experienced electrical and
mechanical installation contractors in Hong Kong are qualified to
provide the full electrical and mechanical installation package for
hospitals and Hsin Chong Aster is proud to be one of these unique
contractors.

It is particularly meaningful in the year 2008 which marks the
twentieth anniversary of the establishment of Hsin Chong Aster.
In 1988, Hsin Chong Aster was formed as a 50/50 joint venture
between Aster Associate Termoimpianti S.p.A., a company
incorporated in Italy with limited liability, and Hsin Chong
Construction (Asia) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
to undertake mechanical, electrical and building services projects. In
2005, the Group acquired the full interest in Hsin Chong Aster. Such
strategic business move has formed the basis for the Group’s ongoing
success in the electrical and mechanical engineering industry in the
coming years.
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Segment Analysis (continued)

(2)

(3

Electrical and mechanical installation (continued)

With a solid track record in electrical and mechanical installation
work undertaken over the years, Hsin Chong Aster has proven its
competitiveness in the local market and is expected to maintain its
leadership in the industry in the coming years. Subsequent to year
end, the Group has been awarded new contracts of HK$156.8
million, including Electrical and Mechanical Ventilation Installation
work for HAECO (Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited)
Aircraft Maintenance Hangar No. 3A and Fire Services and Plumbing
and Drainage Installations Subcontracts for Proposed Shopping
Centre at Discovery Bay North Development Lot No. R.P. of Lot 385 in
DD 352 and Extension Discovery Bay, Lantau Island.

Hsin Chong Aster will continue to bring positive contribution to the
Group.

Property development and rental

Revenue for the property development and rental segment was
HK$54.3 million, a decrease of 80.3% compared with last year. The
decrease was mainly due to the lower volume of sale of the residential
units of Wen Chang Pavilion in Guangzhou, PRC (90% of the
residential units had been recognised last year). As at balance sheet
date, 97% of the residential units had been sold at an average selling
price slightly above RMB7,500 per square metre.

Rental income derived from Hsin Chong Center, No. 3 Lockhart Road,
and Lung Mun Oasis, Tuen Mun, collectively accounted for 48.6% of
the revenue in the property development and rental segment for the
year. It showed an increase of 17.2% to HK$26.4 million, compared
with last year, due to increased occupancy and rental rates reported
from No. 3 Lockhart Road. As at balance sheet date, No. 3 Lockhart
Road was fully let (100% occupancy).

Profit after finance costs was HK$22.1 million, including a revaluation
gain of HK$10.8 million on the portion of Hsin Chong Center
which was classified as an investment property, HK$6.9 million
net impairment provision for Wen Chang Pavilion in Guangzhou,
PRC, and a write-back of HK$1.7 million on the impairment
provision for unsold stock of carpark property at Lung Mun Qasis,
Tuen Mun (2007: HK$62.3 million, including a revaluation gain of
HK$6.3 million on the portion of Hsin Chong Center classified as
an investment property, a write-back of HK$38.4 million on the
impairment provision for Wen Chang Pavilion in Guangzhou, PRC,
and a profit of HK$4.8 million on the disposal of property interests in
Vietnam).
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Segment Analysis (continued)

(4) Other operations
Other operations mainly reflected sharing of residual profit from
inactive associated companies (2007: HK$13.6 million, being
principally an HK$10.9 million profit on the disposal of Novotel
Century Harbourview Hotel and HK$3.0 million profit on the disposal
of minor property interests in Malaysia upon their winding-up).

Prospects

The Economy

The Hong Kong economy recorded a 6.4% growth in GDP (Gross
Domestic Product) with an unemployment rate reduced to a ten-year low
of 3.4% at the end of calendar year 2007. Given the hints of slowdown of
the US economy towards recession and the global credit crunch triggered
by the financial turmoil of problematic US sub-prime mortgage-backed
securities and CDOs (collateralised debt obligations), there had been
modest set-back in the local stock market and caused much challenge to
the external trading activities. The pegged HK Dollar to the weakened US
counterpart, nonetheless, sustains further merchandise exports growth,
backed by vivid economic growth in the Chinese Mainland and the
continuous expansion of the EU market. The inflationary consumer price
index induced by surging food prices, energy prices, salaries and wages
and rental expenses evolved to exert pressure on the general public,
commercial and industrial sectors. The problem was worsened by the ever
appreciating Renminbi.

The Industry

The building and construction activities in Hong Kong have shown small
growth of 1.0% in calendar year 2007, although there have been signs
that more expenditure was recorded in the construction industry in the first
quarter of 2008 due to modest increase in private sector and rebound in
public sector activities.

In February 2008, the Financial Secretary outlined in his 2008-09 Budget
that, on fostering Hong Kong's long-term economic developments,
the Government is going to kick-off a range of initiatives, echoing the
Chief Executive's policy address made in October 2007 captioned “10
Maijor Infrastructure Projects for Economic Growth”, and also featuring
the future plan of more “Efficient Use of Land Resources” by increasing
land supply in response to the increasing demand for residential and
commercial properties.

We believe that the Government policies in rejuvenating the Hong Kong
construction industry would be helpful, but the timing of seeing the real
effects would not be instant. The related construction activities will unlikely
commence in the year 2008. The construction industry in Hong Kong is not
expected to grow significantly in the next year.
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PrOSpeC’[S (continued)

The Group

In December 2007, Carrick Worldwide Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL"), completed the acquisition
of approximately 59.04% of the then issued share capital of the Company.
Mission Hills Group is principally engaged in integrated resort operations,
including the Mission Hills Golf Club, hotels and spa facilities, as well as
property development. MHGCL is wholly owned by Dr. David CHU Shu-
ho, the Group Chairman of the Mission Hills Group. Dr. David CHU Shu-
ho was then appointed the Chairman of the Board, while Mr. WONG Ying-
wai was appointed the Deputy Chairman of the Board and Dr. Kenneth
CHU Ting-kin was appointed a non-executive director of the Company.

As a leader in the Hong Kong construction sector with 68 years of solid
track record, Hsin Chong Construction Group has made significant
contributions to the industry. Mission Hills Group is committed to
continuing developing the core business of the Hsin Chong Construction
Group, while seeking collaboration between the two companies
and exploring new business development opportunities. The future
development of the Group will be two-fold. Firstly, the Group will
leverage its experience and expertise in construction management, the
opportunities provided by the economic growth and the Government’s
plan to boost large-scale infrastructure developments, to continue
expanding its construction business. At the same time, with rapid
urbanisation and growing GDP in China, the demand for quality residential
developments will continue to increase. This provides an excellent
opportunity for the Group to capitalise on its own competitive edge,
coupled with the Mission Hills Group’s long-standing and extensive
network as well as ample sales and marketing experience in the PRC, to
seek its expansion into the residential property sector in the PRC.

With respect to the Macau market, the Group has now established a very
strong presence and brand awareness. This has brought in new contract
awards in the luxury residential market, in addition to the significant
construction management contracts on hand with the Venetian group in
their Cotai Strip property developments. These contracts will continue to
generate substantial workload for the Group in future years.

The Group, whilst remaining focused on the recovering construction
industry in Hong Kong, will continue to look for business opportunities
in the Chinese Mainland and Macau. In this process, we will continuously
control the underlying overheads and direct costs attributable to its
business operations whilst maintaining its competitive edge in quality
work, on-time delivery and technical capabilities.

CHAN Ka-kui
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 4 July 2008
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

‘S IR @it ko AT

Financial Position

The Group maintains its policy of conservative capital management
and was debt free at balance sheet date (31 March 2007: debt to
capitalisation at 4%). Total bank borrowing of HK$25.0 million was repaid
during the year. As of 31 March 2008, net working capital amounted
to HK$372.0 million (31 March 2007: HK$325.2 million) with the quick
ratio strengthened to 1.2 at balance sheet date (31 March 2007: 0.9).
Cash balances and current portion of held-to-maturity investments were
5.7% lower at HK$648.9 million compared with the last financial year end
(HK$687.9 million) with 90% (31 March 2007: 87%) as cash and cash
equivalents.

As announced on 26 June 2008, the Company entered into a share
purchase agreement with Hsin Chong Holdings (H.K.) Limited on 19
June 2008 pursuant to which the Company has agreed to acquire a
66.4% controlling stake in Synergis Holdings Limited (”Synergis”) which
is subject to shareholders’ approval at a special general meeting to be
convened. After the said acquisition is approved by shareholders, the
consideration payable for the acquisition and the resultant possible
mandatory unconditional cash offers (“Offers”) on all the remaining
shares and all the outstanding share options of Synergis will lead to a cash
outlay of approximately HK$536.7 million at maximum. The Company
intends to finance the said acquisition and the Offers from (a) its own
financial resources, (b) available banking facilities, and (c) the consideration
receivable from the placing agent appointed for the Offers. Further details
of the said acquisition, the Offers and the funding arrangements in relation
thereto are set out in the announcement dated 26 June 2008 of the
Company.

Up to 30 June 2008, total credit facilities available to the Group for
utilisation (including any amount to be used for financing the aforesaid
acquisition and the Offers in respect of Synergis) amounted to HK$340.0
million. Accordingly, the Group’s financing requirements for the new
financial year will be met by available cash and cash generated by
operations and bank facilities.

Financial Focus

Return on Equity

The Group pays close attention to return on equity for both current
businesses and new investment opportunities. The Group appreciates just
being more profitable than other companies in the same industry may not
be good enough for some investors. As a manager of public shareholders’
capital, the Group aims to generate risk-adjusted returns on capital that are
systematically acceptable to investors taking into account that construction
is a cyclical industry. Current year’s profitability has achieved a return on
equity of 20.0% (2007: 18.5%).
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Financial Focus (continued)

Capital Structure

The Group has historically adhered to a policy of conservative capital
management. A strong balance sheet affords more opportunities upon an
industry upturn, and instils greater confidence amongst its clients, bankers,
sub-contractors, suppliers and employees. Furthermore, since progress
payments in the construction business inherently create high operating
leverage, an overlay of high financial leverage over any extended period
would not be prudent.

Financial Hedging and Other Financial Instruments

The Group's cash and bank balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Macau Pataca, US dollars and Renminbi. By means of proper
synchronisation of receipts and payments in different operating currencies,
the Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. In
addition, the Group adopts hedging policies for mitigating exchange rate
risks and interest rate risks associated with respective assets or liabilities,
and rights or obligations. Such policies ensure effective cost controls
on construction costs as early as the tendering stage and controllable
borrowing costs for operation and investment needs.

Interest rate risk and exchange rate risk are risks to earnings or capital,
arising from movement of respective rates. The former mainly arises from
bank borrowings by the Group and the latter comprises exposure due to
currency needs from normal business operation for material procurement
and services requirements. The Group has established policies and
procedures to the assessment, booking and monitoring of all such
financial instruments under limits approved by the board of directors of
the Company. The controls and procedures governing such activities were
considered overall to be adequate.

Gains or losses arising from relevant hedging transactions will be booked
as a profit or loss associated with the underlying assets or liabilities.

At year end, the Group had outstanding forward exchange contracts
to hedge HK$33.0 million (see Note) mainly against Euro and GBP.
Subsequent to year end, a total of HK$15.1 million contracts was entered
into.

(Note: Included equity share in a jointly controlled entity)
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 /E:m il X 54T

Operational Review on Contracts

Subsidiaries

In the year under review, the Group’s building construction arm received
new contracts of HK$728.1 million. In Hong Kong, building construction
contracts awarded amounted to HK$599.8 million, including (a) the
construction works for Atrium Hotel at Pacific Place, 88 Queensway;
(b) Extension to Canossa Hospital (Caritas) at No. 1 Old Peak Road; and
(c) Hotel Conversion at No. 21-23A Prat Avenue, Tsim Sha Tsui. In Macau,
the Group received new contracts of HK$128.3 million. The principal
award was the construction management contract for Sai Kei Hou Yuen
Development at Estrade Nova do Miradouro No. 1 Taipa. Also, the
Group entered into an alliance agreement with the Venetian Group for
the provision of construction management supports to the Marina Bay
Sands Project in Singapore. Taking into account of the additional works
to the existing Venetian Cotai Projects and adjustments for completed
building works in Hong Kong and China, total contract sums received
were HK$1,340.1 million. Besides, two civil engineering contracts totalling
HK$203.5 million were secured in the year including ELS (Excavation and
Lateral Support Works) and Demolition Works, Proposed Redevelopment
of Hennessy Centre at 500 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay and the
Reconstruction of Main Sewers from Grandstand 2 to Mafoo Quarter at
Sha Tin Racecourse from The Hong Kong Jockey Club.

On the other hand, the electrical and mechanical installation arm received
new contracts of HK$557.7 million, mainly represented by an electrical and
mechanical installation contract of HK$548.0 million for the Design and
Construction of Prince of Wales Hospital — Extension Block.

Contracts totalling HK$3,705.1 million were completed with HK$2,776.3
million derived from the building construction arm, mainly for (a) the
construction of Main Building Works for Pok Oi Hospital Redevelopment
and Expansion, (b) the construction of HSBC Data Centre at Tseung Kwan
O Industrial Estate, (c) the construction of Hong Kong Science Park Phase
2 Main Works (Area A), (d) the construction management of Sand’s
Podium and Tower in Macau, and (e) two commercial and residential
developments at Phase 2 Group Il and Phase 3 of Central Park in Beijing.
In addition, a civil engineering contract of HK$29.0 million from The Hong
Kong Jockey Club for the extension of the existing underpass at Sha Tin
Racecourse was also completed in the year.

Electrical and mechanical installation contracts totalling HK$899.8 million
were completed, mainly for the subcontract works of Pok Oi Hospital
Redevelopment and Expansion and Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 Main
Works (Area A, B and C).

As a result of successful completion of the above contracts, consolidated

orders on hand at year end decreased 21.9% over the previous year to
HK$5,726.7 million.
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Operational Review on Contracts (ontinued) TREFEBEMRR @

Subsidiaries (continued) B AR e

The breakdown of incomplete contracts of the Group’s construction — ARNEBREEEKZHBATARTKAYDONMT :
subsidiaries is as follows:

31 March Contracts Contracts 31 March

2007 received  completed 2008
—ETLF BE T ZEBNE
=A=+—H CROE A#F =ZA=+-—H

HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million
EEEHETL AE¥EERT A¥EERT HBEEER

Building Construction/Construction Management #@5rgis i

Hong Kong and Macau BB MR 4,775.4 1,457.5 (1,901.4) 4,331.5
Mainland China ey 992.3 (117.4) (874.9) -
Civil Engineering TARIRE
Hong Kong e 30.5 202.0 (29.0) 203.5
Electrical and Mechanical Installation MELETIR
Hong Kong & 1,533.8 557.7 (899.8) 1,191.7
7,332.0 2,099.8 (3,705.1) 5,726.7
The split of incomplete contracts at balance sheet date is as follows: RER B Z RTEREBESTOT
Amount
x|
HK$ Million %
BERET Btk
Government BT 3.1 0.1
Private Developers MAEER 5,723.6 99.9
5,726.7 100.0
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Operational Review on Contracts (continued)

Building Construction and Civil Engineering

Total revenue and outstanding orders for the year were HK$1,973.4
million and HK$4,535.0 million, decreases of 5.9% and 21.8%
respectively over last year. Profit margins improved to 4.1% in the year
from 2.5% of last year.

TREFEBAMRR @

BFRERTIAIR

REE 2 BWas AR TG H4RE A7 11,973,400,0007T K&
75 #4,535,000,0007C © D RIREFERA5.9% K%21.8% °
FERAAEFEZ25%REENFEL1% °

Major contracts received during the year include: FAEBZXEEHBE
Contract Location Type Amount
=5 o B 5l T8
HK$ Million
BEEST
Atrium Hotel at Pacific Place 88 Queensway, Hong Kong Hotel 570.0
R ESAtriumB 58 B HE©EES8Y BE
Proposed Redevelopment of Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Commercial 188.0
Hennessy Centre BAMEE [GES
SRR E R TE A
Sai Kei Hou Yuen Development Taipa, Macau Residential 94.1*
AR REERIAR RPIEK T =

*  representing the consolidated value of two construction/project management

contracts from the developer and the main contractor of Sai Kei Hou Yuen
Development project
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Operational Review on Contracts (ontinued) TREFEBMRR @

Building Construction and Civil Engineering (continued) BFRERTIAIR®
Major contracts completed during the year include: FRTERZEFEEGHNBLE
Contract Location Type Amount
a8 b B =l x|
HK$ Million
BEESET
Pok Oi Hospital Redevelopment and Expansion Yuen Long, Hong Kong Hospital 1,037.3#
BE R ERERIAR EETTH =
HSBC Data Centre at Tseung Kwan O, Hong Kong Office building 874.8
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate EEAGER MAERE
SR T R UDELRITEIES O
Central Park Phase 3 Chaoyang District, Beijing Commercial and residential 4231
MR A ABE =5 I RBG = EEREE
Central Park Phase 2 Group |I Chaoyang District, Beijing Commercial and residential 380.3
MBI AEE —AFE A I RERG R EEREE
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 Tai Po, Hong Kong Office Building 228.0*
Main Works (Area A) BRI L NEY N
EERBEESE - (IRAR)
Sand’s Podium and Tower Macau Commercial 117.6
R [EHES

# part of the contract has been sub-contracted to Hsin Chong Aster Building Services #
Limited (“Hsin Chong Aster"”)

* representing 55% of the gross contract sum of HK$414.6 million, whereas the *
balance of 45% is shared by Hsin Chong Aster

EHZ—BOEDHTFHECRHERFRIEBR AR
EdnftiE])

REXEE XS EEB414,600,0007C2 55% + M45% 5858 B
¥ S R EATE
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis &2 /E il X 54T

Operational Review on Contracts (continued)

Electrical and Mechanical Installation

Total revenue and outstanding orders for the year are HK$467.0 million
and HK$1,191.7 million, decreases of 26.5% and 22.3% respectively over
last year. Profit margins improved to 4.7% in the year from -1.4% of last

TREEKARR @)
BMEZHTRE

REE 7 B KR TR A £948 58 A7 467,000,0007T K& 75
#1,191,700,0007T * 7 R EFER A 26.5% 522.3% ° F
ERANAEFEZB1A%NEEANFEEILLT% -

year.
Major contract received during the year was: FABEEZXEEHR
Contract Location Type Amount
=5 ok =5l 8
HK$ Million
BERET
Prince of Wales Hospital Sha Tin, Hong Kong Electrical and mechanical 548.0
— Extension Block BEELDH WEIR
FUERHT R £ B P i K 1g
Major contracts completed during the year include: FATRZEFEGRBLE
Contract Location Type Amount
an ok =5l x|
HK$ Million
BEBET
Pok Oi Hospital Redevelopment Sha Tin, Hong Kong Electrical and mechanical 358.7"
BEERERIAR BEDH HETRE
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 Tai Po, Hong Kong Electrical and mechanical 259.6
Main Works (Area B) HBKIE HETRR
HEREESE 8 (T28E)
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 Tai Po, Hong Kong Electrical and mechanical 186.6*
Main Works (Area A) BEAEKRE WEIR
EEREEE B (TRAR)
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 Tai Po, Hong Kong Electrical and mechanical 86.1
Main Works (Area C) BEKRE HETRE
EERMBEEFE-H (IR(E)
A sub-contract value being awarded by a group company A HEEKEARBREZHOHELEE
*  representing 45% of the gross contract sum of HK$414.6 million, whereas the — * RXEAS LS EEHE414,600,00070245% * M55%ER5E R

balance of 55% is shared by another group company
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Operational Review on Contracts (continued)

Joint Ventures

Hsin Chong — Yau Lee Joint Venture, in which Hsin Chong has a 50%
interest, received a construction contract of HK$1,654.3 million from
Architectural Services Department for the Design and Construction
of Prince of Wales Hospital — Extension Block. Part of the contract, at
HK$548.0 million, has been sub-contracted to a specialist subsidiary of the
Group. Other variation orders totalling HK$616.7 million were received
by MBH Joint Venture and Maeda-Hitachi-Yokogawa-Hsin Chong Joint
Venture during the year. The breakdown of incomplete contracts of the
Group's construction joint ventures is as follows:

TREBMRRT @

L

HE—BFEE GTENEFHEES0% ) EEZEBR TR
{B4%1,654,300,0007C 2 B HT 0 T BB E St g
BEIR - e 82— &9 ([EA%548,000,0007T) 25 #F
RNEBZ —REFMBARF - FAMBHAE ¥ NAIH—B
3 — B — ¥ S B I AR T A2 48 (E5%5616,700,000T °
REBEREEBZEEDERTRAOBEITHT

31 March Contracts Contracts 31 March

2007 received  completed 2008

—ETAF e TR —EEBN\F

=A=+—H YOk A#)58 =ZA=+—H

HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEEET BEBEET BEEET BE¥EER

Hsin Chong - Yau Lee Fa—FF - 1,654.3 - 1,654.3

Joint Venture HEhE

MBH Joint Venture MBH& & >3 1,483.4 165.6 - 1,649.0
Maeda-Hitachi-Yokogawa- AT — B3 — &0

Hsin Chong Joint Venture =) 2,760.0 4511 - 3,211.1

4,243.4 2,271.0 - 6,514.4

Note: The amounts shown above are gross figures and do not reflect the Group’s net
attributable share.

Construction Related Property Development

(1) Lung Mun Oasis, Tuen Mun, Hong Kong
At balance sheet date, all the 257 car parking spaces remain unsold
with carrying value of HK$22.0 million, net of impairment provision
of HK$30.9 million. These car parking spaces are currently available
for rental income either on a monthly or hourly basis.

(2) No. 3 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
The development is a 26-storey office building. The Group has a
20-year freely-assignable master lease for the 11th — 30th floors,
comprising approximately 77,000 square feet. The residual lease term
is around 6 years. Occupancy rate attained 100% in the year (2007:
97%). Current carrying value stands at HK$65.0 million after an
impairment loss of HK$3.2 million recognised in the year.

i EPIERARE SRR ANEE TGS 2 FE

BHBEEMBAIYERR

(1) HBHFMEMNE
REER - 2E257EEESBELANAREL - AREAE
AR B BB 530,900,000 4 A& 78 822,000,000
TT ° RE(EHEIGEAIE AR AT g 5 = AR DAUER
FAEUWA -

(2) BBEMFERBEINR
ZEREEABES T ARNEZNHAKNE - NEEE
BFE+T—ZE=TE(EEDN77,000E5R) A=+
FZAEAERHEEE FHRBEEHROAEF - AF
BZHRARETI00%(ZTZLF 1 97%) ° LHBRF
RHER 2R E B 3,200,000t - B RIBREE RS
65,000,0007T °
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Operational Review on Contracts (continued)
Construction Related Property Development (continued)

3)

4

Hsin Chong Center, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong

This property (which has approximately 107,000 square feet of space)
has been used as headquarters of the Group since April 1999 with
some office spaces leased out at market rentals. During the year, the
portion of Hsin Chong Center that was leased out and classified as
an investment property recognised a revaluation gain of HK$10.8
million, leaving the carrying cost at HK$59.5 million at year end date.
The remaining area occupied by group companies is carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment of HK$89.8 million.
In aggregate, the total carrying value of this property in our books is
therefore HK$149.3 million, whereas the current open market value
is significantly higher at HK$238.0 million.

Wen Chang Pavilion, Guangzhou, PRC

The project comprises a total site area of 18,215 square metres
(approximately 196,000 square feet) bound on the East by Wen
Chang Road North and on the South by Yao Hua Jie North,
Guangzhou City, PRC. The Group has an effective 42% interest in the
project.

Phase | comprises a total saleable floor area of approximately 41,442
square metres with 98 car parks. At balance sheet date, a full
provision was made for 37 car parks which are classified as area for
bomb-proof shelter with no resale value. The remaining 61 car parks
and unsold residential units are both classified as stock on sale with a
carrying value of HK$21.6 million.

Following the issuance of completion certificate of commercial units
in March 2008, the Group transferred the commercial units from
property under development for sale to stock on sale with a carrying
value of HK$38.7 million, net of impairment provision of HK$9.5
million.

At balance sheet date, 97% of the residential units had been sold at
an average selling price slightly above RMB7,500 per square metre.
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HEBEFEERCYERE @
(3) BEBBEHFEHL

4

I E(HEmELE107,000F 5 R)E—ALANEN
RRAEAEEZEH  EhHrBENCEMmER
AL - RAFER  FEFLEREILIERE
W) % 2 86 1R E b W& %8 %5 10,800,000 7T ¢ &
HRNEE A ZREE A8 %59,500,0007T 8 T f#t
AEBEKE AR Z B ERANBREBETER
RAE AR &5 #89,800,0007T ° MIEWE ZHET
E 475 %238,000,0007C ° BESREEMAEBESE
149,300,0007T °
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R) - LR BEMT - RIS kAR Edl
o REBEZIABA2% 2 BB -
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Major Contracts and Projects Subsequent to Year End
Consolidated

Subsequent to year end, the Group secured new contracts of HK$156.8
million, including (a) Electrical and Mechanical Ventilation Installation
work for HAECO (Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited)
Aircraft Maintenance Hangar No. 3A; and (b) Fire Services and Plumbing
and Drainage Installations Subcontracts for Proposed Shopping Centre
at Discovery Bay North Development Lot No. R.P. of Lot 385 in DD 352
and Extension Discovery Bay, Lantau Island. Therefore, total incomplete
contracts increased from HK$5,726.7 million to HK$5,883.5 million as of
30 June 2008.

Joint Ventures
There was no change in their order books subsequent to year end.

China Property Development

China’s economy is strong and expected to maintain a high growth rate
in the years ahead. The continuing increase in urbanisation and average
disposable income provides a strong basis for property development and
construction management business. Leveraging on the Group’s ties with
Mission Hills Group for its established network, resources and experience
in China, the Group is well-positioned to strengthen its presence in this
growing market. The Group will seek collaboration with Mission Hills
Group to explore property development and construction management
opportunities in China, with a focus on high-end property market in
second and third-tier cities, thus creating greater shareholder value in the
future years.

Human Capital Investment

Recognition

In recognition of our continuous support for participation in community
services, the Group has been awarded the 5 Years Plus Caring Company
Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services. To encourage our
employees to take the initiative in organising volunteer services, a
Corporate Volunteer Team has been formed. This team establishes a
yearly plan for charity activities and community services and encourages
staff members to actively participate in home maintenance for the elderly,
planting of trees, marathon runs, walking for hospices and visiting care
and attention homes.

REEBZ2FTEEANIER

ma

RERE - NEBMEBE 26 HEEE156,800,0007T * £

BRI (BEBRBIRER AR E3ARMEEHE
EBEELETRE  RONMARE LGS ELERELEY

%3524 ER 553855 R ER AL B w #2202 B &

BEOKERLZRIBHHEH - At - BE=ZTZ/N\FA

=+A8 ' REKELBERBNS,726,700,0007T18 12

5,883,500,0007T ©

hEZEBR

TEZERDA BN RARFELEFFER - #MHLRFH
HEBWAZ BB RYEERMEZETEEBRHERX
it - AEBEBRERFEEZHBSNERARTEDE
S8 BREER  MASEERERETZERSTH
BRARLEER - AKEBSKERSEEAE  UDEkE
TEMERRMEEEEEF CAE - WHERHRBR =
=HEBm ERENENS  EMRARFERERFERES
EE

\m]\é

ANERZE
s

AEEEFB LSRG S BRDFPlusE REBERENA
TEALEBEXB2RARREH 22T - ARBALEE
SXHBEBTEY - —XRXABEIEBFEEKIL - ZEK
MEREASEADRBILFRLE ’%EMEEFWQ
B ZheRAsRERXEAE B [UNER =B
BELETRRDRER -
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Human Capital Investment (continued) ANERZKE @)

Training and Development Bl R BRE

The Group is committed to developing our employees by providing training A£BENEEEEEEREEIIREEESUEFT AL -
and development opportunities. Over 107 training courses with in excess  FAE & B E B2 M@107@FIIRE - 5 HHBiR11,41618
of 11,416 attendance hours have been sponsored for staff during the year.  JIB/\EF - BB AL EREEEN T HANBH @ MibEE
Regular in-house seminars and site visits are organised for all levels of staff %2 ©&E8 2 HE R MOEMBG AR -

to enhance employees’ technical and corporate knowledge.

Developing young engineers is one of the major staff development FEFSIRMNIASESEERELERETEZ— - FHFIE
programmes in the Group. In addition to the four Hong Kong Institute of ~ B77 2 I{EE B Li2AIE @ Scheme ARSFIFTEISN - FTETE
Engineers Scheme A Training Programmes currently in-force, Hsin Chong  EREZELELEEBETRMEEScheme AFHIFTE - EEA
Aster has also registered a Scheme A Training Programme with The Hong  IEERE &K 2 ME ¥ TR ERE -

Kong Institute of Engineers which aims to provide formal training to fresh

graduate engineers who are pursuing professional qualifications.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group employed a total of 1,544 full time staff. WZZETN\F=A=+—H AEEXER154422HE
An analysis of their educational backgrounds is set out below: 8 REZBESWEIINT
Number of

Qualification employees %
BRE ET A Btk
Master Degree or above 248 E 139 9
Bachelor Degree or BB EEER

equivalent professional qualification 391 25
Diploma or Higher Certificate holder RSB BOREEA 251 16
Certificate holder mEEE A 230 15
Others Hib 533 35
Total &5t 1,544 100

The Group sets its remuneration policy with a view to attracting and AEEGIFI2HMBKEERSI RIGEAA R ES - %
retaining high calibre staff. Details of the remuneration policy of the Group B2 #FBBERFBEHNAFR 2 CEERBREN °

are set out in the corporate governance report contained in this annual

report.

24 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008



Health, Safety and Environmental Management

The Group is a major construction organisation in Hong Kong and Macau,
and also an integrated construction services provider in mainland China.
We have used our best endeavours to maintain a safe, healthy and
environmentally friendly working environment at all times as part of our
social responsibilities.

As an OHSAS 18001 certified company, we shall continue to devote our
efforts to further enhancing the safety performance in our construction
sites. More resources will be deployed to organise safety awareness
programmes and implement regulatory procedures.

Our corporate environmental management system has been certified to
comply with the ISO 14001 international standard. We shall continue
to respond positively to measures that will contribute to a better
environment.

Work safety and protection of the environment are important parts of the
management objectives under one of the core values of the Group — Social
Responsibility.

R 22 RRREEE

AEBEDFEERBFZ —REIZRERN - TRAEAN—REH
RABERBE Z AR - REB—EBN#R—ERERERE
BRZE BERRARFZTHERE  WIEAKEET
HEREETZHF D -

{EBOHSAS 18001 FTREZ AR] » NEBELEEL HTHR -
HE—SRAREER B Z2KE - TERNELERE
WEEEHARE LT EER MBS AR ZEIRER

AEBZRBEEZHCERFEFEISO 14001 2 BB IZAELR
E o AEEBEBENREGREERAHESHTBEMRSERE
Py

[BERE I DAREZOEE 2 — B TERE2 RRER
BEAEEERABRZTEEEENE -
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Biographies of the Directors
EEEN

Dr. David CHU Shu-ho
SExEL

Dr. David CHU Shu-ho

JP aged 57

Dr. David CHU was appointed a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board in December 2007. He is a director of Carrick Worldwide Limited, Mission Hills
Golf Club Limited and Upper Luck Holdings Limited, all of which are the controlling
shareholders of the Company. Dr. David CHU was honored Doctorate of Laws from
the University of Toronto in Canada. He is the founder and chairman of the Mission
Hills Group which focuses on sports and diversified leisure industry investments.
He has over 30 years of experience in managing investments and operations across
Asia and North America region covering sports, leisure, hospitality, and property
businesses. Dr. David CHU is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC") and a vice chairman of the
strategic proposal subcommittee for CPPCC. He is the honorary trustee of Nanjing
University, a member of the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and a
foundation honorary trustee of Upper Canada College in Canada. Dr. David CHU
is also a non-executive director of Hung Hing Printing Group Limited, which is
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. WONG Ying-wai

SBS, JP aged 55

Mr. WONG was appointed an Executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the
Board in December 2007. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee,
and a member of the executive committee and the committee of trustees for
employee share subscription scheme of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. WONG is a director of Carrick Worldwide Limited
and Mission Hills Golf Club Limited, both of which are the controlling shareholders
of the Company. Mr. WONG was educated at Harvard University, University of
Oxford, The University of Hong Kong and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
WONG is the executive vice chairman and the chief executive officer of the Mission
Hills Group. Prior to joining the Mission Hills Group, Mr. WONG held several senior
positions in both the public and private sectors. He joined the Administrative Officer
grade of the Hong Kong Government in 1975 and served in various directorate
positions until 1992. Since then, Mr. WONG had held senior management positions
in a number of well known Hong Kong listed companies in property development
and construction businesses including K. Wah International Holdings Limited,
Henderson China Holdings Limited, Shui On Construction and Materials Limited and
Shui On Land Limited. Mr. WONG is a deputy of The National People’s Congress of
the People’s Republic of China. He is also the chairman of the Court and Council
of the Hong Kong Baptist University; the chairman of the HKSAR Social Welfare
Advisory Committee; and a board member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong
and the Hong Kong Tourism Board; a member of the Hong Kong Film Development
Council; the chairman of the Hong Kong International Film Festival Society Limited;
and the chairman of the Business and Professionals Federation of Hong Kong.
Mr. WONG is also an independent non-executive director of Xinyi Glass Holdings
Limited, which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. WONG Ying-wai
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Mr. CHAN Ka-kui
PREREEE

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

BBS, JP aged 58

Mr. CHAN was appointed an Executive Director and the Managing Director of the
Company in August 2006. He is also a member of the executive committee and the
committee of trustees for employee share subscription scheme of the Company,
and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. CHAN is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s business and daily operations. Mr. CHAN is a fellow
member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators. He was formerly the Managing Director of the Company since its
flotation in 1991 until 1998 and then rejoined the Group in August 2006. He
has over 36 years of experience in the construction field. He is also an Honorary
Professor of The University of Hong Kong and an Adjunct Professor of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Previously, Mr. CHAN had served as the chairman of the
Construction Industry Training Authority, and a member of the Town Planning Board
and other government advisory committees.

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

FCCA, FCMI(UK), FCPA, FHKMA, FHKIoD, aged 63

Mr. BUTTIFANT was appointed an Executive Director in February 2008. He is a
member of the executive committee and the committee of trustees for employee
share subscription scheme of the Company. He is also a director of a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. Mr. BUTTIFANT is currently the Executive Director
— Finance of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited, which is a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Chartered Management Institute, The Hong Kong Management Association
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Giordano International Limited, Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited and
Alltronics Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is a non-executive director of Global-Tech Appliances, Inc. and China
Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., both of which are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. BUTTIFANT was the managing director of the Company’s former
substantial shareholder, Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited (“HCIH"), from
December 2004 to December 2007. In this capacity, he also served as an alternate
director in the Company from December 2004 up till end 2007 and an alternate
director in Synergis Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of HCIH listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange) from January 2005 up till end 2007. Prior to joining HCIH,
Mr. BUTTIFANT was an operating partner of Baring Private Equity Asia Limited. He
was the managing director of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee Hong")
from 2001 to 2002 and was the adviser to the board of directors of Wo Kee Hong
from November 2002 to April 2004. Before joining Wo Kee Hong, he was the
managing director of IDT International Limited for over 8 years and had worked for
Polly Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited for more than 11 years in the
capacity of finance director and managing director. He has been resident in Hong
Kong for over 29 years.
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Biographies of the Directors Z =7

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
RBEEL

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

aged 33

Dr. Kenneth CHU was appointed a Non-executive Director in December 2007. He
is also a member of the audit committee of the Company. Dr. Kenneth CHU is a
director of Upper Luck Holdings Limited and Mission Hills Golf Club Limited, both of
which are the controlling shareholders of the Company. He is the son of Dr. David
CHU, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and the Non-executive
Chairman of the Board. Dr. Kenneth CHU was educated at The University of Western
Ontario in Canada. He was honored Doctorate of Laws by his alma mater for his
contributions in sports leisure development and community services in China and
Hong Kong. Dr. Kenneth CHU is the vice chairman of the Mission Hills Group and is
responsible for planning and managing the construction and design of sports and
property assets of the Mission Hills Group, including championship golf courses and
residential properties. He has over 13 years of experience in property and golf asset
development, and has been managing the Mission Hills Group in developing assets
by blending sports, business, culture, leisure and living components. Dr. Kenneth
CHU has been actively involved in community services in China and Hong Kong
to promote interaction and collaboration between China and Hong Kong young
business leaders, including being a member of All-China Youth Federation, a vice
chairman of Hong Kong United Youth Exchange Foundation as well as Hong Kong
United Youth Association, a committee member of Tianjin Youth Federation and a
director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited.

Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

SBS, JR aged 56

Mr. LAM was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director in August 2002.
He is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. LAM is
the managing director of Forward Winsome Industries Limited, which is a toy
manufacturing company. He is a member of the Legislative Council in Hong Kong, a
general committee member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and
a council member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Mr. LAM holds
a number of other public positions including chairman of the Hong Kong Export
Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board. Mr. LAM is also an independent non-
executive director of C C Land Holdings Limited, which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen

CA, CMA, MBA, DBA, aged 55

Dr. LAU was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director in August 2002. He
is also a member of the audit committee of the Company. Dr. LAU had spent over
12 years in finance related work in the private and public sectors in Canada prior
to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. Dr. LAU holds a DBA degree from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and an MBA degree from the University of Calgary in
Canada. He is a member of The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and
The Society of Management Accountants of Canada. Dr. LAU is the chairman and
chief executive of Giordano International Limited and an independent non-executive
director of Fairwood Holdings Limited, both of which are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho
REREE

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho

OBE, JP BSc (Eng), CEng, R.PE., FHKIE, FIMechE, FCIBSE, FIEAust, FHKEng, FHKIoD, aged 61
Mr. LEUNG was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director in January 2008.
He is also a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science
in Engineering. He is a professional mechanical engineer, and is currently the deputy
chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Before his retirement from full
time employment, Mr. LEUNG had served as the chairman of the Greater China
Region of Hyder Consulting Limited from 1995 to 2002. He now serves as advisors
and non-executive directors for various organisations, mainly related to engineering,
management consultancy and transport. Mr. LEUNG is a board member of the
Airport Authority Hong Kong, a member of the Town Planning Board, a panel
member of the Administrative Appeals Board, and the chairman of the Energy
Advisory Committee. Mr. LEUNG is also an independent non-executive director of
CIG Yangtze Ports PLC, which is listed on the growth enterprise market of the Stock
Exchange.

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

SBS, JP aged 63

Mr. SHEK was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director in January 2008.
He is also a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. SHEK
graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a degree of Bachelor of Arts.
He is @ member of the Legislative Council for the HKSAR representing the real estate
and construction functional constituency. Mr. SHEK was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the Government of HKSAR in 2007. He is a member of the Council of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a member of the Court of The
University of Hong Kong and a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited. Mr. SHEK is an independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation
Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, Hop Hing Holdings
Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, Midas
International Holdings Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited,
See Corporation Limited and Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited, all of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, which is the manager
of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (“Champion REIT”), and Regal Portfolio
Management Limited, which is the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust
(“Regal REIT"). Both Champion REIT and Regal REIT are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Senior Management Profile
SEEERAE[N

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY

BSc (Civil), CEng, MICE, aged 59

Mr. BUCKLEY is a director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited (“HCC"),
Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited ("HCCA") and certain other subsidiaries of
the Group. He is also the Executive Project Director of the construction management
business of the Group in Macau. Mr. BUCKLEY joined the Group in 2003 and
has over 39 years of experience in the field of building construction and civil
engineering.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi-keung

BSc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, R.PE., aged 49

Mr. CHIN is a director of HCC, HCCA and certain other subsidiaries of the Group.
He is responsible for the performance and day-to-day operational management
of the Group’s building construction projects and managing the technical services
department and contracts administration department in Hong Kong. Mr. CHIN
joined the Group in 1994 and has over 25 years of experience in the field of
structural design and project management.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE

MRICS, aged 48

Mr. CLARKE is the Executive Commercial Manager of Hsin Chong Construction
(Macau) Limited and Hsin Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited, the Company’s
subsidiaries in Macau. He joined the Group in 2004 and has over 29 years of
experience in providing commercial and technical support in the construction field.

Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho-ning

BSc (Eng), CEng, R.PE., MIMechE, MCIBSE, MHKIE, aged 55

Mr. FUNG is the Managing Director of Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited
("HC Aster"”), the electrical and mechanical engineering installation subsidiary of the
Group, and a director of the Group’s certain other subsidiaries. He has the primary
responsibility in managing the business of HC Aster. Mr. FUNG joined the Group in
2003 and has over 32 years of experience in the engineering field as consultant,
client’s representative and contractor in Hong Kong, United Kingdom and Australia.
Before joining the Group, for over 15 years, Mr. FUNG was engaged in the general
management of companies in Australia and Hong Kong before acting as the general
manager of Jardine and Cathay Pacific group of companies.

Mr. Charles KAM Yuk-fai

MBA, FCCA, CPA, aged 44

Mr. KAM is the Financial Controller of the Group. He is also a member of the
executive committee of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. KAM has the overall responsibility in managing the accounting, financial
and information technology functions of the Group. Mr. KAM joined the Group in
1997 and has over 21 years of experience in the field of accounting, auditing and
finance.

Mr. LAW Wai-tai

FRICS, FHKIS, R.PS., aged 59

Mr. LAW is a director and the Assistant Managing Director of HCC and HCCA,
and a director of certain other subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a member of
the executive committee of the Company. Mr. LAW has the overall responsibility
for the strategic development of the Group’s traditional construction business.
Mr. LAW joined the Group in 1984 and has over 36 years of experience in the field of
quantity surveying and construction. He holds a number of public service positions.
He is currently a member of the Building Sub-Committee of Land & Building
Advisory Committee, a member in the Building & Civil Engineering Training Board
under Vocational Training Council and a co-opted member of the Committee on
Subcontracting of the Construction Industry Council.
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Mr. James LEE Kok-foo

BEng, MIEAust, MHKIE, aged 56

Mr. LEE is a director of HCC, HCCA and certain other subsidiaries of the Group.
He is responsible for the development of new business for the Design and Build
Division and managing the building services department. Mr. LEE joined the Group
in 1981 and has over 34 years of experience in the field of electrical and mechanical
engineering and building construction management. Mr. LEE was awarded the 1975
G.t. Murray Memorial Award by the New Zealand Institution of Engineers for the
Best Young Engineer of the Year.

Mr. Jacky POON Shiu-chung

BSc (Civil), aged 51

Mr. POON is a director of HCC, HCCA and the Managing Director of ¥18 & i&iE
SEBR/A 7] (Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited), a wholly owned foreign
enterprise established by the Group in Beijing. He is also a director of certain
other subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. POON is responsible for the operation of the
construction business of the Group in Mainland China. He joined the Group in 2001
and has over 25 years of experience in the construction field.

Mr. Baile SIAW Kee-hock

BSc, CPEng, MIEAust, aged 57

Mr. SIAW is a director of HCC, HCCA and certain other subsidiaries of the Group.
He is responsible for providing contract services supports, including plant, land
surveying, quality assurance, environmental, site administration, health and safety to
the operating sites of the Group. Mr. SIAW joined the Group in 1978 and has over
33 years of experience in the field of concrete industry, foundations construction
and construction plant management. He is a member of the Quality Scheme for the
Production and Supply of Concrete (QSPSC) Technical Committee of the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency.

Mr. Paul WONG Hon-kit

B.Soc.Sc (Hons), MCom, ASA, aged 54

Mr. WONG is a director and the General Manager of Hsin Chong Construction
(Property Development) Limited. He is responsible for the property development
business of the Group. Mr. WONG joined the Group in 2008. He has over 30 years
of experience in property developments in the Asia-Pacific region, including Hong
Kong, Australia, the Mainland China and Thailand.
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Corporate governance is the system by which Hsin Chong Construction ﬁ%%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁa BEEEARAF([ARAR )2 EERE
Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is directed and controlled. The board of #X# - ARAESETE(ESE) oA EURREE
directors of the Company (the “Board”) is fully aware of its importance £ - llit?%_LT—EJEE%Z%UM%UE CEERERRAES
to the shareholders and has developed a rigorous system of checks and ~ ®F 2K FE - EFGHEE @ BY —EHIE2LEER
balances which allows management to respond to the strategic directions ~ Z#t @ IUBAARIBEEBEDL - RERAQARIZE LG
approved by the Board. The Board believes that a well balanced corporate £ - &3 EE 12 (s o

governance system enables the Company to achieve business excellence

and fulfill the Company’s mission of “Building Trust and Value”.

Corporate Governance Structure EEREE
As at 4 July 2008 RZZEZNFLAMA
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Executive Director 1
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32 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008



Corporate Code of Conduct

Organisations are driven by their core values which for the Company,
integrity is the most important core value. Since 1995, the Company
has published and distributed its Corporate Code of Conduct to all staff
to educate and reinforce the Company’s commitment to the highest
standards of business ethics and the seriousness with which the Board
treats such matters. The Corporate Code of Conduct is a living document
and periodically updated to incorporate comments and suggestions from
the Independent Commission Against Corruption and the other regulating
authorities in Hong Kong.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company has
applied the principles in and complied with the code provisions and
certain recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors,
Executive Committee Members and Senior
Management

On 28 June 2004, the Board adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for regulating
securities transactions by the directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry of all the directors of the Company, all the directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.

As continuous enhancements in corporate governance practices, the
Board on 29 March 2005 and 14 September 2007 further adopted the
Model Code as written guidelines for regulating securities transactions by
members of the executive committee of the Board and senior management
(whose names appear in the annual report of the Company) respectively.
The Board believes that members of the executive committee of the Board
and the said senior management may, by virtue of their positions, likely be
in possession of unpublished price sensitive information of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). Having made specific
enquiry of all the members of the executive committee of the Board and
the said senior management, the Company was advised that all of them
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.
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Board of Directors

Composition

The Board is currently comprised of 9 directors, including 3 executive
directors, 2 non-executive directors and 4 independent non-executive
directors.

The names of the directors are set out below:

Non-executive Chairman
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho

Executive Deputy Chairman
Mr. WONG Ying-wai

Managing Director
Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

Executive Director
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Non-executive Director
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including
sports, leisure, hospitality, property development, construction,
manufacturing, trading and finance related work, members of the Board
possess a balance of skills, expertise and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group which helps promote its
success and benefits its management. Save for the facts that Dr. Kenneth
CHU Ting-kin is the son of Dr. David CHU Shu-ho; Mr. WONG Ying-wai
is a director of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL") and Carrick
Worldwide Limited (both of which are 100% indirectly owned by Dr.
David CHU Shu-ho); and Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT holds the position of
Executive Director — Finance in MHGCL, there is no relationship among
members of the Board. The brief biographical details of the directors are
set out on pages 26 to 29 of this annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)

The Company currently has 4 independent non-executive directors which
accounts for nearly half of the total number of Board members. The high
proportion of independent non-executive directors appointed to the Board
reflects that their views carry significant weight. The strong independent
element also enables the Board to achieve an effective exercise of
independent judgment, make objective decisions and act in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has given to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence in compliance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive directors are and have remained independent.
Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen, a member of the audit committee, has the
appropriate accounting and financial management expertise required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the independent
non-executive directors, are expressly identified in all corporate
communications which disclose the names of the directors of the
Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its primary
functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and monitor
and measure the management’s performance. It is accountable for
the overall strategic development of the Group with the objective to
enhance shareholder value. Material matters are reserved for the Board's
considerations or decisions which include, among other things, overall
strategy of the Group; business plans; annual budgets; significant capital
expenditure; interim and annual results and reports; dividend policy
and payments; material acquisitions, disposals or investment proposals;
directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal; and other material
transactions.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the managing director of
the Company are taken by Dr. David CHU Shu-ho and Mr. CHAN Ka-kui
respectively, who are not related to each other. There is a clear division
of responsibilities between them with a view to achieving a balance of
power and authority. The Board chairman provides leadership to the Board
in terms of approving policies and strategies, and discharges those duties
set out in all the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
under code provisions A.2 of the CG Code. The managing director of
the Company has the overall responsibility of implementing all decisions,
policies and strategies approved by the Board, and overseeing the Group's
business and operations. His duties are set out in his service agreement
entered into with the Company.

With the support from the executive directors and the company secretary,
the Board chairman ensures that all directors are properly briefed on issues
arising from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information on a timely manner.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board currently does not find it necessary to set up a nomination
committee to consider the appointment, re-election and removal of
the directors of the Company. The Board as a whole has assumed this
responsibility. During the year, the Board had resolved to appoint Dr. David
CHU Shu-ho as a non-executive director and the chairman of the Board,
Mr. WONG Ying-wai as an executive director and the deputy chairman of
the Board, Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin as a non-executive director, Mr. Barry
John BUTTIFANT as an executive director, and Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-
ho as well as Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him as independent non-executive
directors.

All the non-executive and independent non-executive directors of
the Company are appointed for a term of two years subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the Company,
including the requirement of retirement by rotation and re-election or
standing for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company at
least once every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director will be provided with an introduction of the relevant

regulatory requirements and information on the Group's business affairs
upon appointment.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next
year are scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in
order to facilitate the directors to plan for attendance of the meetings.
Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and when required,
to deal with ad hoc issues. Any director who is not able to present
physically may participate at any Board meeting through electronic
means of communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting will be sent at least 14 days
in advance, and reasonable notice will be given for other Board meetings.
The company secretary assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting
notice and agenda. Each director may include any item in the agenda.
The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable
information, are sent to each director not less than 3 days before the date
of a Board meeting (except where a Board meeting is convened on an
urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter, agenda and discussion
papers in this circumstance may then be sent to each director less than 3
days in advance) to enable the directors to make informed decisions on the
matters to be discussed.

The company secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board
meetings, drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to directors
for comment and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a
reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board at the meeting and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the directors or dissenting view
(if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary and open for inspection to any director on request.

All directors of the Company have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Directors have full and
timely access to all relevant information, including reports from the Board
committees and reports from the management. They are also provided
with updates on the latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
directors in discharging their duties as and when appropriate.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted
written procedures and circulated them to all directors to follow in the case
any director wishes to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance at the Company’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant
to the bye-laws of the Company on urgent matter which requires decision
in a tight timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or
not practicable. In the case resolution in writing is circulated, sufficient
information and explanatory materials will also be provided to the directors
at the same time. During the year ended 31 March 2008, nine sets of
resolutions in writing were passed by the directors for approving different
matters. All these written resolutions were tabled for the directors’ review
at the next following Board meeting so that directors were given the
opportunity to raise any further comment (if any) on the relevant matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which the
Board determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long
as time is allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant
matter first before any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation
of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
arranged to protect the directors and officers of the Group.
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Board of Directors (ontinued)

Attendances of Meetings

Six Board meetings, three audit committee meetings and two
remuneration committee meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2008. Attendances of these meetings by directors are set out

EESu

SR HERE

HE-ZZ )\ F-AZ+—BHLEFEARTAREEZS S
#DRERTESGHLIRMATHEEe g% - TIAS

BE=hEzZEeR BN

below:
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HEBEREEES

Audit Remuneration
Director Board Committee Committee
B=x ZEg EVEEE FNZEESE
Non-executive Chairman FHITERE
David CHU Shu-ho! EREEY on n/a n/a
Executive Deputy Chairman HITRIERE
WONG Ying-wai? T fE2 i7Al n/a 171
Executive Directors HITES
CHAN Ka-kui PR 5 6/6 n/a n/a
Barry John BUTTIFANT# Barry John BUTTIFANT* 11 n/a n/a
YEH V-nee (resigned)® xR (BEHE)° 5/5 n/a 171
Non-executive Directors kTES
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin3 5&;%,15_3 171 n/a n/a
KWONG Ki-chi (retired)® FEE(ERE)° 2/2 n/a n/a
Independent Non-executive Directors By EHTES
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fungs UNEEE S 6/6 3/3 n/a
Peter LAU Kwok-kuens 2| &R o 6/6 n/a n/a
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho? P 171 n/a 17
Abraham SHEK Lai-hims8 Figgss 171 n/a 11
Tobias Josef BROWN (resigned)™ Tobias Josef BROWN (2 BHE) 4/5 3/3 171
Herbert HUI Ho-ming (resigned)2 FERR (B BHE) 2 5/5 3/3 11
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Board of Directors (
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ontinued)

Attendances of Meetings (continued)

1

n/a

Dr. David CHU Shu-ho was appointed a non-executive director of the Company and
the chairman of the Board with effect from 19 December 2007.

Mr. WONG Ying-wai was appointed an executive director of the Company and the
deputy chairman of the Board with effect from 19 December 2007.

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin was appointed a non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 19 December 2007 and a member of the audit committee with
effect from 23 January 2008.

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT was appointed an executive director of the Company
with effect from 22 February 2008.

Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung was appointed the chairman of the audit committee with
effect from 23 January 2008.

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen was appointed a member of the audit committee with
effect from 23 January 2008.

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho was appointed an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 23 January 2008.

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him was appointed an independent non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 23 January 2008.

Mr. KWONG Ki-chi retired from the position of non-executive director of the
Company at its annual general meeting held on 17 August 2007.

Mr. YEH V-nee resigned as the chairman of the Board on 19 December 2007 and

as an executive director of the Company with effect from 28 December 2007.

Mr. Tobias Josef BROWN resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company and the chairman and member of the audit committee with effect from
23 January 2008.

Mr. Herbert HUI Ho-ming resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company and a member of the audit committee with effect from 23 January 2008.

not applicable

Board Committees

Four Board committees, namely, the executive committee, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the committee of trustees
for employee share subscription scheme, are established pursuant to
the Company’s bye-laws, each of which is to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities and oversees particular aspect of the Group’s
affairs. Each Board committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with the
Company'’s bye-laws, its specific written terms of reference and, where
applicable, the proceedings of Board meeting.
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Board Committees (continued)

Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Board is comprised of 5 members, namely,
Mr. WONG Ying-wai, Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, Mr.
LAW Wai-tai (director of certain major subsidiaries of the Group) and Mr.
Charles KAM Yuk-fai (the Group’s financial controller and the Company’s
qualified accountant). The primary duties of the executive committee
are to approve any matters within the normal scope of business of the
Company, banking matters, issue of shares under any share schemes
of the Company, and administrative issues of routine nature (excluding
notifiable transactions), with a view to assisting the Board to discharge
partially its executive functions.

The authority and duties of the executive committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference, the latest version of which was adopted
by the Board on 27 March 2008. Full text of the said specific written terms
of reference has been posted on to the Company’s website.

The executive committee shall meet as and when required depending on
business and operation needs. During the year ended 31 March 2008, the
executive committee held thirty-eight meetings to discharge their duties.
Mr. CHAN Ka-kui and Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT attended thirty-six times
and twenty-seven times out of those meetings, respectively.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Board is comprised of Mr. WONG
Ying-wai as chairman and Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho and Hon.
Abraham SHEK Lai-him as members.

The authority and duties of the remuneration committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference, the latest version of which was adopted
by the Board on 27 March 2008. Full text of the said specific written terms
of reference has been posted on to the Company’s website.

The remuneration committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of
the directors and senior management of the Company. Its duties are
summarised below:

(i) to conduct review of the remuneration policy and procedures
regarding the Company’s directors’ and senior management’s
compensation;

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for all remuneration of the directors and senior management and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

(i)  to determine the specific remuneration packages of all the executive
directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of the non-executive directors;

(iv) to review and determine performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time;

(v)  to review and approve the compensation payable to the executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss or
termination of office or appointment;

(vi) to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct; and

(vii) to advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any service
contract of director that requires shareholders’ approval under the
Listing Rules.

The remuneration committee shall meet at least once a year. During the
year ended 31 March 2008, two remuneration committee meetings were
held. Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed earlier in this
report.

Besides, during the year ended 31 March 2008, two sets of resolutions
in writing of the remuneration committee were passed for approving
different recommendations. These written resolutions were tabled at the
subsequent Board meetings for directors’ review and comment (if any).

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group sets its remuneration policy by reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to
ensure that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives
of the highest calibre essential to the successful leadership and effective
management of the Group. The performance measure is balanced
between financial measures and industry comparative measures to achieve
maximum alignment between shareholders’ and executives’ objectives.
The components of remuneration package consist of base salary,
allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary
bonus, participation in share option and share subscription schemes, and
long-term rewards.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The remuneration packages of the directors of the Company are
recommended by the remuneration committee and determined by the
Board (and in the case of directors’ fees, subject to shareholders’ approval
in general meeting) except that no director or any of his associates is
allowed to make recommendation on or determine his own remuneration
package. Director’s remuneration is determined by reference to each
director’s duties and responsibilities in the Group as well as the overall
performance of the Company and the Group and the prevailing market
situation.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are recommended
by the managing director of the Company and determined by the
remuneration committee by reference to their respective responsibilities
and accountability, target achievements, business results and market
competitiveness of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
managerial and support staff are determined by the managing director of
the Company.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for
senior management staff and employees with significant contributions
to the business objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and
performance based. Share options are granted to the directors, senior
management and other employees based on individual performance
and overall contributions to the Group. The number and terms of share
options granted to each grantee are proposed by the executive directors
(except for options granted to their own), reviewed by the remuneration
committee and approved by the Board.

The Group has sought to make the remuneration policy more transparent
and well communicated to its staff.

Details of the remuneration payable to each director of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 108 to 109 of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board is comprised of Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-
fung (independent non-executive director) as chairman and Dr. Peter LAU
Kwok-kuen (independent non-executive director) as well as Dr. Kenneth
CHU Ting-kin (non-executive director) as members. None of the audit
committee members are or have ever been a partner of the existing audit
firm engaged by the Company.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The audit committee is primarily responsible for conducting an
independent and objective review of the financial reporting process,
internal controls and audit function with emphasis on:

(i)  appraising the quality of the audit work of the Company’s internal
auditor and external auditor;

(i) serving as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators
and the general public;

(iii) ascertaining the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system;
and

(iv) serving as a useful channel of communication between the Board and
the external auditor and internal auditor on audit matters.

The duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific written terms
of reference, the latest version of which was adopted by the Board on 27
March 2008. Full text of the said specific written terms of reference has
been posted on to the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the audit committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or
removal of the Company’s external auditor and on its remuneration;
reviewing the Company’s interim and annual financial statements and
other financial reports as prescribed in the specific written terms of
reference; and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control procedures (including monitoring the effectiveness of
the internal audit function) and risk management systems. The audit
committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity within its duties
and responsibilities and the authority to obtain outside legal or other
independent professional advice if it considers necessary.

The audit committee shall meet at least twice a year. In the year ended 31
March 2008, three audit committee meetings were held. Attendances of
the meetings have been disclosed earlier in this report.

During the audit committee meetings held in the year ended 31 March
2008, the audit committee had reviewed the interim and annual results
and the related financial statements with a view to ensuring that the
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The audit
committee had also considered the reports from the external auditor on
the scope and findings of its independent review of the audit of the interim
and annual financial statements.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

There has not been any disagreement between the Board and the
audit committee’s view on re-appointment of external auditor, and
they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the
ensuing year at the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company.

Committee of Trustees for Employee Share Subscription
Scheme

The committee of trustees for employee share subscription scheme
(“Share Scheme”) was established pursuant to the rules of the Share
Scheme adopted by the Company on 23 August 2002. The said committee
currently comprises Mr. WONG Ying-wai, Mr. CHAN Ka-kui and Mr.
Barry John BUTTIFANT as trustees to discharge the duties. The duties of
the said committee as approved by the Board on 27 March 2008 include
(i) administering and carrying out of the provisions of the Share Scheme
and authorising the issuance of share certificates under the seal of the
Company; and (ii) acting as custodian of the funds contributed by the
participating employees for the purpose of subscribing on behalf of those
participating employees shares of the Company.

Delegation to Management

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business
plans and strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior
executives led primarily by the managing director of the Company.
As such, the management committee for Hong Kong operations
comprising key senior executives was established and is chaired by the
managing director of the Company. The said management committee is
responsible for the oversight and management of the Group’s day-to-day
operations, and holds monthly meeting to review and discuss the Group’s
performance against budget, progress of projects, business strategy and
matters relating to environmental, health and safety, human resources
and information technology. There are other management committees
responsible for the day-to-day operations in Macau, China and the
electrical and mechanical business set up with regular meetings to review
and discuss the performance of the relevant businesses.

Tender Procedures and Policy for Financial Risk Management
Tender Procedure

The tendering department is responsible for reviewing business
opportunities and their associated risks; formulating viable business
models; and deciding the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity.
The tendering director or the managing director of the Company working
together with the estimator, the proposal manager or other expertise
shall review, discuss and approve business proposals submitted by various
business divisions.

BEEEBTZEES

EREEgW)
EESRERZESRENTTINEREM LT ESEE
B MESEHERERAAREBEIT — ST N\FERERE
FREGL  ERENLZAEERKESTMEBAALRT
RE 2 HNEERZERAT o

BEERBROABZETAZES

EERBRMTEI([RETE ) ZETAZESIREAR
AR-ZEE-FNA+ =AM RETE 2R AR -
FZEBEBRTRESTATEELLE - BRRESLAE KBarry
John BUTTIFANTSE A - ABTTHEE - RENR - NF=A
“tHrERESAHIbE - T8 e BERE ()EER
NITRBHE B R BEEEITRELE EARRME : &
(MEAZ2HEEEBMBEARSZEA UREZELHES
REBARQRIRG ©

ERENTEERE
EEEEY

BETBRAEIZEARRAESLEERET AEEEE
BEERPTEESHIE 2 EBABINEKE - it - AFEE
BEECEBZEGTURY KEBRTEZRETRA
B YHARREFELERETIIE ZEHZEGAEE
ERERASEZ AREEE AEARTREE B
A RAWAREERBULAE 2RE HBEE  FHRR
REBRRE REREZE  ANBRARBAMKESRE -
FOBPT - FEREETIEER 2 AREETRIEMERER
88 WEMRITERE BRI RAHRBBER KR -

RERFRUBEBERERR

REREF

RIFHMPIBREEREBERLESAE AR - BIEATE
BRR - RERSEEREREE - RRAEXARFZE
FREEEHRMGES ARRRCEREBEEALHR
A A R R S T EPIR R 2 A B -

EEEREERART FR2007/2008 45



Corporate Governance Report (> %E 85

Delegation to Management (continued)

Tender Procedures and Policy for Financial Risk Management
(continued)

Policy for Financial Risk Management

On 4 July 2008, the Board adopted an updated policy relating to
authorisation and approval of financial transactions, involving the
assessment, booking and monitoring of financial instruments to hedge
exposures to financial risks and in particular, liquidity risk, currency risk and
interest rate risk, with a view to enhancing financial risk management.

Internal Audit

The Company has its own internal audit function, forming part of its
ongoing effort to focus on greater efficiency within the Company and
to quickly respond to the management’s concerns and identify problem
areas. The Group has appointed its own internal auditor. Internal audit
adopts a risk and control based audit approach. The work plan of internal
audit is reviewed and endorsed by the audit committee of the Company.
Examination of the processes, practices and procedures of internal controls
for business operations and corporate functions of the Group has been
performed on a regular basis. Internal audit reports containing findings
and recommendations on improvements are submitted to the audit
committee for review. During the year ended 31 March 2008, the audit
committee was satisfied with the internal audit work performed.

Technical Audit

The technical audit function is overseen by the contracts services
department, which is independent of site operations, aiming at enhancing
the production of quality and error free products in the production
process. The technical audit plan is also formulated by the contracts
services department, and the results of the technical audit together with
any recommendation on improvement are reported to the relevant project
director and executive management for necessary action.

Internal Control
The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s internal control
system and the assessment and management of risk.

In meeting its responsibility, the Board has defined a management
structure with limits of authority that helps achieve the business objectives;
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition; ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information; and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. Such management structure is regularly reviewed to
accommodate the defined or refined business objectives and changing
market conditions. The Board also aims at increasing the risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and hence has put in place policies
and procedures that provide a framework for the identification and
management of risk.
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Internal Control (continued)

Functional directors are appointed to the boards of all major operating
entities in the Group to oversee daily operations of those entities. Proper
authorisation procedures are put in place for review and approval of
significant projects and major capital investments. Budgets must be
approved before adoption and will be reviewed regularly. Proper controls
are in place for recording complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information.

The internal audit and technical audit functions described above also
represent two key components of the internal control system of the Group.
The internal audit function provides an independent assurance to the
Board and the executive management on the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal controls for the Group on an on-going basis.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussion with the audit committee on any significant findings and control
issues. These procedures provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material errors, losses and fraud, and manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going
concern basis. With the support of the accounting and finance functions
led by the financial controller of the Group, the directors have ensured that
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008
are prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting policies applied
consistently save for those new and amended accounting standards as
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. To the best
of knowledge of the directors, there is no uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements, announcements
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the
directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects. Financial information
put before the Board for approval by management is accompanied
by sufficient explanation to enable the directors to make an informed
assessment.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting (continued)
The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the
external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements, is set out in pages 73 to 74 of this annual report.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31 March 2008
are set out as follows:
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Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

FriR RIS e ENER

HK$'000

BT

Audit services BIZRT 1,925
Non-audit services: IETAZ R

Taxation % 450

2,375

Non-audit services provided by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers are
considered insignificant and have not affected its independence.

Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements,
circulars, and press releases, updates on the Group’s developments are
also provided on the Company'’s website stated below which is updated on
a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are welcome
through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at
Hsin Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 9430

(iiiy by telephone at (852) 2579 8238

(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk

(v) on the Company’s website at http://www.hsinchong.com under
“Inquiries”
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Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders (continued)

Annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board members, for which at least 21
clear days prior notice together with detailed agenda is given. Separate
resolution is proposed at annual general meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of each individual director.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, any shareholder holding
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the company secretary, to require a
special general meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

Details of the right of shareholders to demand poll and procedures of
poll voting at general meeting are included in each circular relating to the
convening of a general meeting sent to shareholders. The chairman of the
meeting will also explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general
meeting.

Continuous Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.
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Report of the Directors
EFEWE

The directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. (the “Company”) have pleasure in submitting to the
shareholders their report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2008.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are building construction,
civil engineering construction, electrical and mechanical engineering
installation, renovation and fitting-out, property development and
investment, and provision of construction/project management
consultancy services.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and associated
companies are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements
and particulars of its jointly controlled entities are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information
Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 75 and the state of affairs
of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2008 are set out in the
balance sheets on page 76.

An interim cash dividend of HK5.5 cents per share (2007: HK4.0 cents
per share) for the six months ended 30 September 2007 was paid by the
Company to its shareholders on Thursday, 10 January 2008.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final cash dividend
of HK4.0 cents per share (2007: HK4.0 cents per share) for the year ended
31 March 2008. Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
2008 annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on Wednesday, 3 September 2008 to shareholders
whose names appear on the registers of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 27 August 2008.

Together with the interim dividend already paid, total dividends for the
year will amount to HK9.5 cents per share (2007: HK14.0 cents per share,
which included a final dividend of HK$4.0 per share and a special dividend
of HK6.0 cents per share), representing a payout ratio of 49.7% (2007:
84.8%) on the earnings for the year.

*  for identification purpose only
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Results and Appropriations (continued)

The registers of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 22
August 2008 to Wednesday, 27 August 2008 (both days inclusive) (Hong
Kong time) during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to ascertain shareholders’ entitlement to the attendance of the
forthcoming 2008 annual general meeting of the Company and the
proposed final dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 20 August 2008 (Hong Kong time).

The principal share registrars of the Company is Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited at Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road, Pembroke,
Bermuda.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 155 to 156. This
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Group’s Major Properties
A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/sale as at 31
March 2008 is set out on page 162.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 35(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2008, calculated
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
HK$280,228,000 (2007: HK$339,310,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s bye-
laws (“Bye-laws”) although there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda.
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Report of the Directors Z €&

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive Chairman
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho (appointed on 19 December 2007)
Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ying-wai (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Ka-kui (Managing Director)
Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT ®ote)

Mr. YEH V-nee

(appointed on19 December 2007)

(appointed on 22 February 2008)
(resigned on 28 December 2007)

Non-executive Directors
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
Mr. KWONG Ki-chi

(appointed on 19 December 2007)
(retired on 17 August 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen

Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho
Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him
Mr. Tobias Josef BROWN

Mr. Herbert HUI Ho-ming

(appointed on 23 January 2008)
(appointed on 23 January 2008)
(resigned on 23 January 2008)
(resigned on 23 January 2008)

Note: Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT was an alternate to Mr. YEH V-nee until his resignation
on 28 December 2007.

The brief biographical details of the directors of the Company who are in
office as at the date of this report are set out on pages 26 to 29 of this
annual report.

In accordance with Bye-laws 98(A) and 98(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Barry
John BUTTIFANT, Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung and Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen
shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming 2008 annual general meeting of the Company. Save
for the aforesaid, all the other directors of the Company would continue in
office.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), and considers that all
the independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance
with the terms of the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Service Contracts
Pursuant to the letter of appointment dated 4 July 2008 issued by the
Company and accepted by Mr. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, he has given his
consent to continue acting as an independent non-executive director of
the Company for a term of two years commencing from 24 August 2008
up to and including 23 August 2010.

Pursuant to the letter of appointment dated 31 August 2007 issued by
the Company and accepted by Dr. Peter LAU Kwok-kuen, he has given
his consent to continue acting as an independent non-executive director
of the Company for a term of two years commencing from 4 September
2007 up to and including 3 September 2009.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors offering for re-election
at the forthcoming 2008 annual general meeting of the Company
have entered into a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or
holding companies was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

Subsequent to year end, a business service framework agreement dated
15 April 2008 (”"Agreement”) was entered into between the Company
and Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL") in connection with
the provision of services by the Group to MHGCL, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group). MHGCL is a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and is indirectly wholly owned
by Dr. David CHU Shu-ho, a non-executive director of the Company and
the chairman of the Board. Therefore, Dr. David CHU Shu-ho is materially
interested in the Agreement by virtue of his aforesaid indirect shareholding
interest in MHGCL.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERTHARNAR A REBEEE 2
BAD HERGRESPHER 2 EmlR
=

RIZENF=ZRA=1—08 REEFIIEEH(TEFK
HIRIGH ) E352F A AR A TR EZ B Aracss - iR
B ETRAM S AR LM ETAEEETESISN
BT (MBRETA DABARRARAREEHARIMAR
RETHRPT]) - ARBBEERITRERREEZHEA
WAR A SEAEMREOEE (F&E R RS RBEEDIFEXVELD)
2By~ AR RESFPEES 2SRRI T:

RAXAROREABRG ZFRE

Number of shares of HK$0.10 each held

FiEEREER%10TZRABE
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Personal Family Corporate Other underlying issued share
Name of director  Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
a2 HERTREZ
E528 gt EARES Rk EEER Hitigs HERAEE @t EHEol
(Note ii)
GED)
David CHU Shu-ho  Interests in - - 395,921,240 - - 395,921,240 59.04%
e controlled (Note i)
corporations (Bk)
B
CHAN Ka-kui Beneficial owner 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000 0.89%
e ERBEEA
Notes: MIEE -

(i) These shares were held by Carrick Worldwide Limited. Dr. David CHU Shu-
ho indirectly and beneficially owned the entire issued share capital of Carrick
Worldwide Limited and was therefore deemed to be interested in the 395,921,240
shares held by Carrick Worldwide Limited in the Company as at 31 March 2008 by
virtue of the SFO. Further details of the indirect interest of Dr. David CHU Shu-ho
in Carrick Worldwide Limited are disclosed in the paragraph entitled “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company” below.

(i) There were 670,613,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2008.

54 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008

() %% B 1P Carrick Worldwide Limited # & ° K #f % 18
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short BESBRITHRAHNA AT REHEEEE 2
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and MR - HERHORESTHEE 2 EZR A
Debentures of the Company and its Associated &

Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the RAQATEBELIEZROREERAZEE
associated corporations of the Company

(@) Upper Luck Holdings Limited (a) Upper Luck Holdings Limited

Number of shares of US$1.00 each held

FisBREE.0ETZRAHE
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Personal Family Corporate Other underlying issued share
Name of director  Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ HERTREZ
EEEB & B AR ey 5 EEER Hipfgs HERAHE st BRASH
(Note ii)
(B
David CHU Shu-ho  Beneficial owner 10,000 - - - - 10,000 100%
PR AES (Note i)
ERBEEA
Cigsa))
Notes: MIE -

(i)  Upper Luck Holdings Limited (“Upper Luck”) is the ultimate holding company of the (i) ~ Upper Luck Holdings Limited ([ Upper Luck ]) B4 A Rl Z i

Company, and is 100% beneficially owned by Dr. David CHU Shu-ho. BIRRAT] - WHAERIEL100% EmHESE
(i) The total issued share capital of Upper Luck was US$10,000 divided into 10,000 (i) RZZZ/\F=H=+—H ' Upper Luck Z B TR A4
shares of US$1.00 each as at 31 March 2008. #/510,0003 7T © 14 A10,0000 Z AR AE1.00E T 2 I%
e
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
associated corporations of the Company (continued)

(b) FYREEFHHZEFRAA

EERTHAINA R REBEEE 2
B~ HERDRESHER 2R RX

B
RAATEEEZE 2RO REBERAZHFE @)

(b)

RYREB BT ERRDF

Registered capital in RMB held

FEARBZEMEL
Percentage
of interest
Number of in the
Personal Family Corporate Other underlying registered
Name of director ~ Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BEZ hEmERZ
EEEH &5 B AR RS EEER Hitigs HERAHE st BRADH
(Note i)
D)
David CHU Shu-ho  Interests in - - 5,100,000 - - 5,100,000 75%
XGIES controlled
corporations
(Note i)
AR RR
(i)
Notes: B

(i)  Asat 31 March 2008, FYIREERNZERR AT BHENEE") was a 75%
owned subsidiary of JRIIEE S B AEREH R AR (Shenzhen Guanlanhu Golf
Club Co. Ltd.) ("SGGCL"), whereas SGGCL was a wholly owned subsidiary of
MHGCL and MHGCL was a wholly owned subsidiary of Upper Luck. As at 31 March
2008, by virtue of the SFO, Upper Luck, MHGCL and SGGCL were all controlled
corporations of Dr. David CHU Shu-ho, and therefore Dr. David CHU Shu-ho was
deemed to be interested in the registered capital of RMB5,100,000 held by SGGCL
in BURIBRIE.

(i) The total registered capital of B #H =& was RMB6,800,000 as at 31 March
2008.
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(ii)

RZZEZENF=ZA=+—8  FIREERHREEGRR
A[EREBERE) AR BEREEemARgEaRAR(DF
JIEREERARIRG BB 75%ER 2 WEB AR - MR
R YaBAIRE AMHGCLZ 2 EBAWB AR * MHGCL
Al BUpper Luckz 2 BHBMBAR - RZZTZENF=A
=+—H BREEFHFXHEE - Upper Luck + MHGCL
KRB ASRRIRG AREEE L 22 EER
It R RE TR AEERNER PSRRIk RNE
BB A 2 ARES,100,0007C & AR 2 # s o

RZEZENF=ZA=+—H  BRHREZEMERER
A AR¥6,800,0007T ©



Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short BESBRITHRAHNRA AT REHEEEE 2
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and MR - HERORESTHEE 2 EZR A
Debentures of the Company and its Associated &

Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the RALQTEEEEZRAREBRDZERM@®
associated corporations of the Company (continued)

() RINEBBWEBEEERNDERAR (0 RINEBBWHBEEERMNDERAR

Registered share capital in RMB held

FEARSZERBA
Percentage
of interest
Number of in the
Personal Family Corporate Other underlying registered
Name of director ~ Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total  share capital
BEZ hEmRAZ
EEEB L) B A RiEER EEER Hitfgs HERAHE st BRADL
(Note ii)
(BsEii)
David CHU Shu-ho  Interests in - - 89,576,151 - - 89,576,151 83%
REIR controlled
corporations
(Note i)
R EE RS
k)
Notes: B

() Asat31March 2008, FIEHNEE BEMHBRABDCEWPEEEE Y)was () R-FENF=A=+—A FNBWHEAEAXBRNE

owned as to 78% (registered share capital of RMB84,179,997) by MHGCL and 5% RARI([ERAEEEE]) AMHGCLE R F Mm@
(registered share capital of RMB5,396,154) by SGGCL, respectively. By virtue of the KIkg D Al HEB78% (MR AR¥S4,179,9977T) &
SFO, Dr. David CHU Shu-ho was deemed to be interested in B3 & B3 for 5% (sEAE AN A R #55,396,15470 ) 2 S - IRIEEH M E
an aggregate interest of 83% (registered share capital of RMB89,576,151) as of 31 BB R=ZZETENF=A=+—H  KEXBELTER/H
March 2008 through his controlled corporations, Upper Luck, MHGCL and SGGCL. S48 E Upper Luck * MHGCLE R IINEBR B S B AR S

WRAERBRAEEEERE A H83% (MR AARK
89,576,1517C) 2 ks °

(i) The total registered share capital of 525 B4 was RMB107,923,073 as at (i) RZZTEN\F=A=+—H BFEHEEEEZZMBRA
31 March 2008. wEAARE107,923,0737T °

EEEREERART FR2007/2008 57



Report of the Directors Z €&

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short ZESRTHRBLHNAA R REBH LB~
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and B - HERMOREFPHE 2= K
Debentures of the Company and ifs Associated & )
Corporations (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the RAATHEELIEzROREBROZFR®
associated corporations of the Company (continued)
(d) FYESWHREERA A (d) RYESWERBEERLE
Registed capital in RMB held
FEARBZEMEL
Percentage
of interest
Number of in the
Personal Family Corporate Other underlying registered
Name of director ~ Capacity interests interests interests interests shares held Total capital
BHEZ HEmErz
BB &5 BARR Rk EEER HitEzx — HERGAHE @ BRES
(Note i)
(i)
David CHU Shu-ho  Interests in - - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 90%
PXGIES controlled
corporations
(Note i)
REEER
(BsEi)
Kenneth CHU Beneficial owner 500,000 - - - - 500,000 10%
Ting-kin (Note i)
REE ERBERA
(BsEi)
Notes: I3E
() Asat31 March 2008, FYIESMEREERATCESYWE ) wasownedasto () REZFZFNF=A=+—H  FIESINEREERQA

90% by FEIIEBEHEHEFIZ B AT ("SZ Guanlanhu Properties”) and 10%
by Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin, whereas SZ Guanlanhu Properties was a wholly
owned subsidiary of Mission Hills Properties Holdings Limited (“MH Properties”)
which in turn was a wholly owned subsidiary of MHGCL. By virtue of the SFO,
SZ Gunlanhu Properties and MH Properties were also controlled corporations of
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho and therefore Dr. David CHU Shu-ho was deemed to be
interested in 5= ¥ for an interest of 90% through his controlled corporations,
Upper Luck, MHGCL, MH Properties and SZ Guanlanhu Properties, whereas Dr.
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin had a direct interest of 10% in the said company.

(i) The total registered capital of B = %1% was RMB5,000,000 as at 31 March 2008.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the directors and
chief executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Share Option Schemes

1991 Option Scheme

An executive share option scheme (“1991 Option Scheme"”) was adopted
by the shareholders of the Company on 19 July 1991, which had already
expired on 18 July 2001. No options had further been granted under the
1991 Option Scheme after expiry. However, outstanding options granted
under the 1991 Option Scheme prior to expiry remain exercisable pursuant
to the rules of the 1991 Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares
of the Company (”Shares”) issuable for all the outstanding options under
the 1991 Option Scheme is 560,000 Shares, representing approximately
0.08% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report.

Pursuant to the 1991 Option Scheme, the Directors, at their absolute
discretion, made offers to grant options to eligible persons who might
include any director, senior executive, manager or employee of the Group
(“the Group” in the context describing the 1991 Option Scheme shall
apply the definition ascribed to it under the rules of the 1991 Option
Scheme) to subscribe for Shares. The number of Shares issued and issuable
to all the grantees under the 1991 Option Scheme has not exceeded the
maximum limit of grant permitted by the rules of the 1991 Option Scheme.
A consideration of HK$10.00 was received for each grant of option. The
exercise price for Shares under the 1991 Option Scheme was determined
by the Directors at their absolute discretion provided that such price was
not less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of a Share; or (ii) an
amount equal to 80% of the average of the closing price of a Share on the
Stock Exchange for each of the five trading days immediately preceding the
day on which the option was granted.

Details of movements in the options under the 1991 Option Scheme
during the year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of
the year are set out in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

2002 Option Scheme

An executive share option scheme (“2002 Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders of the Company on 23 August 2002, which was
terminated by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 22 May 2008. There were no outstanding options under
the 2002 Option Scheme on termination.

Rt &

—hh—FRRESE
—AITHRABRIAES B ([ - WA —FRBEE D TR
—NAN—FLATNBAARRBRRED - METEER
—EE-FLATNAER RERRBERE- DA
FREEASE - TRUZBEE - A RERIER
BN — F R B 2 R1T 68 BB A AT AR 4%
NN~ FRREFTEZ R T IAITRE - R— AN —FRBK
R BT BARTITR 2 A RBER T HIT 2 ARAIR ([
17 1) &= 42 5560,0000% - AR BRAFRAPE EIT
A4 ER#70.08% ©

RE-NN—FRREE  EZ2FBEBBEERNSER
AL BEASE(AEE ] ZEEN - NN —FREEE
ZHARE R EER - N —F R IR AR T 208
FIZEAES  SMTHAR  KERES - RERHAR
BRO2BEEELY - RE-NAN—FREEA D ETR
REAT TINA AR AN Z B0 B8 B — L — SRR
FHEIRAIFRZIRAIIR 2 SRR - ERE L Z RAERR
WERARB R 10.007T « R— NN —FRIESEI TGN 2
THREMEFSITEB/UBBRET - EZERTEERIA
TRER z2BBEORD ZEE SN EZRRERHE
FATR{EZR 5 A& A B R X A P9 (EZ280% 2 £ R
B

RN —FRBEEA I TR 2 FANEB IR FILF
RZARITEREERE - CHREGE S PBIRRMFE3SD) -

ST FRRAE
—BITBA B R E([ T T - FRER &) I =
ZZCFN\AT=ZHHARRBRER - EZABER
ZZNFRAAZTZHBTZRREIARE LAARQFRER
b o RIER > R RR T FRMERT S T ERITEZR
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

2002 Option Scheme (continued)

Pursuant to the 2002 Option Scheme, the Directors, in their absolute
discretion, made offers to grant options to eligible persons who might
include any executive director, senior executive, manager or employee
of the Group (“the Group” in the context describing the 2002 Option
Scheme shall have the definition ascribed to it under the rules of the 2002
Option Scheme) to subscribe for Shares. The number of Shares issued
to all the grantees under the 2002 Option Scheme has not exceeded
the maximum limit of grant permitted by the rules of the 2002 Option
Scheme. A consideration of HK$10.00 was received for each grant of
option. The subscription price for Shares under the 2002 Option Scheme
was determined by the Directors at their absolute discretion given that
such price was not less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of a Share;
(i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the day of which the option was granted, which must
be a business day; or (iii) the average of the closing price of a Share on the
Stock Exchange for each of the five trading days immediately preceding the
day on which the option was granted, which must be a business day.

Details of movements in the options under the 2002 Option Scheme
during the year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of
the year are set out in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

2008 Option Scheme

The share option scheme now in force was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company on 22 May 2008 (2008 Option Scheme”). A summary of
the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(a) Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in the
prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested Entity”) and
consequently such opportunity is an incentive for such Eligible Person
to contribute further to the success of the Company and/or its any
subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme

The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
(“Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for Shares:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
its any subsidiary or any Invested Entity, including any executive
director of the Company, its subsidiary or any Invested Entity
and for the avoidance of doubt, including any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, its any subsidiary
or any Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, its any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; or

(iii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the persons mentioned in sub-
paragraphs (i) and (ii) above.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2008
Option Scheme

As at the date of this annual report, options in respect of 41,900,000
Shares have been offered to be granted under the 2008 Option
Scheme to certain directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. All these offers are subject to due acceptance by the
relevant grantees. On the assumption that the aforesaid offers for
the grant of options were all duly accepted by the relevant grantees,
the maximum number of Shares available for further grant of options
under the 2008 Option Scheme (together with any Shares to be
allotted under the 2002 Share Scheme described below but excluding
any Shares to be issued for the outstanding options under the 1991
Option Scheme) shall not exceed 25,161,366 Shares, representing
approximately 3.75% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the 2008
Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number of
Shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and,
issuable to him/her under all the options previously granted to
him/her which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
exceeding 1% of the total number of issued Shares on the last date
of such 12-month period unless approval by the shareholders in a
general meeting with such Eligible Person and his/her associates
abstaining from voting has been obtained.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

2008 Option Scheme (continued)

(e) Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option
An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of HK$10.00 is
payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer. Such amount
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

(f) Subscription price for Shares
The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i)  the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, which must be a
business day; and

(iii) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

(g) Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in the offer
letter in respect of the option.

(h) Remaining life
The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2008
Option Scheme.

The period for acceptance of all the offers made for the grant of options

under the 2008 Option Scheme since its adoption on 22 May 2008 has not
yet expired as at the date of this report.
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Share Subscription Scheme

Employee Share Subscription Scheme

An employee share subscription scheme (“2002 Share Scheme”) which is
in force was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 23 August
2002. A summary of the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme is set out below:

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Purpose of the 2002 Share Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Share Scheme is to provide Qualifying
Employees (as described in sub-paragraph (b) below) with the
opportunity to acquire shares in the Company (“Shares”), thus
enabling them to participate in the Company’s prosperity and
consequently, such opportunity is an incentive for them to contribute
further to the success of the Company.

Qualifying Employees under the 2002 Share Scheme

The Directors may make offers to subscribe for Shares to full time
employees and executive directors (excluding non-executive directors)
of the Group (“the Group” in the context describing the 2002 Share
Scheme shall have the definition ascribed to it under the rules of the
2002 Share Scheme) who have worked for the Group for a period
of not less than six months immediately before the commencement
of any operating period whereas operating period refers to every six-
month period either from 1 January to 30 June or from 1 July to 31
December.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2002
Share Scheme

The maximum number of Shares available for making offers for
subscription of Shares under the 2002 Share Scheme (together
with any Shares to be issued under the 2008 Option Scheme, but
excluding any Shares to be issued for the outstanding options under
the 1991 Option Scheme) shall not exceed 25,161,366 Shares,
representing approximately 3.75% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Qualifying Employee under the
2002 Share Scheme

A Qualifying Employee may elect to utilise not less than 1% nor
exceed 20% of his/her basic monthly salary to subscribe for Shares
during each relevant operating period (as explained above).

No offer may be made to any Qualifying Employee which if accepted
in full would result in the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon offers already accepted or to be accepted by such
Qualifying Employee (including both accepted and outstanding
offers) in any 12-month period immediately preceding the date of
such new offer exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of such new offer. Any grant of further offer above the aforesaid
limit shall be subject to separate approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting with such Qualifying Employee and
his/her associates obtaining from voting.
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Share Subscription Scheme (continued)
Employee Share Subscription Scheme (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Period for and consideration payable on acceptance of an offer
An offer for subscription of Shares may be accepted by an Qualifying
Employee by giving notification of his/her decision in prescribed form
to the Company within the time period specified in the offer letter
prior to the commencement date of the relevant operating period. No
payment is required to be made on acceptance of an offer.

Allotment of Shares and subscription price

Shares subscribed under the 2002 Share Scheme shall be allotted to
the relevant Qualifying Employees within one month following the
expiration of each relevant operating period. The subscription price
for Shares to be allotted shall be such price notified by the Directors
to the relevant Qualifying Employees, which shall be the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily
guotation sheets on the day on which the Shares are allotted, which
must be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the day on which the Shares are
allotted, rounded down to avoid fractions of one Hong Kong cent. If
the subscription price so determined is below the nominal value of a
Share, Shares shall be allotted at par.

The subscription money shall be deducted from each Qualifying
Employee’s payroll during the relevant operating period in such
installments and in such manner as the Directors may determine.
Such subscription monies shall be pooled together in a trust account
earning interest for the relevant Qualifying Employees.

Remaining life

The 2002 Share Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing from 23 August 2002, its date of the adoption,
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2002
Share Scheme.

During the year, no Share was issued and allotted pursuant to the 2002
Share Scheme.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

The Company operates share option schemes and an employee share
subscription scheme pursuant to which options and offers may be granted
and made to the directors of the Company for subscription of shares
in the Company. Details of the 1991 Option Scheme, the 2002 Option
Scheme, the 2008 Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Scheme are set
out in the above paragraphs entitled “Share Option Schemes” and “Share
Subscription Scheme”. Further details of options granted and/or shares
allotted to the directors of the Company are disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, pursuant to the original terms of the service agreement dated
19 August 2006 (as amended) (“Service Agreement”) made between the
Company and Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, Mr. CHAN Ka-kui was previously entitled
to the right to utilise a portion of his monthly remuneration to subscribe
for newly issued shares of the Company subject to compliance with all
applicable requirements of the Listing Rules. During the year, no share of
the Company was subscribed by or issued to Mr. CHAN Ka-kui pursuant to
the Service Agreement. Such share subscription right as originally set forth
in the Service Agreement was cancelled and terminated with effect from
26 October 2007 pursuant to the supplemental deed dated 29 October
2007 made between the Company and Mr. CHAN Ka-kui.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Dr. David CHU Shu-ho, Mr. WONG Ying-wai and Dr. Kenneth CHU
Ting-kin are directors of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL").
MHGCL is also 100% beneficially and indirectly owned by Dr. David CHU
Shu-ho. The principal businesses of MHGCL and its subsidiaries (other
than the Group) comprise, among other things, property development
("Excluded Business”). The Directors believe that as the size of the
Excluded Business is not insignificant when compared with the property
development business of the Group, it is likely that the Excluded Business
may compete with the property development business of the Group.

The Excluded Business is operated and managed by MHGCL or its relevant
members (other than the Group) with independent management and
administration. On this basis, the Directors believe that the Group is
capable of carrying on its property development business independently of
the Excluded Business and at arm’s length from the Excluded Business.
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Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

Other than the share option schemes and the employee share subscription
scheme described in the paragraphs entitled “Share Option Schemes” and
“Share Subscription Scheme” above and in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31 March 2008. Other
than those disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
there was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

Retirement Schemes

The Group operates two defined contribution retirement schemes,
namely, Hsin Chong Group Retirement Fund Scheme and Hsin Chong
Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars of these retirement
schemes are set out in note 2(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
As at 31 March 2008, the interests or short positions of the following
substantial shareholders (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Percentage of interest

Name of shareholder Capacity Number of shares held in the issued share capital
RREB 565 BERGHE HERITREAZERZBSL
(Note ii)
(BREER)
Upper Luck Holdings Limited Interests of controlled 395,921,240 59.04%
corporations (Note i)
SN di (PR
Mission Hills Golf Club Limited Interest of a controlled 395,921,240 59.04%
corporation (Note i)
R EE R (B3
Carrick Worldwide Limited Beneficial owner 395,921,240 59.04%
BEmEA A (Note i)
(5%
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

(continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)
Notes:

(i) Carrick Worldwide Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary and hence a controlled
corporation of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL"). MHGCL is a wholly
owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of Upper Luck Holdings
Limited (“Upper Luck”). Upper Luck is wholly owned by Dr. David CHU Shu-
ho, a non-executive director of the Company and the chairman of the Board
whose interests in the shares of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph
entitled “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations” above. By virtue of the SFO, both Upper Luck and MHGCL were
deemed to be interested in the same lot of 395,921,240 shares held by Carrick
Worldwide Limited in the Company as at 31 March 2008.

(i) There were 670,613,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2008.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than persons who were directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group entered into (or
continued to be a party to) certain transactions with Hsin Chong
International Holdings Limited (“HCIH") and/or its subsidiaries. HCIH was
a substantial shareholder of the Company before the completion of the
disposal of its major interest in the Company to Carrick Worldwide Limited
on 9 November 2007. Therefore, HCIH and its associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) were connected persons of the Company up to 8 November
2007 before the completion of the aforesaid disposal of interest. Those
transactions entered into by the Group with HCIH and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “"HCIH Group”) for the period from 1 April 2007 up to
and including 8 November 2007 had constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company and are subject to the annual review and
reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
these continuing connected transactions are set out below:

(A) Pursuant to a construction services agreement dated 16 July 2007
("Construction Services Agreement”) entered into between the
Company and HCIH, the Group has from time to time provided
the Construction Services (as defined in the Construction Services
Agreement) to the HCIH Group for projects of the HCIH Group.
Further details of the Construction Services Agreement and the
Construction Services were disclosed in the announcement dated
16 July 2007 of the Company. For the period from 1 April 2007
to 8 November 2007 (both days inclusive), the total value of the
Construction Services provided by the Group to the HCIH Group was
HK$3,990,958.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(B)

Pursuant to a general business services agreement dated 16 July
2007 ("General Business Services Agreement”) entered into between
the Company and Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”) (a 66.4%
owned subsidiary of HCIH), the Group has from time to time
requested Synergis and its subsidiaries (“Synergis Group”) to provide
the General Business Services (as defined in the General Business
Services Agreement”) to the Group. Further details of the General
Business Services Agreement and the General Business Services were
disclosed in the announcement dated 16 July 2007 of the Company.
During the period from 1 April 2007 to 8 November 2007 (both days
inclusive), the total service fees paid by the Group for the General
Business Services were HK$1,631,555.

Pursuant to a real estate agency and project management services
agreement dated 16 July 2007 (“Real Estate Agency and Project
Management Services Agreement”) entered into between the
Company and HCIH, the Group has from time to time requested the
HCIH Group (in this context, excluding the Synergis Group) to provide
to the Group Real Estate Agency Services and/or Project Management
Services (both services are defined in the Real Estate Agency and
Project Management Services Agreement). Further details of the Real
Estate Agency and Project Management Services Agreement, the Real
Estate Agency Services and the Project Management Services were
disclosed in the announcement dated 16 July 2007 of the Company.
During the period from 1 April 2007 to 8 November 2007 (both days
inclusive), the total service fees paid by the Group for the Real Estate
Agency Services were HK$301,183. No Project Management Services
were provided to the Group and hence no service fee was paid in this
respect for the said period.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (ontinued)

(D)

Pursuant to three tenancy agreements all dated 1 April 2005
("Tenancy Agreements”) entered into between Deventer Limited
("Deventer”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, with
Synergis Management Services Limited (“SMS”), Summit Insurance
(Asia) Limited (“Summit”) and Hsin Chong Holdings (H.K.) Limited
("HCHK"), certain portions of Hsin Chong Center were leased to
SMS (“SMS Tenancy”), Summit (“Summit Tenancy”) and HCHK
("HCHK Tenancy”) for use as their office spaces for a term of three
years ended 31 March 2008. Under the SMS Tenancy, Deventer also
leased 11 car park spaces in Hsin Chong Center to SMS. SMS is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Synergis which in turn is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of HCIH. Summit is a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of HCIH. HCHK is a wholly owned subsidiary of HCIH. Details of
the Tenancy Agreements were disclosed in the announcement
dated 4 April 2005 of the Company. For the period from 1 April
2007 to 8 November 2007 (both days inclusive), Deventer received
rental income (exclusive of management fees, air-conditioning fees,
licencing fees and other outgoings) of HK$898,120 from SMS;
HK$241,599 from Summit; and HK$29,009 from HCHK. Licencing
fees of HK$171,500 were also received from SMS for the lease of the
car park spaces.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) of the
Company have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected
transactions mentioned in (A) to (D) above conducted in the year were
entered into on the following basis:

(a

(b)

in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The external auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board in writing
that all the continuing connected transactions described in (A) to (D)
above:

(i) have received approval of the Board;

(i) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
relevant transactions involved provision of goods or services by the
Group;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing these transactions;

(iv) in respect of the Construction Services, the total value for the period
from 1 April 2007 to 8 November 2007 (both days inclusive) has not
exceeded the annual cap of HK$8.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2008;

(v) inrespect of the General Business Services, the total service fees paid
for the period from 1 April 2007 to 8 November 2007 (both days
inclusive) have not exceeded the annual cap of HK$4.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2008;

(viy in respect of the Real Estate Agency Services and Project
Management Services, the total service fees paid for the period from
1 April 2007 to 8 November 2007 (both days inclusive) have not
exceeded the annual cap of HK$1.3 million for the year ended 31
March 2008; and

(vii) in respect of the SMS Tenancy, Summit Tenancy and HCHK Tenancy,
the aggregate rental income (including the licencing fees for the
car park spaces) received from SMS, Summit and HCHK under the
Tenancy Agreements for the period from 1 April 2007 to 8 November
2007 (both days inclusive) continued to comply with the criteria under
Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules.

HCIH ceased to be a substantial shareholder of the Company on 9
November 2007 and therefore HCIH and its subsidiaries and associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) ceased to be connected persons of the
Company with effect from the same date. Accordingly, the Construction
Services, the General Business Services, the Real Estate Agency Services,
the Project Management Services, the SMS Tenancy, the Summit Tenancy
and the HCHK Tenancy described in (A) to (D) above have all ceased to
be continuing connected transactions of the Company since 9 November
2007.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (ontinued)

Subsequent to year end, the Company has in its announcement dated
15 April 2008 (“2008 CCT Announcement”) announced that it has
entered into a business service framework agreement dated 15 April 2008
("MHGCL Agreement”) with Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL")
pursuant to which the Group will from time to time provide services,
details of which were disclosed in the 2008 CCT Announcement, to
MHGCL, its subsidiaries and associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
other than the Group within the annual caps (“Annual Caps”) set out in
the 2008 CCT Announcement for the three financial years of the Company
ending 31 March 2009, 2010 and 2011. As MHGCL is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, MHGCL and its associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) are connected persons of the Company. Accordingly, the
MHGCL Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder have
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company. Further
details of the MHGCL Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder as well as the Annual Caps were disclosed in the circular to
shareholders dated 6 May 2008. The terms of the MHGCL Agreement and
the Annual Caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 22 May 2008.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 82% (2007: 63%)
of the Group’s total revenue and the largest customer of the Group
accounted for 39% (2007: 27%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% (2007:
less than 30%) of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the director, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers.

Bank Borrowings
The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2007, respectively, were as follows:

FEBRERS @

REEE  ARARNERRA-ZZENENA+RBZAH
(ZZENFHEEERHAMDANEMN - AEERZZZN
P4 A+ F HEMission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL")&]
T EBRBIERGZ ([MHGCLIBZE]) » Bilt - AEBHT
BNER_-_TT) \FRHERERIABHEREE_SZNF
—A=t+—HBl -EBEZT-TF=F=+—HIEERHEZ
E——FZA=Z+-RAL=EANBFEzFELR(FEL
B - MMHGCL - EMfB AR RBMBA(EER EWARD
(REERINRERY - BERBHBEER S N\FHE
FERX S AMAEE - ARMHGCLAERR B ZERARER »
MHGCLE BB A (EER LR ARARZBEEAL -
Et - MHGCLI R IR BHETT 2 X DB AR R 2 FHE
ERZ 5 o BAMHGCLIRZ RIRLFET 2RI URFE LR
ZE—FFERBRAZSES N \FAANBZERRBENR
BE c MHGCLIZ 2 BAERFELRENR _ZZENFAHA
ZTZABRTZRERERRE LR ARE S RERALE -

FEEFRMER
RAFE  AEEGARMNEFPERERAWE282%(=
ZZLF :63%) MAKRESZABTFPAMEREERANZE 2
39% (=TT +HF : 27%) ©

RAFE  AEEHAAMERELHAEE BREEIR
30%(ZZFZTLF : DR30%) °

B HARSFIBMEASIBRBEEMAREELARFCH
TTERANERE5 % % ) BN AR B R AR P P A [

Eo

RITEE
AEEHHR-_FEN\F=A=+—AR-FTLE=AH
=t B2 ERHEMT

2008 2007
HK’000 HK'000
BETT BETT
Long term bank loans for which an analysis REFSRITER - HEFEBOTER
of the repayment schedule is set out in note A B MRE32
32 to the consolidated financial statements
- secured — HE - 25,000
- 25,000
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Report of the Directors Z €&

Event after the Balance Sheet Date
Details of the significant event after the balance sheet date is set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Proforma Combined Balance Sheet of Affiliated
Companies

A proforma combined balance sheet of certain affiliated companies with
major financial assistance and the Group’s attributable interest in these
affiliated companies are set out on page 157.

Donations
During the year, donations made by the Group for charitable and other
purposes amounted to HK$216,000 (2007: HK$133,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the best of knowledge of its
directors.

Auditor

The retiring auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed its
willingness to offer for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming 2008 annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

filgad

Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 July 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN B RS =

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORMKEESTMER

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 154, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report &7 Z 20k EE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 4 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

éjAS\ 3 N\ 7/

e Em I

For the year ended 31 March 2008
BHE_ZT N\F=ZA=1T—ALYEBRFELE

2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE BT T BT T
Revenue Was 5 2,494,727 3,007,166
Cost of sales SMEE R AN 7 (2,276,210) (2,835,492)
Gross profit Es 218,517 171,674
Other income EH bl A 6 48,337 45,820
General and administrative expenses THEX 7 (118,378) (116,638)
Other operating expenses He sy 7 (23,979) (20,428)
Other (charge)/impairment loss reversal Hh (), RE RS Bl # 8 (2,642) 38,403
Operating profit g el 121,855 118,831
Finance costs AR AR 9 (1,686) (6,320)
Share of profits less losses/ {35 R R 518,
(losses less profits) of (EBHERET)
— jointly controlled entities — H[E T 23 13,259 (3,920)
— associated companies — Bt 22 2,557 14,008
Profit before income tax Bt an & 135,985 122,599
Income tax expense BB 12 (14,946) (8,568)
Profit for the year REFE T 121,039 114,031
Dividends A% 8 14 63,738 89,680
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE(ESHF (B51E) -
Equity holders of the Company AAREEFEA 13 123,922 105,399
Minority interests DA A =R (2,883) 8,632
121,039 114,031
Basic earnings per share (cents) ERREAREF (L) 15 19.1 16.5
Diluted earnings per share (cents) SREERF (L) 15 18.7 16.5
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Balance Sheets

BERER

As at 31 March 2008
—EEN\F=A=+—H#E

Group &8 Company &2 7]
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B s BET T BT T BT T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER =Y E 17 56,846 63,011 1,318 1,109
Investment properties -t/ 18 124,500 121,277 - -
Prepaid premium for land lease BT HEER 19 39,737 37,663 = =
Intangible assets | EE 20 1,350 1,950 - -
Investment in a subsidiary MBATIRE 21 - - 65,618 125,921
Loans to a subsidiary BT -HBAR 21 - - 50,000 30,000
Associated companies B SR 22 1,110 6,453 - -
Jointly controlled entities HEE e 23 49,300 13,353 - -
Held-to-maturity investments BRI ZEE 24 11,393 18,574 11,393 18,574
Available-for-sale financial assets At E IR EE 25 3,502 5,729 - -
Deferred income tax assets ELEFETHEE 31 226 2,140 - =
287,964 270,150 128,329 175,604
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al NG E R 21 - - 442,689 446,257
Property under development for sale M ER R R 27 - 36,800 - -
Stocks and contracting FEREER T
work-in-progress 28 228,432 292,555 - -
Receivables and prepayments EWEZEANE 29 368,513 331,709 3,185 3,253
Amount due from a minority shareholder — fElr— > &R EFIE 34 - 3,249 - -
Held-to-maturity investments EDBIHRE 24 13,241 12,124 13,241 12,124
Financial assets at fair value RATES A HFI
through profit or loss IRy REE 26 - 1,315 - =
Deposits, cash and bank balances G5 ReRBTER 30
— restricted — SRR 4| 6,938 75,900 - -
- unrestricted — R 628,744 599,894 36,662 66,612
Current income tax recoverable Al e % BRFT 1SR - - 275 290
1,245,868 1,353,546 496,052 528,536
Current liabilities REAE
Current portion of long term bank loan RERITER 2 R 32 - (25,000) = =
Payables and accruals ERERRESER 33 (835,924) (961,483) (10,745) (7,278)
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERTH B A RIZ0E 21 - - (81,141) (140,978)
Amounts due to minority shareholders FEfT DR IR 34 (27,028) (36,805) - -
Current income tax liabilities HHIFTER A%k (10,868) (5,059) - -
(873,820)  (1,028,347) (91,886) (148,256)
Net current assets FREEERHE 372,048 325,199 404,166 380,280
Net assets BERE 660,012 595,349 532,495 555,884
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable to AATEREEA
the Company’s equity holders BEERR S
Share capital [N 35 67,061 63,922 67,061 63,922
Other reserves H b 36 326,160 285,629 363,034 330,480
Retained profits (REBHF 36 234,436 172,845 75,576 97,363
Proposed dividends BRI E 36 26,824 64,119 26,824 64,119
654,481 586,515 532,495 555,884
Minority interests DERERER 5,531 8,834 - -
Total equity -y 660,012 595,349 532,495 555,884

WONG Ying-wai F#fE
Director %
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

/\\/T\ iﬁi JILEE %

For the year ended 31 March 2008
BHE_ZT N\F=ZA=1T—ALYEBRFELE

2008 2007
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
iiEzs BT T BT
Operating activities R
Net cash inflow generated from operations 4RAREE A Y IR G A SHEE 41(a) 132,798 286,047
Interest received 2 F 8 23,719 17,858
Interest paid EAFIE (1,221) (8,740)
Dividend income from financial assets YR A ER s R E
at fair value through profit or loss I EERE 79 184
Income tax paid BEFTSE (6,736) (17,682)
Net cash inflow from operating activities K S HSRAEE 148,639 277,667
Investing activities REXK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEME  WMERRE (5.624) (953)
Proceeds from the disposal of property, PEME MR REER
plant and equipment 1,113 1,272
Proceeds from the disposal of FeET g E Y BIEEERED
available-for-sale financial assets - 2,927
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments EEREIMIIEE (5,967) (10,420)
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments BEESEIEZISE 12,090 10,850
Return of investment from an BB SR & B3
associated company - 435
Dividend income from associated companies B Bk SR AR B 7,862 13,919
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of  HEMBAT - IBRAEEZEHS = 3,211
Increase in time deposits over three months FER A BB = A Z SR T R (41,719) -
Advance from/repayment from associated o 9 BB I 4 mlﬂggg
companies and jointly controlled entities %?ﬂ/ am i 14,259 116,145
Advance to/repayment to associated 48 T HESE R AR RE S E B
companies and jointly controlled entities ZEM/{E Tﬂ gis (36,909) (18,829)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BEERIES
investing activities R/ BAEE (54,895) 118,557
Net cash inflow before financing BMEAMZESRARE 93,744 396,224
Financing activities mE
Repayment of bank loans HBIEITER (25,000) (255,348)
Issue of shares BITHIR 25,662 152
Repayment to minority shareholders gD %zﬂxﬁgt" (7,914) (4,552)
Distribution to a minority shareholder on —HER DIRF
liquidation of a subsidiary 79\%11&% - (1)
Dividend paid to a minority shareholder Bk T — P ERERE (4,466) -
Dividends paid EIRALE (101,033) (83,074)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits FRHBITERORD = 99,999
Net cash outflow from financing MECESRHTFE 41(b) (112,751) (242,824)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and HERBESEZORD),#EmMn
cash equivalents (19,007) 153,400
Cash and cash equivalents RENZRERBEELZEE
at beginning of year 599,894 443,732
Exchange gains on cash and ReKEESEEL W
cash equivalents 6,138 2,762
Cash and cash equivalents RERZEERELSHE
at end of year 587,025 599,894
Analysis of the balances of cash REeRREZERTFZON
and cash equivalents
Deposits, cash and bank balances T2 R RIBITES
— unrestricted — R4 628,744 599,894
Less: Time deposits over three months B B RBIR=EA ZRITIER (41,719) -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEHE 587,025 599,894
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S A <
AEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2008

HE-_TT N\F=ZA=+—HILMBEFELE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

BREARESEREA
Share Minority Total
capital Reserves interests equity
IR 3] DERRERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBTIT BT BT BEBTIT
(Note 36)
(M43E36)
At 1 April 2006 RZZEXFEA—-B 63903 488262 9,346 | 561,511
Exchange differences P& %R - 10,312 - 10,312
Disposal of available-for-sale HERHHE B EE
financial assets - (169) - (169)
Net income recognised directly HEERRERZWA
in equity SEER - 10,143 - 10,143
Profit for the year REESHEF - 105,399 8,632 114,031
Total recognised income and RAFEER WA
expense for the year KFswe®E - 115542 8632 124,174
Issue of shares BITHIR 19 - - 19
Premium arising from BITHRATEE 2% E
issue of shares - 133 - 133
Equity settled share-based RD AEE 2 RIEEER S
transactions - 1,730 - 1,730
Distribution b2l = - (9,144) (9,144)
Dividends s - (83,074) - (83,074)
,,,,,,,,,,,,, 9. @21y 9144  (90,336)
At 31 March 2007 R-ZTZ+F=A=+—H 63,922 522,593 8,834 595,349
At 1 April 2007 R-—Z2LEMA—-A 63,922 522,593 8834 | 595,349
Exchange differences ME X =5R - 7,977 5,432 13,409
Net income recognised directly HEEEESERZBAFE
in equity = 7,977 5,432 13,409
Profit/(loss) for the year NEFERN,(EE) - 123,922 (2,883) 121,039
Total recognised income and AT EER 2 WA KL
expense for the year mE - 131,899 2549 134,448
Issue of shares AT 3,139 - - 3,139
Premium arising from BITHRATE S 2R E
issue of shares - 22,523 - 22,523
Equity settled share-based IARR I RERE 2 IRIEREH R 5)
transactions - 11,438 - 11,438
Distribution i - - (1,386) (1,386)
Dividends e\ - (101,033) (4,466) (105,499)
,,,,,,,,,, 3139 (67,072)  (5852) (69,785)
At 31 March 2008 R-BENF=B=1+—8 67,061 587,420 5,531 660,012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T E B RS ER R M

General information

Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are engaged in building
construction, provision of construction/project management
consultancy services, civil engineering construction, electrical and
mechanical engineering installation, renovation and fitting-out, and
property development and investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the board of directors of the Company on 4 July 2008.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

In 2007/08, the Group has adopted the following new standard,
amendment and interpretations issued by the HKICPA that are
effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007.

"Presentation of Financial Statements
— Capital Disclosures”

"Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

“Scope of HKFRS 2"

- HKAS 1 (Amendment)

- HKFRS7
- HK(FRIC)-Int 8
- HK(FRIC)-Int 10 “Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment”
"HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions”

- HK(FRIC) - Int 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 434 /7% % i 7

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures
relating to financial instruments and does not have any
impact on the classification and valuation of the Group’s
financial instruments. The adoption of these new standard and
amendment does not have any significant effect on the results
and financial position of the Group.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards have been published that are mandatory
for the accounting periods of the Group beginning on or after
1 January 2008 or later periods that the Group has not early
adopted:

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after

- HKAS 1 (Revised)
“Presentation of Financial Statements”
- HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs”

1 January 2009
1 January 2009

- HKAS 27 (Revised)
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
- HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 (Amendments)
"Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation”
- HKFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share-based Payment - Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations”
- HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combination”

1 July 2009

1 January 2009

1 January 2009
1 July 2009

- HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
- HK(FRIC) - Int 12 “Service Concession Arrangements”

1 January 2009
1 January 2008
- HK(FRIC) - Int 13 "Customer Loyalty Programmes” 1 July 2008
- HK(FRIC) - Int 14 "HKAS 19 - The Limit on a

Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction” 1 January 2008

The Group has not early adopted the above standards,
amendments and interpretations and is not yet in a position to
state whether substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the financial statements will result.

(i) HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”
requires all owner changes in equity to be presented
in a statement of changes in equity. All comprehensive
income is presented in one statement of comprehensive
income or in two statements (a separate income statement
and a statement of comprehensive income). It requires
presenting a statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period in a complete
set of financial statements when there are retrospective
adjustments or reclassification adjustments. However,
it does not change the recognition, measurement or
disclosure of specific transactions and other events
required by other HKFRSs.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HKAS 23 (Revised) “Borrowing Costs” requires an entity
to capitalise borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
(one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The option
of immediately expensing those borrowing costs will be
removed.

HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” requires non-controlling interests (i.e.
minority interests) to be presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from the equity of the owners of the parent. Total
comprehensive income must be attributed to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control
are accounted for within equity. When control of a
subsidiary is lost, the assets and liabilities and related equity
components of the former subsidiary are derecognised.
Any gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary is measured at
its fair value at the date when control is lost.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 (Amendments) “Puttable Financial
Instruments Obligations Arising on Liquidation” requires
some puttable financial instruments and some financial
instruments that impose on the entity an obligation to
deliver to another party a pro rata share of the net assets of
the entity only on liquidation to be classified as equity.

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) “Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations” clarifies the definition
of “vesting conditions” and specifies the accounting
treatment of “cancellations” by the counterparty to a
share-based payment arrangement. Vesting conditions
are service conditions (which require a counterparty to
complete a specified period of service) and performance
conditions (which require a specified period of service
and specified performance targets to be met) only. All
“non-vesting conditions” and vesting conditions that
are market conditions shall be taken into account when
estimating the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
All cancellations are accounted for as an acceleration of
vesting and the amount that would otherwise have been
recognised over the remainder of the vesting period is
recognised immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: 4 B 758 & M7t

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combination” may bring
more transactions into acquisition accounting as
combinations by contract alone and combinations of
mutual entities are brought into the scope of the standard
and the definition of a business has been amended
slightly. It now states that the elements are ‘capable
of being conducted’ rather than "are conducted and
managed'. It requires considerations (including contingent
consideration), each identifiable asset and liability to be
measured at its acquisition-date fair value, except leases
and insurance contracts, reacquired right, indemnification
assets as well as some assets and liabilities required to
be measured in accordance with other HKFRSs. They are
income taxes, employee benefits, share-based payment
and non current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations. Any non-controlling interest in an acquiree
is measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” replaces HKAS 14 and
aligns segment reporting with the requirements of the
US standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures about segments of
an enterprise and related information’. The new standard
requires a ‘'management approach’, under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that used for
internal reporting purposes.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 12 “Service Concession Arrangements”
applies to contractual arrangements whereby a private
sector operator participates in the development, financing,
operation and maintenance of infrastructure for public
sector services.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 13 “Customer Loyalty Programmes”
clarifies that where goods or services are sold together with
a customer loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points
or free products), the arrangement is a multiple-element
arrangement and the consideration receivable from the
customer is allocated between the components of the
arrangement using fair values.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 "HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction” provides guidance on assessing the
limit in HKAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that
can be recognised as an asset. It also explains how the
pension asset or liability may be affected by a statutory or
contractual minimum funding requirement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 March.

0]

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of
an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & 175 < [T

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associated companies
are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment
in associated companies includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associated company equals or exceeds its
interest in the associated company, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associated company.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to their joint control and
none of the participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted
for by the equity method of accounting. The consolidated
income statement includes the Group's share of the results
of the jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

(c) Foreign currency translation

0)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss and are included in equity directly.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are
taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(d) Intangible assets

()

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (ontinued)
(d) Intangible assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Trademarks and trade names

The use of trademarks and trade names are initially
recognised at cost. Trademarks and trade names have a
definite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Secured contracts

Secured contracts are measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Secured contracts are amortised over
the contract period and carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

(e) Properties

0

(ii)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the companies in the consolidated Group, is classified as
an investment property. Investment property is measured
initially at its cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined
annually by external valuers.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific assets. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are determined
annually by external valuers or management.

Subsequent expenditure is recognised to the asset'’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the income
statement.

Prepaid premium for land lease

Prepaid premium for land lease are up-front payments to
acquire long-term interests in leasee-occupied properties.
The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over the lease period to the income
statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost less accumulated impairment over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Property 5%
Leasehold improvements  over the unexpired period of the lease
Plant and machinery 10-50%
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
other than investment properties is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement.

Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus
an appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress
payments and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises
direct materials, labour and overheads expenses incurred in
bringing the work-in-progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid
by customers and retention are included within trade and other
receivables. The Group presents as a liability the gross amount
due to customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4: 4 B 758 & M7t

2. Summary of significant accounting policies ontiniesy 2. EEETBRE )
(h) Investments (h) R&E

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are either held for trading or are
expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are included
in non-current assets, except for those with maturities
within 12 months of the balance sheet date which are
classified as current assets.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Investments are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are
presented in the income statement in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies ontnuey 2. EEEFTHRME @)
(h) Investments (continued) (h) B&E®

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are
analysed between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences are
recognised in income statement, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the income statement as “gains and
losses from available-for-sale financial assets”. Interest on
available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
income statement when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

In case of debt securities classified as held-to-maturity
investments, significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor or a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments are considered objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to recover the carrying
value of the investments and a provision for impairment will be
made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & 175 & [T

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (ontinued)

(i) Derivative financial instruments and hedging
activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged.

0)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
income statement within “other income/(other operating
expenses)”.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income
statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that
is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable
rate borrowings is recognised in the income statement
within “finance costs”. The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of forward foreign exchange contracts
hedging export sales is recognised in the income statement
within revenue. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised in the income statement. However,
when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset (for example, inventory
or fixed assets), the gains and losses previously deferred
in equity are transferred from equity and included in the
initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred
amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of sale in case of
inventory, or in depreciation in case of fixed assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
income statement. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the
income statement within “other income/(other operating
expenses)”.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

()

(k)

)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

activities (continued)

(ii) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss
Certain derivative instruments which do not qualify for
hedge accounting are accounted for as derivatives at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of
these derivative instruments are recognised immediately
in the income statement within “other income/(other
operating expenses)”.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessors are accounted for as operating
leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessors are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.

(ii) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease,
the asset is included in the balance sheet based on the
nature of the asset. Lease income from operating lease
is recognised over the term of the lease on a straight-line
basis.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
and considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less from the date of investment
and bank overdrafts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 475 175 &< [T

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (ontinued)
(m) Impairment of assets

(n)

(o)

(p)

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payable
Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries,
associated companies and jointly controlled entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred taxation liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associated companies
and jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4: 4 B 758 & M7t

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (ontinued)
(s) Related company

A related company is a company in which a director or a major

shareholder of the company has a significant direct or indirect

beneficial interest.

(t)

Employee benefits

)

(i)

Retirement benefits

The Group contributes to two defined contribution
retirement schemes, namely Hsin Chong Group Retirement
Fund Scheme (“RFS”) and Hsin Chong Group Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF"”). The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The Group’s
contributions to RFS and MPF are based on rates ranging
from 5% to 10% of employees’ salaries depending on
length of service and are expensed as incurred in the
income statement. The contributions to RFS are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Such forfeited amounts are retained in the
funds for the benefit of other employees.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in
PRC participate in the municipal government contribution
scheme whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible
employees. The municipal government of the PRC is
responsible for the entire benefit obligations payable to the
retired employees. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions
required by the scheme. The Group’s contributions to the
scheme are expensed as incurred.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

94 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008

2. FEESTHEBE
(s) BEEATH
BREARRARGIZES RN T ERFHE KM
BERBERERER AT °

==

() EEEF

()

(i)

RRER
REBRMBREHRFCRAEHER > D5l
RIERERAREF (RN E]) R
ERERFIMERAESHE([RESFE ) -
ZEEEMPFAEEMBUGEEATE I
HEAREBZEENR - AEBN TRASE
IRRBEEAEAZHRERBEEFEED
ZHEEADZ TEE  RFERERBFEM
E o WRBRRRASIRMAX - BRIKEFEIZ
AT & ER YR B IR % at 8 R
E2EEFZBHTMRED - UM Z HFRER
BRZESARBEMEE ZF5

REBEPEARKME((HEDBFZERER
Bl B EIBTE R AR S B H BT HR
FHE Bl B A RARZKA B AR ER
EERMRKEFMHZK - hETMBAFEEX
N ERABEMBEMALRE - NEEFLZA
SHEIFASE 2 E— R ERRIEZE BIRER
BIEHMR - AEBHZET I ZHAIREE
R S S8

BERZERS
BEEZZERERIRBARBENERES
RZZERER - AEEBEAERLER
BERRHEZIRBIEHES FRRIEAMBK
BT RERE

BB 2R RERER 8 EXMREHER -



2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation

(u)

(iv)

(v)

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted. At
each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other
borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the
year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 475 7% % [T

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (ontnuey 2. EEEFTHREE @)

(v) Revenue recognition (v) WEHER
Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the BRKAREERTR - B TRREAZERRE
outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated AISAE SRR RERAR KL 2B EE
reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of /\%’JW$EE@E c BREAN BRI EME
contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When BEHRAFEEEENE A%ﬁ”&ﬁ?&ﬁﬂﬁé%’]

the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably and it is probable that the contract will be profitable,
contract revenue is recognised over the period of the contract.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been
agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the
stage of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of
contract completion and the gross billing value of contracting
work can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of a
contract is established by reference to the gross billing value of
contracting work to date as compared to the total contract sum
receivable under the contracts.

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised on
completion of the sale and purchase agreements.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis.

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income,
secretarial and accountancy fee income, consultancy fee income
and services centre charges are recognised when the services are
rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Interest income on held-to-maturity investments is recognised
on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

(w) Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting and
operating activities, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format and
geographical segments as secondary reporting format.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Segment reporting (continued)

3.

(x)

(y)

(2)

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets
consist primarily of intangible assets, investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, inventories, receivables and
operating cash. Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities
and exclude taxation. Capital expenditure comprises additions
to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenues are
presented based on the country in which the customer is located
and total assets and capital expenditure are presented based on
where the assets are located.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary holder of the guarantee (i.e. the
holder) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at their
fair values, and subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the
amount initially recognised less accumulated amortisation; and
(ii) the amount required to be settled by the guarantor in respect
of the financial guarantee contracts at the balance sheet date.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
equity holders.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Financial risk management

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group'’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. The Group uses derivative
instruments to hedge foreign exchange risk exposures.

2. FESTHERBE @)
(w) 2EBRE@®E

(x)

(y)

(2)
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3.

Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

)

(1)

)

€)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Macau
and the Mainland China. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

The Group monitors foreign exchange exposed by
proper synchronisation of receipts and payments
in different operating currencies, and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure by
using foreign exchange forward contracts when the
need arises. At year end, the Group has outstanding
forward exchange contracts of HK$33 million
including the Euro dollar (“"EURO") and Great
Britain Pound (“GBP"). The Group is also exposed to
Renminbi (“RMB") fluctuation, the net investment of
which has not been hedged.

As at 31 March 2008, if RMB, EURO and GBP had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, 10% and 1%
(2007: 5%, 10% and 10% respectively) respectively
against Hong Kong dollars with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$8.6 million (2007:
HK$5.4 million) higher/(lower), mainly as a result of
net foreign exchange gains/(losses) on translation
of foreign currencies denominated trade and other
receivables, cash and bank balances and trade and
other payables, together with forward contracts
against EURO and GBP.

Interest rate risk

Apart from held-to-maturity investments which
bear fixed interest rates and which are subject to
fair value interest rate risk, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilties. The
Group considers the interest rate risk exposure is not
significant.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
through investments held by the Group classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Group
considers the price risk exposure is not material.
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3.

(ii)

(iii)

Financial risk management (continued) 3. BEERERE .
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MBEMEZE@)
Credit risk (i) EERR
Credit risk of the Group arises from deposits, cash REBEZ FERBKREFR - R RIRTTEHE
and bank balances, held-to-maturity investments and 7 BEIH2REREWERR -
receivables.
To manage the credit risk associated with deposits, cash REBEN  REMRTEERFEIH
and bank balances and held-to-maturity investments, REZHBEERR - KIEDER RER
most of the deposits, cash and bank balances and held- RITHEFRIFER B2 RE X EFHNER
to-maturity investments are held in banks with minimum HTREEHEETRTERPrime-22 3R
short-term rating rated as Prime-2 by Moody’s unless 17 RIEFBEZERSITHAE © Prime-2BR
otherwise approved by the Board of Directors. Prime-2 HEEARAKEHE R EBREEREN -
indicates that they have a strong ability to repay short-term
debt obligations.
To manage the credit risk associated with receivables the REBRUERRZEREERR  A5EE
Group adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of NS - STEEPREBAZGEEE
the customer and debtors, taking into accounts of their % WEBEMBMR LBELS -
financial position and past experience.
Liquidity risk (i) RBESRR
The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management AEERBRENRBESERER 01
which includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and HERERITEHBRKIRE - WHEBRISTH
cash, and having available funding through an adequate HEEEERAESUSHHAESHNEY
amount of committed credit facilities.
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s TRESMEBRAARNMBAR - &R
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based AR EER - RIBEREERES05H
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the HEFRIAEBET O - ERABBEN S5
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the REHNMRPERNRSRE -
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Group £
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and5
1 year years years Total

PR-F —§2=F —FZ5F #E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT
At 31 March 2008 R-EEN\F=A=1+—H
Payables and accruals FERNBRT N T B R 764,572 20,892 2,884 788,348
Amounts due to minority shareholders — fEff > &R 0B 27,028 - - 27,028
Total Feko] 791,600 20,892 2,884 815,376
At 31 March 2007 RZTTLF=A=1—H
Bank loan RITER 25,770 = = 25,770
Payables and accruals ENEZRESTER 885,037 59,157 3,338 947,532
Amounts due to minority shareholders — fEff D&k R 7B 36,805 - - 36,805
Total FCEd] 947,612 59,157 3,338 1,010,107
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3.

Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

I EMREE @

(a) MH¥EBREZE®

(i) REBESRB(E)
Company &2 7]
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5
1 year years years Total
DPR-F —FB-F —EZREF HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BT BETT
At 31 March 2008 R-ZEE\F=A=1+—H
Payables and accruals ENETRESER 10,745 - - 10,745
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBAREZE 81,141 - - 81,141
Total Bz 91,886 - - 91,886
At 31 March 2007 R+ FE=A=1+—H
Payables and accruals ENETRESER 7,278 - - 7,278
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARZE 140,978 - - 140,978
Total Bz 148,256 - - 148,256

(b) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to
capitalisation ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt
(calculated as total bank borrowings) divided by total capital
(calculated as total equity plus total debt).

The Group maintains its policy of conservative capital
management and was debt free at the balance sheet date
(2007: debt to capitalisation ratio at 4.0%).

The calculation of debt to capitalisation ratios at 31 March 2008
and 2007 were as follows:

(b) EXREBRERE

AEEESEEN R BRRREREEIEFELE
MEEBRELENR  FREFAATRE
¥ FFRERBEEMASRARREE M - WS
RENEREBUREE KR -

AEBERBEEHEALREZENR - ZLLER
HaEAMRRITER)RARER(AEEREINE
BE)E -

AEEERENEZECESETREBR  REE
AMECAEE( TS LF  AEHEALLRA
4.0%) °

KT \FR-_FRLF=A=t+—A2AMH
AL RN HIT ¢

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Total debt waEE - 25,000
Total equity 1R 660,012 595,349
Total capital 4B A 660,012 620,349
Debt to capitalisation ratio BEHERLE 0.0% 4.0%
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3.

Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Capital risk management (continued)

(c)

As at 31 March 2008, the Group was able to maintain a net
cash position of HK$635.7 million (2007: HK$650.8 million). Net
cash position is the sum of deposits, cash and bank balances less
bank loans.

Fair Value estimation

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade and other
receivables and the carrying value of trade and other payables
approximate their fair values.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group make estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions having a
significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below:

(a) Construction contracts

As explained in note 2(v), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management’s estimation of the total outcome
of the construction contract, as well as the work done to
date. The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract claims
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the management
on the basis of quotations from time to time provided by
the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the budget
accurate and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic
review on the management budgets by comparing the
budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in estimating
the total contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
contract claims which may have impact in terms of percentage
of completion and job profit taken.

3.

I EMRERE @
(b) EXEMEE@®

(9]
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4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(b) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

(c)

The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of trading stock
and property under development for sale according to their
estimated net realisable value based on assessment of past
experience and net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
realised. The assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.

5. Revenue and segment information
The Group is principally engaged in building construction, provision
of construction/project management consultancy services, civil
engineering construction, electrical and mechanical engineering
installation, renovation and fitting-out, and property development
and investment.

Revenue represents gross billing value of contracting work to
third parties, sales proceeds and rental income from development
properties, rental income from investment properties and rental
related income as follows:

4. BERGFEFIRBRR®

(b) RERRME
REBRIZRBERR AR CIZE KRR DT
ZFHERASBEREHE AEE - i EZE
YRR NREERE  BESEPNERERR
SR EWGRAR SR - 19AEHARE RE A HIET -

(0 EERME
AEEFGEERFERBEHERRTYEZRE
BERNFHEBEERS LN A2 FE R
RIOMBBERSHNHEEFERRE - EAEM
HIRA BN E R RREER AR REHA
1R - ARARHE R 2 ER A R fhET -

W K 73 FRE R
AEEEEHFETRE RIS HE TREMR
% ATRRE RERETR EEREEIR.
DREERRRE -

WaHREEHRETE=EZANTIRMERE - WEHR
ZIHEMBIREESWA - REMEZHS WA K HEHE
ERZHA - FHEWT

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Contract revenue BTNk 2,440,449 2,731,595
Sales proceeds HEZ TS

— stocks of properties —MEEE 27,207 253,202

Rental income HedA

— stocks of properties —MEFE 2,789 1,915

— investment properties -t /E3 17,939 14,531

Rental related income HAAE R 2 WA 6,343 5,923

2,494,727 3,007,166
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5. Revenue and segment information (ontinued) 5. WmkDEER®

Primary reporting format: business segments FESERE  EBSE
The Group is organised into four major business segments, being AEFBEDANBETBER  SRAEFEENRTAT
building construction and civil engineering, electrical and mechanical 12 OMBERETIR WERERBERHMER (XS
installation, property development and rental and other operations AR o
(mainly associated companies).
Building Electrical Property
construction and and mechanical ~ development Other
civil engineering installation and rental operations Total
BFBRERIATIR EREIR  YEREREE Hn R “am
2008 2008 2008 2008 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT BB BRI BRI
Revenue W 1,973,425 467,024 54,278 - 2,494,727
Segment results DEEE 82,284 22,069 22,135 (13) 126,475
Financial and securities income B REFBA 21,495
Unallocated corporate expenses, AARAFEY
net of income MBI (26,115)
Operating profit vl 121,855
Finance costs BERA (1,661) (25) - - (1,686)
Share of results of ElLEE
- Jointly controlled entities — R e 13,259 - - - 13,259
- Associated companies —BE5E - - 163 2,39 2,557
Profit before income tax FrERATET 135,985
Income tax expense iK=sidaba (14,946)
Profit for the year REEHF 121,039
Segment assets PEEE 869,908 221,280 327,452 41 1,418,681
Associated companies it - - 247 863 1,110
Jointly controlled entities RS T 49,300 - - - 49,300
Deferred income tax assets EIEFEHEE 226 - - - 226
Unallocated assets FOBEE 64,515
Total assets BBE 1,533,832
Segment liabilities PEaE (624,736) (164,121) (63,342) (7) (852,206)
Unallocated liabilities *ofaE (10,746)
Current income tax liabilities EHFERAs (10,868)
Total liabilities BER (873,820)
Capital and reserves attributable to AAFIREREE AL
the Company's equity holders BRR S (654,481)
Minority interests DR (5,531)
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE (1,533,832)
Capital expenditure BARMGREY (5,544) (80) - - (5,624)
Depreciation nE (1,435) (128) (5,012) (1) (6,576)
Amortisation s - (600) (936) - (1,536)
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment REMENTERN/ (BE)
properties, net ek
-in Hong Kong -5 - - 7,529 - 7,529
- outside Hong Kong — BB = = (4,306) = (4,306)
Write back of impairment AN REBRRE
loss on prepaid premium EiRmE
for land lease - - 3,010 - 3,010
Impairment loss on a property EBBZERERE
in Hong Kong - - (4,352) - (4,352)
Impairment loss on stocks of properties aRBEMNZYERS
in Guangzhou, PRC HEER = - (2,642) - (2,642)
Write back of impairment ERB 7 ENETSHE
loss on stocks of car park EE
properties in Hong Kong - - 1,733 - 1,733
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5. Revenue and segment information (continued) 5. WERDEER @
Primary reporting format: business segments (continued) TELERE  EB0E®
Building Electrical Property
constructionand  and mechanical development Other
civil engineering installation and rental operations Total
BFRERTATIR BEREIR  MEERREE K k]
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BETT
Revenue s 2,096,080 635,515 275,571 - 3,007,166
Segment results DR 59,368 (8,914) 62,330* 42) 112,742
Financial and securities income BIBRESFBA 21374
Unallocated corporate expenses, AORARRY
net of income MBI (15,285)
Operating profit SWAAEF| 118,831
Finance costs BARA (6,294) (26) - - (6,320)
Share of results of JEfR%EE
- Jointly controlled entities —tREiEsEE (3,920) - - - (3,920)
- Associated companies —B5E - - 428 13,580" 14,008
Profit before income tax FrERBTEF 122,599
Income tax expense PRSI (8,568)
Profit for the year REEHEF 114,031
Segment assets NEEE 979,604 165,534 356,124 42 1,501,304
Associated companies Bi5% - - 5,281 1,172 6,453
Jointly controlled entities SR TS 13,353 - - - 13,353
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHEE 304 1,609 227 - 2,140
Unallocated assets FOREBE 100,446
Total assets BRE 1,623,696
Segment liabilities SEEE (810,384) (136,745) (68,874) (7) (1,016,010)
Unallocated liabilities APREE (7,278)
Current income tax liabilities EHSHaR (5.059)
Total liabilities BEE (1,028,347)
Capital and reserves attributable to AREERRE NER
the Company's equity holders BAREE (586,515)
Minority interests DY (8,834)
Total equity and liabilities BESRERE (1,623,696)
Capital expenditure BAMEY (706) (247) - - (953)
Depreciation nE (2,168) (156) (5,024) @) (7,352)
Amortisation b - (2,012) (936) - (2,948)
Write off of goodwill PEEM - (1,828) - - (1,828)
Net fair value gain on investment properties %A% 2 REME A T(E
in Hong Kong B = - 4,251 - 4,251
Write back of impairment loss on THREREM 2 L EE RS
a property under development MEREFERE
for sale in Guangzhou, PRC - - 38,403 - 38,403
#  Included HK$38.4 million write back of impairment loss on a property under #  BEE-ECRFEENZHEEERPYERERS
development for sale in Guangzhou, PRC. 8Bl 5 #538,400,0007T °
3 Included HK$10.9 million profit on disposal of a hotel property in Sai Wan, * BENE -BUREBEAREEYE ZEFNEE
Hong Kong. 10,900,0007T °
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5. Revenue and segment information ontinued) 5. W&ER7EER @
Secondary reporting format: geographical segments REIERS  HESE

Total Capital

Revenue assets expenditure

g wmEE BEARMEX

2008 2008 2008

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BET T BET T

Hong Kong EFB 1,093,941 981,733 (5,376)

Macau S 1,059,312 182,558 (244)

PRC h 309,420 246,572 4)

Other Hib 32,054 7,818 -

2,494,727 1,418,681 (5,624)
Associated companies b 1,110
Jointly controlled entities HE T e 49,300
Deferred income tax assets EEFSHMEE 226
Unallocated assets ROMEE 64,515
Total assets A E 1,533,832

Total Capital

Revenue assets  expenditure

Wz BEE BEARMERE

2007 2007 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T

Hong Kong BB 1,575,359 1,012,326 (767)

Macau JRFY 803,440 184,783 (148)

PRC ==Y5] 623,718 298,666 (38)

Other Hb 4,649 5,529 -

3,007,166 1,501,304 (953)
Associated companies B 55t 6,453
Jointly controlled entities HEEH TS 13,353
Deferred income tax assets B ERAE 2,140
Unallocated assets KO EE 100,446
Total assets WEE 1,623,696
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Other income 6. HAA
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTT BT T
Other gains - net HitsmH — 28
Fair value loss on financial assets BRATE A RFSEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss W EEATERBE = (277)
Gain on disposal and redemption HE MERIRAFERA
of financial assets at fair value wANRER MEE
through profit or loss SHF 59 6,356
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHE 2 B EERF
financial asset = 756
Fair value gain on an investment property EBEBZREMELNTERF
in Hong Kong 10,750 6,251
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A T = 4,776
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEYE BBERRE SN FRE
and equipment 252 1,126
Net exchange gain BEE 34 Y25 % 58 1,004 1,543
Write back of impairment loss on Ta N+ 30 7E & B R (A R 1R [ 4
prepaid premium for land lease 3,010 -
Write back of impairment loss on stocks B2 BN YT EREREDR
of car park properties in Hong Kong 1,733 =
16,808 20,531
Other Hit
Plant and plant staff hire income AR 1 1E & S B B BE AU 2,065 1,268
Bank interest income RITRI SN 22,134 19,869
Dividend income from financial assets RO ER ARTISEE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 BT EER B 79 184
Service centre charges received from WERERS FEREEAR
related companies ZWA 492 824
Service centre charges received from W IR HRFE T e Rl s B A > Ug A
a jointly controlled entity 676 =
Service centre charges received from WERHRSE TE =77 2 A
third parties 354 -
Secondment fee received from I B R E B fE TR T
a jointly controlled entity R EEZBA = 19
Building management fee income WEREREMNzYE ERERKRA
from a property in Guangzhou, PRC 1,225 =
Miscellaneous Hith 4,504 3,125
31,529 25,289
48,337 45,820
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Expenses by nature

7. BUEED2HX

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Cost of construction RN 2,246,322 2,581,279
Cost of stock of properties sold METFEHE 2R
—land cost — AR A 1,355 7,199
- bank interest —RITHLE 1,358 13,478
— other construction costs — H 3SR AN 24,494 232,454
Depreciation e
— building on medium term —HRERA T 2 T
leasehold land 4,944 4,944
— owned property, plant and equipment —BEEME - WIS REE 1,632 2,408
Amortisation of prepaid premium TEf LA E B A
for land lease 936 936
Amortisation of intangible assets EFEEBR 600 2,012
Impairment loss on a property in Hong Kong £ &4 2 M2 m(E g8 4,352 -
Fair value loss on investment properties BEMENTEEBE
—in Hong Kong —BE 3,221 2,000
— outside Hong Kong — BB 4,306 -
Auditor’s remuneration BRI S 1,925 1,640
Legal and professional fees REINEEE P 3,286 6,401
Operating lease rentals for land T BT LERLYES
and buildings 6,040 6,730
Outgoings in respect of THE 2 BRERX
— investment properties in Hong Kong —EEFBZIREME 6,271 6,736
— owned property in Hong Kong —EEBEEME 3,114 3,350
Staff costs (note 16) B TR A (Pt 16) 81,872 83,130
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHHEZFBEEE
financial assets BRI 2,227 2,000
Net provision for impairment of receivables  FEUBR FR E & & E5E 7,271 2,785
Write off of goodwill Py - 1,828
Others HAh 13,041 11,248
Total cost of sales, general and THERA  TTE R EH A
administrative, and other R R
operating expenses 2,418,567 2,972,558
Other (charge)/impairment loss reversal 8. Hfti(ZH) IREEEER
Other charge for the year is related to a trading stock outside Hong RFEEHM HBANER BN EXTFE - 2FE
Kong. Impairment loss reversal for last year was related to a property ZREEEREBANER SN AT EHRFTY)
under development for sale outside Hong Kong. E3D
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10.

Finance costs 9. BERA
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ERAFNBEEEY
within five years and overdraft BITERRIBEXF S 770 5,501
Others Hib 916 819
1,686 6,320
Directors’ emoluments 10. EEEE
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2008 BEENHE_ZTN\F=ZA=+T—HILFENBISI
is set out below: T~
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and benefits toretirement  Share-based
Fees in kind Bonus scheme  compensation Total
0 RS- 4 BAEF MR AER
EShe RENKE bz 18 HE 5 2R g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Name of directors T BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
David CHU Shu-ho REZ(RZTT+E
(appointed on 19 December 2007)  +=A+HBEEFE) 57 - - - - 57
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin RER(A-ZZLE
(appointed on 19 December 2007)  +=A+HBEZEAE) 57 - - - - 57
WONG Ying-wai TEB(N-ET+E
(appointed on 19 December 2007)  +=A+HBEZEAE) 57 = = - - 57
YEH V-nee ERE(N-TTLF
(resigned on 28 December 2007) +=A=+/\BEHE) 148 626 - 20 - 794
Barry John BUTTIFANT Barry John BUTTIFANT(7
(resigned as an Alternate ZEEHE+-AZTN\B
Director to YEH V-nee on BIEAZ/BRES
28 December 2007 and ER=ZF\E=A
appointed on 22 February 2008) —t+-REZE) 21 - - - - 21
CHAN Ka-kui BRE 200 3,343 5127 162 5418 14,250
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung eSS 200 100 - - = 300
Peter LAU Kwok-kuen £l E 200 100 - - - 300
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho 2EEN_STN\E
(appointed on 23 January 2008) —A-+=REZF) 38 - - - - 38
Abraham SHEK Lai-him FES(N-TT)\&
(appointed on 23 January 2008) —B-+=REZf) 38 = = - - 38
Tobias Josef BROWN Tobias Josef BROWN(A =2 Z/\F
(resigned on 23 January 2008) —A=+=RE) 162 100 - - - 262
Herbert HUI Ho-ming HER(R-EEN\E
(resigned on 23 January 2008) —A=+=REH) 162 100 - - - 262
KWONG Ki-chi BHER-TT+E
(retired on 17 August 2007) NB+LBERE) 75 - - - - 75
1,415 4,369 5127 182 5418 16,511

108 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008



10. Directors’ emoluments (continued)
The remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2007

10. ESEME )

BEEFNBE_ZZLF=A=T—HILFENH2H

is set out below: T :
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and benefits toretirement  Termination  Share-based
Fees in kind Bonus scheme benefits compensation Total
B =8 BN BE UROAER
EZHE  REME bzl HEES REER ZHE pick
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of directors e BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
YEH V-nee 0% 100 894 - 34 - - 1,028
Barry John BUTTIFANT Barry John BUTTIFANT
(Alternate Director to YEH V-nee) (BEpz 7 8REE) - - - - - - -
Rodney Gordon FRANKS Rodney Gordon FRANKS
(resigned on 12 July 2006) (R=ZERELATZARE) 28 1,022 = 4 1,000 = 2,054
CHAN Ka-kui BREH
(appointed on 19 August 2006) (R=ZZRENATNAEZRA) 62 2,047 1,965 84 - 1,140 5,298
KWONG Ki-chi BEX 100 - - - - - 100
Tobias Josef BROWN Tobias Josef BROWN 100 - - - - - 100
Herbert HUI Ho-ming Fidi 100 - - - - - 100
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung Mg 100 - - - - - 100
Peter LAU Kwok-kuen 2@ 100 - - - - - 100
690 3,963 1,965 122 1,000 1,140 8,880

The following shares of the Company were allotted to the directors
upon exercise of their outstanding options during the year (2007: Nil).

@)

(ii)

768,000 shares of the Company were allotted to Mr. YEH V-nee
at an exercise price of HK$0.80 per share upon the exercise of
his 768,000 options granted under the executive share option
scheme adopted on 19 July 1991. Further details of such
options are disclosed in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

6,000,000 shares of the Company were allotted to Mr. CHAN
Ka-kui at an exercise price of HK$0.82 per share upon the
exercise of his 6,000,000 options granted under the executive
share option scheme adopted on 23 August 2002. Further
details of such options are disclosed in note 35(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

No benefit (2007: Nil) arose on shares issued and allotted to directors
of the Company under the employee share subscription scheme of
the Company adopted on 23 August 2002 as no such share allotment
for the year.

None of the directors have waived their rights to receive emoluments
for the year.

NN RESEARFEATTEELRITE Z R MR %
ZARARGD(ZTTHF : &) -

(0}

(ii)

768,000 A A RIR D E AR L ERBE— NN —
FE A+ N ARMHITERA B RBAET BT
50,8070 2 T{EBTE H 768,0001 3R AR E M AL
BTEEREE BRFBOBRRELRET R
RKIFE35(0) °

6,000,0008 A X RN SRR B e £ R IE—TT
ZHENAZ T = BERATTIRA 8 RAFERT B
BEE#0.827T 2 TT{EETT{£H6,000,00017 A
EMEE TRRAEE - FRFABEREERS
B TS IR M EE35(b) ©

HRAFEALERBERARNRAR -_FE-_FNA-+T=
BE@m —HEEZERMAIEERN TARARE
= AR ARBETREEROMEEEFNNE(ZF
TAEFE) -

REEW|EERELWEME 2 #F) -
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11.

12.

Five highest paid employees

There was one director (2007: one) whose emoluments were among
the five highest in the Group and included in the analysis set out in
note 10.

Details of the emoluments paid to the other four (2007: four)
individuals, who are not directors but whose emoluments were
among the five highest in the Group are as follows:

11.

hfussHMES
AEBENSSHWERTOE—EE(—FTLE
B—fi) - EBEEBERHIEEI0R -

HHMA (Z 22 F RN ) REFMAL - BRI
FARREFEBNAEERUSSHHEES - HB
EEHAT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other allowances B R E bR BL 9,176 7,416
Bonuses b2l 336 918
Contributions to retirement scheme BB BRI 340 230
Termination benefits KRIFIRFEE A = 468
Share-based compensation VARG (7 /3 2Bt 2 7 (8 1,141 121
10,993 9,153
Number of individuals
in each band
EEAE
Emolument bands < & E 2008 2007
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 712,000,001 7C — 7% 2,500,000 - 3
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 75#2,500,001 7T — B#3,000,0007T 3 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 75#£3,000,001 7T — ##3,500,0007T 1 -
4 4
Income tax expense 12. FREHIAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year after
application of available tax losses brought forward. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated
income statement represents:

R FE R IEAE R 2 i RBOR IR R
CHRBRERETS 2 HLER(CTTLFATA Y
8 R) REEEFEROER o AEE2EIEFIB
EE AR ERBOR R N S BR 2 BB
5 -

TEEFEBRERINGGIA) ZFEHNT

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Hong Kong profits tax FEEMEH
— provision for the year — RFEBHE 2,637 1,693
Overseas tax SEINE IR
— provision for the year — IAE R 11,232 11,324
Over provision in prior years T FEBERE (837) (3,597)
Net transfer to/(from) deferred income tax BA(B)EEESH %5
(note 31) (B#E31) 1,914 (852)
Income tax expense FriSfi 14,946 8,568
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12.

13.

14.

Income tax expense (continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the
home country of the Company as follows:

12. FrBHiBE 2 o)
AREBEBABHRARNZHBEBRERARNRTAL
BRZHMEMetE 2B miEa =58 T ¢

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Profit before income tax FTER AR A

(excluding share of results of jointly (e EREE LRz

controlled entities and associated TR MR EE)

companies) 120,169 112,511
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% BREI175%(ZEE+E : 175%)

(2007: 17.5%) HE O RIE 21,030 19,689
Effect of different taxation rates in HaBER TR FLE

other countries zEE (8,734) (1,835)
Over provision in prior years AEEHREREG (837) (3,597)
Income not subject to taxation HEIFRFI A (7,914) (6,918)
Expenses not deductible for taxation NI LA e

purposes 7,041 4,552
Temporary differences not recognised RERREHER (559) (372)
Tax losses not recognised ABEERZTIE 7,020 2,219
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FEREAREHER

tax losses B (2,101) (5,170)
Income tax expense S BiF 14,946 8,568

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$40,544,000 (2007: HK$116,577,000).

Dividends
The dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2008 were
HK$101,033,000 (2007: HK$83,074,000).

13. R R EHEEFE AL ER
STARRBMBRE 2 AR RS E ABIEER BE
#40,544,0007C( —ZZZTLF £E%116,577,0007T) °

14. IRE
HE_ZZ) N\F=A=1t—-HILFEDRERE/EE
101,033,0007C( = BB+ 4 A5 #83,074,0007) °

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interim dividend paid of HK5.5 cents Bk A HARR B g AR AR
(2007: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share BEES ST : BE4.00) 36,884 25,561
Proposed final dividend of HK4.0 cents BER R 2RSS TR T E AR
(2007: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share A O — BB F - B4 26,824 25,648
No proposed special dividend EEUREFRIRR B
(2007: HK6.0 cents per ordinary share) (ZZZ+F : GREARES6.0) - 38,471
Additional prior year final and EFEERL AR EEREE B PG
special dividends arising from the 8 2 REA R RIRR S
increase in number of ordinary shares
in issue on the record date 30 =
63,738 89,680
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14.

15.

16.

Dividends (continued)

At the board meeting held on 4 July 2008, the board of directors of
the Company has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK4.0 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2008.
The proposed final dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in the
financial statements until it has been approved by the shareholders at
the forthcoming 2008 annual general meeting of the Company, but
will be reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for the year
ending 31 March 2009.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$123,922,000
(2007: HK$105,399,000) and the weighted average of 650,115,000
shares (2007: weighted average of 639,056,000 shares) in issue
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$123,922,000
and the weighted average of 663,597,000 shares in issue after
adjusting for the potential dilutive effect in respect of outstanding
share options during the year. Diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2007 is same as basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2007 because there was no dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during that year.

14.

15.

B )
R-BT\FLAMASRFrESGGH L AATE
FeEEMEE T \F=A=1t—"HILFEREX
HAAR . AR R ARS M 4.01 © ULERIE R EIAR 230 R 7
A EHREARMRAEMIRE - EEZRERARFRD
BRITZ BTN\ FREBAFRS FERRIERT S
AR EERMABE—_STAF=A=+—HIFE
ZIRBEFDIK

FREF

BRERNRNTDIEARNRN R ERETE ARG ENBE
123,922,000 (ZF T+ F A% %105,399,0007T) &
FRE T2 INEFHNE650,115,0000%( ZTZ+HF
B IEF A% £639,056,0000% )51 & °

BREEANDEARRAEZTE AREZENEE
123,922,0007C KR A ARTT LR A 2 B E B E R B 4F
HEIR Z AN B 1T I F 5 A 21663,597,000 A 7t
H-BE_ZTHF=RA=+—HILFEZERBER
MEGREARMZAR - LTI HRZFELEAET
FEZBEDBITERK -

Staff costs 16. B TR
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Wages, salaries and allowances TE - #8028k
(including directors’ emoluments) (EBEEE#S) 600,804 492,742
(Write back of)/provision for KEAFB(RE), HE
unutilised annual leave (1,264) 2,875
Termination benefits 4 RIS B 3,368 5,198
Contributions to retirement scheme BB SRR 18,065 16,006
Share-based compensation VARG AR BB 2 1 1E 11,438 1,730
632,411 518,551
Charged to cost of sales B8 S E R A (550,539) (435,114)
Capitalised in property under EENMEHBEERPYE
development for sale - (307)
81,872 83,130
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17. Property, plant and equipment

17. M5 ~ #ERNERlE

Group £
Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
Property  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE B BE
nE NELEE BHRE EERRHE "E aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2006 RZZZ FMA-H
Cost A 122,143 22,794 49,476 29,705 4,502 228,620
Accumulated depreciation and ZRMERRE
impairment (57,878) (21,659) (48,473) (26,785) (4,269) (159,064)
Net book value REFE 64,265 1,135 1,003 2,920 233 69,556
Year ended 31 March 2007 BE-ZStEZA=+-HLLEE
Opening net book value ENEERE 64,265 1,135 1,003 2,920 233 69,556
Additions RE - 239 245 469 - 953
Depreciation g (4,944) (295) (434) (1,574) (105) (7,352)
Disposals e - - (34) (98) (14) (146)
Closing net book value EXRREFE 59,321 1,079 780 1,717 114 63,011
At 31 March 2007 RZEE+E=ZA=1—H
Cost AR 122,143 21,435 42,547 24,710 2,398 213,233
Accumulated depreciation and ZRMERAE
impairment (62,822) (20,356) (41,767) (22,993) (2,284) (150,222)
Net book value REFE 59,321 1,079 780 1,717 114 63,011
Year ended 31 March 2008 BZ-Z2T\F-A=t-HLEE
Opening net book value FHREFE 59,321 1,079 780 1717 114 63,011
Additions RE - 3,163 695 989 m 5,624
Depreciation e (4,944) (314) (440) (752) (126) (6,576)
Impairment HIE (4,352) - - - - (4,352)
Disposals HE - - (10) (189) (662) (861)
Closing net book value EREEHE 50,025 3,928 1,025 1,765 103 56,846
At 31 March 2008 R-EBN\F=A=1-H
Cost XA 122,143 24,598 41,870 24,918 1,293 214,822
Accumulated depreciation and ZRTERRE
impairment (72,118) (20,670) (40,845) (23,153) (1,190) (157,976)
Net book value REFE 50,025 3,928 1,025 1,765 103 56,846
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

17. ¥)% > B XRHE e

Company X2 7]
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE &#H - BE

L ES TS HERZE RE FLE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT IT BT BT IT
At 1 April 2006 RZZETRFMNA—H
Cost DN 8,848 13,373 2,897 25,118
Accumulated depreciation BiEE (8,067) (12,104) (2,811) (22,982)
Net book value BREFE 781 1,269 86 2,136
Year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TTHF=-A=+—HIFE
Opening net book value FHREFE 781 1,269 86 2,136
Additions RE 25 209 - 234
Depreciation e (177) (956) (71) (1,204)
Disposals HeE - (43) (14) (57)
Closing net book value FRIEEFE 629 479 1 1,109
At 31 March 2007 R-ZET+HF=H=+—H
Cost (DN 7,275 9,015 1,172 17,462
Accumulated depreciation SREITE (6,646) (8,536) 1,171) (16,353)
Net book value BREFE 629 479 1 1,109
Year ended 31 March 2008 BE-ZENE=A=+—RHLEE
Opening net book value FEREFE 629 479 1 1,109
Additions NE 17 696 757 1,470
Depreciation e (168) (314) (96) (578)
Disposals HeE - (21) (662) (683)
Closing net book value FREEFE 478 840 - 1,318
At 31 March 2008 R-BENFE=R=+—H
Cost [p#%N 7,292 9,598 47 16,937
Accumulated depreciation SiEineE (6,814) (8,758) (47) (15,619)
Net book value BRE R (E 478 840 - 1,318
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18. Investment properties

18. REWZE

Group £8
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 April RUA—H 121,277 112,720
Transfer from property under ERAHNERRERYE
development for sale - 4,306
Fair value gain NHERN 10,750 6,251
Fair value loss NS5 =] (7,527) (2,000)
At 31 March R=A=+—8 124,500 121,277
The Group'’s interests in investment properties are analysed as REBREMERROTWT ¢
follows:
Group £
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
In Hong Kong, held on leases of EEE  HAEZIEY
below 10 years (note a) D10 (FfsEa) 65,000 68,221
In Hong Kong, held on leases of EEE  HHEZEH
between 10 years and 50 years (note a) NF10FEE504 (Mista) 59,500 48,750
In China, held on leases of between HRE - 52
10 years and 50 years (note b) T F 10 =504 (KfiEb) = 4,306
124,500 121,277

Notes:

(@)  The properties were revalued on the basis of its open market value by an
independent professional firm of surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited.

(b)  The property was revalued on the basis of its open market value by

management.

In the consolidated income statement, there was no general and
administrative expenses relating to the investment property in Hong

Kong that was unlet (2007: HK$157,000).

MiEE

(a) MEMBIHENEMTHIDATETERABRE
ARAMEEM -

(b) MEHEEEZEAFTESME -

FHREABERATES R —BEABZREMEH
MARHZBABMNZITRAX(ZSES LT AEE
157,0007T) °
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19. Prepaid premium for land lease

19. AN LEEER

Group £8
2008 2007

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
At 1 April RMEA—H 37,663 38,599
Amortisation o (936) (936)
Write back of impairment SB[ 1 3,010 -
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 39,737 37,663
The Group's interest in prepaid premium for land lease is analysed as REBEN T HHAEER 2SO
follows:

Group £
2008 2007

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
In Hong Kong, held on lease of RS HH AN

below 50 years PRATE 39,737 37,663
20. Intangible assets 20. ML EE
Group &8
Trademarks and Secured
trade names contracts Total
BEREREE BMBEH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T

Year ended 31 March 2007 BE_TT+F=-A=-+—HIFE
Opening net book value FEREFE 2,550 1,412 3,962
Amortisation i (600) (1,412) (2,012)
Closing net book value FRIEEFE 1,950 - 1,950
At 31 March 2007 R-ET+F=A=+—H
Cost AR 3,000 3,740 6,740
Accumulated amortisation B FEEE Y (1,050) (3,740) (4,790)
Net book value BREFE 1,950 - 1,950
Year ended 31 March 2008 BEE-_EENF=ZA=1+—HLEE
Opening net book value FEREFE 1,950 - 1,950
Amortisation ha (600) - (600)
Closing net book value FRIEEFE 1,350 - 1,350
At 31 March 2008 R-BENEFE=ZA=+—H
Cost AR 3,000 - 3,000
Accumulated amortisation B FEEE Y (1,650) - (1,650)
Net book value BREFE 1,350 - 1,350
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20. Intangible assets (continued)

21.

The use of trademarks and trade names is under the Trade Mark
Licence Deed for the purpose of continuity of the brand name — “Hsin
Chong Aster” in the electrical and mechanical industry in Hong Kong,
Macau and the Mainland China for a fixed period of 5 years up to July
2010.

The amortisation for the year is included in other operating expenses
in the consolidated income statement.

20.

B EE @
FRAEEETERARET ZREREREEZEN &
BRTEEE-ZZEFLtAZAFETHRRES R
PIRFPBEAE RETRENFEFAIFERMEIZ
ShhE AT o

il

REENBHEEA ARG EaR ZEMEERA
T o

Subsidiaries 21. MIBAF]
Company &2 7]
2008 2007

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE AR 3R AR 210,468 210,468
Less: impairment in value B RE (144,850) (84,547)

65,618 125,921

Loans to a subsidiary BERF—HBAA 50,000 30,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries PRI B A B8 549,407 625,366
Less: provision S R (106,718) (179,109)

442,689 446,257
Amounts due to subsidiaries FENHTB A R0 (81,141) (140,978)

Loans to a subsidiary are unsecured, interest bearing at 3 months
HIBOR plus 1% per annum and not repayable within one year. The
effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were 3.32% per
annum for a loan of HK$20,000,000 (2007: not applicable) and
2.82% per annum for a loan of HK$30,000,000 (2007: 5.18%).
The carrying amounts of loans to a subsidiary approximate their fair
values.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an amount
due from a subsidiary of HK$65,243,000 (2007: HK$162,744,000)
which bears interest at Hong Kong prime rate less 2.5% (2007: Hong
Kong prime rate less 2.5%) per annum.

Details of subsidiaries are set out in note 43.

REHEF-—MHBARZERDEER  REBU=E
AEBRITAEFREM%AENERET —FAE
B -HEEABRAEHEH ZEFHE20,000,0007T
BRREAEFE3NR(ZEZTLF : TEA) REFH
#£30,000,000 L EEFI LK AFE2.82% (ZTTLF ¢
5.18%) - B F— B A RREERL QA FEMMT -

E==3)
B

B —Mi B A R 2 FEMGRIE 165,243,000t (=T E 1
FRB1162,744,00070) 1R F B AB B REEF TR
25%(ZZET+FABTEREENER2.5% ) EFE
Gh - HEREURTEN B A RIFETERR - 2B RE
EEERE -

REE 2 M B AR ERFFFINHIEE43 -
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22. Associated companies i
Group £8

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT

Share of net assets FE(EEEFE 598 6,382
Loans to/(from) associated companies BHT(8)5sE 27 (452)
Amount due from an associated company JE L — Bk 5% 2B 485 523
1,110 6,453

Net balances due from associated companies of HK$512,000 (2007:
HK$71,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable
within one year. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

During the year, dividends received from associated companies
amounted to HK$7,862,000 (2007: HK$13,919,000).

The Group's share of assets and liabilities and results of associated

companies are summarised below:

JFE US B SR 45 8 R BB B 15 512,000 T ( — B L FE AB
71,00070) AEET - B REZ—FREE - BREME
BHNFEA

RE RS B SRAL B 557,862,000t ( —EZ+F 5
75%13,919,0007T) °

AEEREHECEE BELREERUREWT

Group £

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Assets BE 1,305 9,618
Liabilities =R (707) (3,236)
Net assets BEFE 598 6,382
Revenue g 361 25,236
Profit before income tax FriS A 7 2,568 14,052
Income tax expense FTERiRX (11) (44)
Profit for the year INEEE T 2,557 14,008

Details of associated companies are set out in note 43.

23. Jointly controlled entities

B Z B SR AR IR M FEA3

23. HEEHEE

Group £H

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Share of net liabilities EBRAaEFE (68,024) (81,283)
Net amounts due from jointly FEU AL R

controlled entities 117,324 94,636

49,300 13,353
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23. Jointly controlled entities (continued HEHZEHERE W@

The Group's share of assets and liabilities and results of jointly ZISE@J?EM/\HE%\JEE?LZEE‘% - BEREERREE
controlled entities are summarised below: NN
Group £
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Current assets RENEE 129,372 49,723
Non-current liabilities ERFEE (124,376) (96,389)
Current liabilities mENaE (73,020) (34,617)
Net liabilities B EFHEE (68,024) (81,283)
Income A 275,715 217,893
Expenses X (262,456) (221,813)
Profit/(loss) for the year NEEHM,(F5E) 13,259 (3,920)
Net amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured, non- f”&l%ﬂ&%l T8 %%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ REREFE-FAE
interest bearing and not repayable within one year. The carrying o AREIEEE N FEMRT
amounts approximate their fair values.
During the year, no dividend was received from jointly controlled RERNBWEH ARG TR RE(Z2TLF  J) -
entities (2007: Nil).
Details of the Group's interests in the jointly controlled entities are as NEBAT L EI TR AT
follows:
Place of incorporation Effective percentage of Proportion
Name and operation Principal activity interest held of voting power
£R ERMREE Ed:3 30 BEHEREE AN (e FApl
2008 2007 2008 2007
Hsin Chong - Yau Lee Joint Venture (note) Unincorporated joint venture Building construction 50% 50% 50% 50%
S -HHABNRIEL) operating in Hong Kong BYEE
EERREZEBEE AENE
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited & ~ Unincorporated joint venture Construction management 60% 60% 50% 50%
Taylor Woodrow International Limited operating in Hong Kong REER
Joint Venture for Kowloon Station (note) EEBRLE BBz AL
(hzt)
Leighton — Hsin Chong Joint Venture (note) Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 50% 50% 50% 50%
BE-HEaEEWE) operating in Hong Kong TATR
EEBRE FBEEz A%
Maeda-Hitachi-Yokogawa- Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 20% 20% 25% 25%
Hsin Chong Joint Venture (note) operating in Hong Kong TATIR
Al - By - - EEE (07) EEBRE FBEEz A0 E
MBH Joint Venture (note) Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 20% 20% 33.33% 33.33%
MBHA &M% (#2) operating in Hong Kong +ATE
EEBRE FBEEz A0 E
Note: MisE
Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreements, the profit sharing for each BEEEEHN 2GR - HAZHIEREFEN .25 B’
year of the jointly controlled entities shall be distributed to the joint venturers in BEAT %1#?%52*&5& ISR -

proportion to their respective interests.
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24,

25.

Held-to-maturity investments 24 HFERIBZRE
Held-to-maturity investments represent bonds that are denominated in BRI RERRUETABM 2ES - YR—EA
United States dollars (“US$") and have a maturity of between 1 month EMFARAIR(EZLFAE-_FAAEMEEA) © M
to 2 years (2007: 2 months to 2.5 years) with nominal amounts of FEA R R — FEFE A B 11,470,0007T - FEET
HK$11,470,000, equivalent to US$1,480,000 (2007: HK$18,910,000, 1,480,000( =TT+ F £#118,910,0007T + FEZXTT
equivalent to US$2,440,000) maturing more than one year and 2,440,000) & A —F A EI B B8 A5 #513,330,0007T
HK$13,330,000, equivalent to US$1,720,000 (2007: HK$12,090,000, E(EZX7T1,720,000( =TT 4F A74#12,090,0007T
equivalent to US$1,560,000) maturing within one year. ZE{E3EIT1,560,000) °
The fair value of held-to-maturity investments is based on quoted FRBE 2B N TEREE25,332,000L(ZFZ+
market bid prices of HK$25,332,000 (2007: HK$31,003,000). FREY31,003,0007T) @ BIRETISAHROELE
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RAFERA - AEBAZ 2GR EERBARZIIHZ
carrying amount of held-to-maturity investments. RE ZHREE °
Available-for-sale financial assets 25. At HE B ERE
Group £H
2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$’'000

BT T BT T
At 1 April AP A—H 5,729 10,069
Impairment loss SEE R (2,227) (2,000)
Disposal He - (2,340)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 3,502 5,729
The impairment loss charged for the year is included in other REERREBBRAAEGEBRR Z HME LR
operating expenses in the consolidated income statement. BT
Available-for-sale financial assets include the followings: AIHE MBEERFEATEIA

Group £8
2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Equity securities BRAE %
Unlisted, at fair value LT BAFE 3,502 5,729
The fair value of unlisted securities are based on cashflows discounted FETEAFNATESBERSRERATSFERIAK
using a rate based on the market interest rate and the risk premium FIETESFBENRRGRE(ZZZENF :62%  =F
specific to the unlisted securities (2008: 6.2%; 2007: 5.5%). T 55%)BRETE -
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26.

27.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

26. BAFEF NaNHEE 2 BEE

Group £
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Equity securities RAE
Listed overseas, at fair value I LT - RATE - 1,315

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other income in the consolidated income
statement.

Property under development for sale

BAHEFANBNREBERCHBEE 2 A HEZHERL
BhEGFAEER CHEMBBART -

27 EHEREPYE

Group £E
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Property under development for sale, HHEBREPYE - ZEA
at cost - 41,265
Less: accumulated impairment o 2REEE - (4,465)
- 36,800
Property under development for sale as at 31 March 2007 represents REZZETHF=A=T—AHHERERPYETUNF
a project undertaken by a subsidiary of the Group to develop, J% N &R - HRmBEN18215F K ZXERE -
construct and sell residential units and shop units on a site of —SERBAREERR HERHEEEEYEER

approximately 18,215 sq.m. at Wen Chang Pavilion located in Li
Wan District, Guangzhou, China. The subsidiary was established in
the form of a joint venture company under the laws of China with a
period of operation of twenty years from 14 December 1995.

Property under development for sale with carrying value of
HK$36,800,000 as at 31 March 2007 represented the commercial
units of Wen Chang Pavilion. Following the issuance of completion
certificate of commercial units in March 2008, the Group transferred
the commercial units from property under development for sale to
stock.

ﬁ o ZMBARRBPEIAFIASBLE T XKL - &
KEHR —TFH-NNARF+ A +IOAR -

—ETT+F= =+ —BRAEE A 36,800,0007T 2
HEEERPVEANERE ZEFMELN - RZTTN
FZAEBEMERRTERER  AEEBHHES
BYVM¥EBTIATFE -
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28. Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

28 FEREZERTRE

Group £H
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYT T BT T
Gross amounts due from customers EREFZ TIEREEE
for contract work (Note) (MFEE) 144,336 233,590
Raw materials, at cost Bk - HRAA 1,811 1,574
Stocks of car park properties, at cost BAYERFS R 60,184 59,130
Less: impairment in value B ORE (30,853) (33,265)
Stocks of car park properties, BUMEFE
at net realisable value R #FE 29,331 25,865
Stocks of commercial properties, at cost BEYETE - R 48,191 -
Less: impairment in value B ORE (9,513) -
Stocks of commercial properties, GEbEZEA
at net realisable value R #FE 38,678 -
Stocks of residential properties, at cost FEMEFTE  ERA 14,276 35,348
Less: impairment in value B RME = (3,822)
Stocks of residential properties, FEMHEFE -
at net realisable value wRERFE 14276 31,526
228,432 292,555
Note: Kt -
Cost plus attributable profit less B A DN FE A4 L
foreseeable losses AEREE 4,348,467 4,620,502
Less: progress payments received B BMR R TAZERAR
and receivable (4,251,707) (4,400,863)
Contracting work-in-progress R TR 96,760 219,639
Representing: (e
Gross amounts due from customers for FEkEzEh TRIENSE
contract work included in stocks and EWEFE z TRRKIEERE
contracting work-in-progress 144,336 233,590
Gross amounts due to customers for FENERRESERETEE
contract work included in payables ERERFEZ TEKIEERE
and accruals (47,576) (13,951)
96,760 219,639

MR-ZENF=ZA=+—80 " BREZLRENLIE
TERREFREZIRBANRECA AEE
152,446,0007T( ZEZ+F A5%137,332,0007T) °

As at 31 March 2008, retentions held by customers for contract
work included in receivables and prepayments amounted to
HK$152,446,000 (2007: HK$137,332,000).

122 Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. Annual Report 2007/2008



29. Receivables and prepayments

29. EIWERA R FEN €

Group &8 Company £2 7
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BT T ABETT
Trade receivables (note 29(a)) B SRR (F1EE29(a))
— third parties o =] 190,666 149,449 - -
- related company —5EAT = 243 - _
— jointly controlled entity — RS T 2,004 = - _
Retention receivables (note 29(a)) FEURE S (Fi3E29(a))
— third parties —%=h 152,219 133,711 - -
— related company —BERT - 3,748 - -
— jointly controlled entity — HE T 354 - - _
— provision for impairment — BB (127) (127) - -
Other receivables (note 29(b)) Hib U R (HFE29(b))
— third parties - =y 42,539 52,447 2,168 1,838
- related companies —BEELRT 48 2,819 48 99
— jointly controlled entities — AT 3,550 2,573 - -
— provision for impairment —RERHE (25,439) (16,681) - -
Deposits and prepayments ReNRENE 2,664 2,632 969 421
Forward foreign exchange contracts — 4ME:ix H& 49 (Fftah)
(note) 35 895 - 895
368,513 331,709 3,185 3,253
Note: Mi3E

Forward foreign exchange contracts represent derivatives used for hedging foreign
currency risk. These contracts do not qualify for hedge accounting and therefore
were recognised as derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Comany’s receivables

SNERHIEOREREMIINEERABRMZHNITET
B BEANTARAENEE  RtBRAREAT
Bt AGRNEBERZITESRTA -

FEERARBREPRARANEREAEATIEER

and prepayments are denominated in the following currencies: B
Group &8 Company £2 7

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BETT B¥TT AETT
Hong Kong Dollar ot 233,519 262,644 2,789 2,788
Renminbi AR 42,999 44,635 - -
Macau Pataca pligka3 83,006 20,595 - -
Others Hih 8,989 3,835 396 465
368,513 331,709 3,185 3,253
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29. Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

As at 31 March, the aging analysis of trade and retention
receivables is as follows:

29. BRI R AN £ @)
(@) EZRRESERRNR

0

R=ZA=1—0  EZRRESERURRZ
FRECOHTEAT -

Group £8

Not yet due 1 to 30 days 31to90days 91to180days  Over 180 days Total

-Xz =t-% nt-XE LS ES
REH =X EATR —-BNTX Mk ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT BB BETT BB BETT BB
Balance at 31 March 2008 —ZBN5=A=+-RA%e 203,958 92,723 5,839 4,939 37,657 345,116
Balance at 31 March 2007 —ZZ+E=f=t+—-H%&% 222,561 10,635 274 12,314 41,240 287,024

As at 31 March 2008, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing
as there was no history of default of the customers.

The Group's credit terms for a contracting business and
property rental are negotiated with and entered into
under normal commercial terms with its trade customers.
Retention money receivables in respect of contracting
business are settled in accordance with the terms of
respective contracts. Rental income is billed in advance of
the rental period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
trade and retention receivables, as the Group has a large
number of customers.

Depending on the credit history and financial position
of individual customer, trade and retention receivables
that are less than 180 days past due are not considered
impaired. As at 31 March 2008, trade and retention
receivables of HK$37,657,000 (2007: HK$41,240,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default and there is no objective evidence that
the receivables are not fully collectible.

As at 31 March 2008, a retention receivable of
HK$127,000 (2007: HK$127,000) was impaired and was
fully provided for in prior years. The balance was aged over
180 days.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R=FENF=A=+—8 - HREMOE
W R & TR - RARA
R KBRS -

AEBRZESNEBEYERE 2 EEGN
ERR-REOEGRETPEANEL - 2
HEE K 2 RURE S RRIER G K 2 FREE
B MBWARINE AR EMARERER
U o

HRAEERFPRETD MBS RRES
IR R EEE R 2 AR -

BRIBREF 215 B8 &V kR
E B S RIRE S ERERZE R 180
AT ERBEEZEB - RZTEZENF=
A=+—R8 BES3RRESERERA
737,657,000 L (ZETLF BB
41,240,0007T ) & B @ HAB I £ E o 1%
FRIBH & Z B3 B3R B HE X GE XL 8RR 8 L
BE  NMERBEBRBERZSERREREE
2 o

R-ZZEENF=ZA=+—8 " RELEK
RN BBE 127,000 ( Z ST F HBE
127,00070) & B 18 (E 2 S o thisek
LB BHI180K ©



29. Receivables and prepayments (continued)

29. BWBRA R FE € o)

(b) Other receivables (b) HihFEUWERR
Group &5
(i)  As at 31 March, the aging analysis of other receivables of () R=ZA=+—8 ' XEEHMERERRZE
the Group is as follows: O -
Group £8
Not yet due 1to 30 days 31to90days 91to180days  Over 180 days Total
-XE =t+-X ht-%Z% LSS
REH =tx BRTX -BNATX HE 8y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 31 March 2008 —ZENZ=fA=+-RA&# 9,323 3,646 1,938 844 4,947 20,698
Balance at 31 March 2007 —ZEE+E£=F=+—-H&#H 8,433 9,735 6,263 1,374 15,353 41,158

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 March 2008, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing
as there was no history of default of the debtors.

Depending on the credit history and financial position
of individual debtor, other receivables that are less than
180 days past due are not considered impaired. As at 31
March 2008, other receivables of HK$4,947,000 (2007:
HK$15,353,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent debtors for whom there
is no recent history of default and there is no objective
evidence that the receivables are not fully collectible.

As at 31 March 2008, other receivables of HK$25,439,000
(2007: HK$16,681,000) were impaired and were fully
provided for. The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to debtors with a history of default. The aging of
these receivables is as follows:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZZN\F=A=+—8 - MRBBHE
BRI SRR T B TR - BARE
EEINTN: s B

BT EBER A Z 15808k Rk R
T H A EUER R ER D R 180 R T AR A
greXE RZTEENF=A=+—80 -
HAibEUBR K A8 84,947,000 (=2 Z
F A7 #15,353,0007T ) 4 B i #3830 R
B - WERBSREZERIBHRERR
BB BEBA  TEEEIBRETRZEE
IR R A 2 EUE -

RZZEENF=ZA=1+—BEMBERER
A 25439000 (ZETLFABE
16,681,0007T ) £& B 2 18I {E 2 £ s - (@
BB FE R O8I M8 KB R AR sk B TS
A o ZERIIRZ BRIRANT

Group £E
Not yet due 1to30days  Over 180 days Total
REH —XB=+X -—-BNTRHRE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 31 March 2008 —EE\E=A=1+-H#EH 3,384 3,328 18,727 25,439
Balance at 31 March 2007 —ERHE=F=+—HEH 6,094 = 10,587 16,681
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29. Receivables and prepayments ontinued) 29. ERBRR R TN € )
(b) Other receivables (continued) (b) HEWER
Group (continued) £E((%®)
(vy  Movements on the provision for impairment of other (v) EEWERRZREREZEESHNT

receivables are as follows:

Group £H
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 April RMUA—H 16,681 17,336
Exchange differences X =5 1,659 421
Provision for impairment BB E 7,451 3,151
Amount written off as uncollectible By AT Uk E 2 #E (172) (3,861)
Amounts recovered g Bl 2E (180) (366)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 25,439 16,681
Company SN
(i) As at 31 March, the aging analysis of other receivables of i) M=RA=+—RH A2FHEMEBYERTRZ R
the Company is as follows: BT
Company A2 7]
Not yet due 1 to 30 days Total
—XZ
REIH =tx b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 31 March 2008 “EENFZA=T-AKH 2,169 47 2,216
Balance at 31 March 2007 “TTEFZA=t—R&H 1,922 15 1,937
(i) Asat 31 March 2008, for the receivables which are not yet i)y M-ZZTEZN\F=A=+—8  HKk3HarE
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing W EERBE TS TERT BRLE
as there was no history of default of the debtors. B AR
(i) Depending on the credit history and financial position of (i) BFEBEBAZEELERFBEMR
individual debtor, other receivables that are less than 180 TE - HaEUKERFGa H DR 180 R TR B
days past due are not considered impaired. KEXHE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is RAFRA - REEEZ 2 HAEERBRREK
the carrying amount of receivables. The carrying amounts of the R REE - BIRSRZ REMEREXTEE
receivables approximate their fair values. The Group does not o RERE EE A AR R RERER o

hold any collateral as security.
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30. Deposits, cash and bank balances

30. FX - RERBRITER

Group £ Company Z 2 7]

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETT BETFT BETT BT T

Cash at bank and in hand RITEFRIES 77,568 45,184 1,166 468
Short term bank deposits (note i) %EERIRTITIERR (FsEi) 509,457 554,710 35,496 66,144
587,025 599,894 36,662 66,612
Time deposits over three months  F|HR#B:@ =188 2 R1TFK 41,719 = = =
Unrestricted deposits, TEBHIZFR
cash and bank balances B4 RIRITER 628,744 599,894 36,662 66,612
Restricted bank deposits (note ii) R4 R777F (FIEEi) 6,938 75,900 - =
635,682 675,794 36,662 66,612

The effective interest rates on bank deposits at the balance sheet date
range from 0.01% to 4.66% per annum (2007: 0.50% to 5.24% per
annum).

Included in deposits, cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

BITEREEEABRAEACERFRBEEAFR
0.01%%£4.66% (=TT FAFE0.50%%5.24%) °

BT REEESN  BRAFN  RERRITEFZEHM
RIEEREERAT

Group £ Company #A& 2 7]

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT T BT T

Hong Kong Dollar B 307,803 278,932 31,446 7,382
United States Dollar ET 155,740 193,414 5,176 59,195
Renminbi AR 120,717 105,687 - -
Macau Pataca SRFT 38,675 93,229 - -
Singapore Dollar AN T 9,726 751 - -
Others EHih 3,021 3,781 40 35
635,682 675,794 36,662 66,612
Notes: 5T
()  The short term bank deposits of the Group and the Company have original () AEERAREZERBTEIEDIBHER=MEA
maturities of three months or less. FUAT ©

(i) Restricted bank deposits represent:

- Proceeds received from the sale of residential properties in PRC where
the fund is confined to the usage of construction work until the whole
property right is transferred to the developer.

- Pledge given to the banks for granting banking facilities to group
companies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the deposits, cash and bank balances mentioned
above.

@iy  ERBZRITFERTY
—  WKENRPEHEBEEEMEZHERSERK -
WAFRZAEIREBNELETEL B
BIRYENEEEERRS -
—  ARTRHEGERTEEARXRFAMERITES
R

RAFHRE  NEEAR 2 FRERRRABNA EERZ
- Re RRITHEFZREE -
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31. Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%).

The movement of the deferred income tax assets is as follows:

31. EIEFTISH
REFEBHREAEELINEEREREEHR175%
ZEELFER1TS%)ER RS -

EIEPS M EEZEBINT -

Group £H

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 April RrmA—A (2,140) (1,288)
Deferred income tax charged/(credited) to EHRABEERANR Gt Z

consolidated income statement (note 12) RIEFTSH(PFEE12) 1,914 (852)

At 31 March W=A=+—H (226) (2,140)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses AR Z BHIREREMB N EERER - AEBREM=E

carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The
Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$175,080,000 (2007:
HK$144,171,000) to carry forward against future taxable income.

The movement in deferred income tax assets (prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as
follows:

EAARESARRERT G FE R BEAR - XEH
AARERTIEB175,080,000T( — ST LF AEK
144,171,0007T ) ] &5 88 LA $4 7R 8 FE SR FR IR o

FREEMSH AR 2 28 (BF —EBE 2 AR
THADIAT

Group £8
Accelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
BT R BiE wmE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T BT T BEET T BT IT
At 1 April MmA—A (305) (508) (1,835) (780) (2,140) (1,288)
Charged/(credited) to EEABEERA
consolidated income mer,(GtA)
statement 79 203 1,835 (1,055) 1,914 (852)
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H (226) (305) - (1,835) (226) (2,140)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

BEEAERNERANAEERRERAAEERH
MEEFASHS M A — MRS - AR REF B E
EERLEPTSH B EEAEN - st ANEEEHEE - T
B ELGREEABRATIE

Group £H
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deferred income tax assets EIEFREREE (226) (2,140)
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32.

33.

Bank loan 32. RITER
Group £
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BYTT BT
Bank loan, wholly payable within five years BN RAERNEEEE 2 RITER
— secured v - 25,000
- 25,000
Long term bank loan due within one year BR—FREEZRPETER
included under current liabilities BN RBREET - (25,000)
The repayment schedule of long term RERITER 2 B
bank loan is as follows: SN
— within one year —R—F N EFIHR - 25,000
- 25,000
The bank loan as at 31 March 2007 was denominated in Hong Kong R-BTLF=A=T—HAZRITETAEE REM R
BREMERFELS1% °

dollar with the effective interest rate at 5.1% per annum.

Payables and accruals

33. B{TERANESTER

Group £E Company &2 7
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
BET T BT BT T BT T
Trade payables B 5 IR
— third parties —F=5 523,133 703,854 - -
Retention payables ERMRES
— third parties —F=% 146,283 146,846 - -
Other payables, deposits HAEMEER - &S
and accruals Mg E A
— third parties —F=% 165,008 108,888 9,245 7,257
- related companies —ERER T 1,500 1,895 1,500 21
835,924 961,483 10,745 7,278
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s payables AEEBRAAREMNERRESERZERENTIIE
and accruals are denominated in the following currencies: W(E AR
Group £H Company &R F
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BB T T BT T BT T
Hong Kong Dollar B 612,185 769,146 10,745 7,278
Renminbi ARIE 79,320 100,517 - -
Macau Pataca SHRP K 139,280 88,126 - -
Others HAith 5,139 3,694 - -
835,924 961,483 10,745 7,278
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33. Payables and accruals (continued) 33. BENERRKEFER @
As at 31 March, the aging analysis of trade and retention payables is R=EZA=+—0H  EZRRESEMNRFRZ RSN
as follows: I
Group £F

Not yet 1to 30 31t090 91to 180 Over 180
due days days days days Total

—XZE =+—-X hA+—XE -—-BN\+X
REVH =t+X EfAtXR —-BNATX Bt Eb el

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BET T BETT BETT BET T BETT

Balance at —EEN\F=A
31 March 2008 =1+—B#&& 645,098 13,525 140 588 10,065 669,416
Balance at —EEHF=R
31 March 2007 =t+—H##% 830,652 6,198 561 1,347 11,942 850,700
34. Amounts due from/(to) minority shareholders 34. WL (4) D BB RFIE
Amounts due from/(to) minority shareholders are unsecured, FEU () LER R AT EIKIR - R B REETER
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. B o
35. Share capital and share options 35. AN R AR
(a) Share capital (a) B=&
2008 2007
Number Number
of shares HK$'000 of shares HK$'000
BRHEE BT T Min 8 B BT
Authorised: EERA :
Ordinary shares of BRCEBAR
HK$0.1 each BE0.17T 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, issued ERTREE
and fully paid: EERG
At the beginning of the year RER 639,215,662 63,922 639,027,592 63,903
Shares issued pursuant to BIEES
employee share RER DTS
subscription scheme! BATZ IR - - 88,070 9
Shares issued pursuant to REBETHAR
executive share RS2
option schemes? 8172 Bfn? 31,398,000 3,139 100,000 10
At the end of the year RER 670,613,662 67,061 639,215,662 63,922

1 These shares were issued and allotted to a qualifying employee pursuant ZERBBANRRZET_FNAT=BEHR

to the employee share subscription scheme adopted by the Company on 2 EERBROE( S _FREE )BT
23 August 2002 (“2002 Share Scheme”). Further details of the 2002 Share KT —R2EEREEZRG - —TZ—FRE
Scheme are set out in note 35(d). sTHEIE — S B EH MM E35(d) ©

2 These shares were issued and allotted pursuant to the exercise of options ’ EZ%%$EH§$% Ejn/ﬁﬂ E;—jlﬂj_%_ﬂ_:f] thE
granted under two executive share option schemes adopted by the (_( 721j17_¢£iﬂi*& i%{l&ifgfffij\ﬁ
Company on 19 July 1991 (*1991 Option Scheme”) and 23 August 2002 &j\iaEL%;%;EEE?EE;;QE%%@?E%
(“2002 Option Scheme”) respectively. Further details are set out in note S eI AEAT = X LG AR ST el
) peeey BB - SR RRHES0) -
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35. Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options

1991 Option Scheme

The 1991 Option Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company on 19 July 1991 which had already expired on 18
July 2001. Pursuant to the 1991 Option Scheme, the directors,
at their absolute discretion, had made offers to grant options
to eligible persons who included executive directors, senior
executive, managers or employees of the Group (“the Group”
in the context describing the 1991 Option Scheme shall apply
the definition ascribed to it under the rules of the 1991 Option
Scheme) to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.
Notwithstanding expiry, options granted under the 1991 Option
Scheme prior to expiry remain exercisable pursuant to the rules
of the 1991 Option Scheme. Further details of the 1991 Option
Scheme are set out on page 59 of this annual report.

Details of movements in the options under the 1991 Option
Scheme during the year and options outstanding as at the
beginning and end of the year are as follows:

35. RAK AIRHE )

(b)

M

—Nh—ERRAEE
—hNA—FRBEFE N - Nh—FEATN
HRARRKRRRS  YER-FTZT—FLH
TABEW - REBE-NN—FRBHEAD - BF
BREBMERTNEERAL  BEAKE (TR
SEIZEBEN NN FREREA B ZHARS
PR R — AN FRIBEFT BRI T 2R
BIZHITESE  SRITHAE - KEHES - 12
ERHARBARRRAS I 2 BREEL
BECER  BE-NAN—FREEFZ 2R
Al REWAIRN— AL —FRREFETRHEZ
RITEE BRI AT TIAITHE « — AN —FRE
Bl E— PR BN AFIRFSIA -

RN—NN—FRREFE T 2 REEFRNES
RRENRERZRITHRBBAEFBMOT -

Number of Number of
options held options held
asat asat
1 April 2007 31 March 2008
RRRtE Changes during the year RZBENE
Name of Date of A-H ERZED ZA=1-H Exercise price Exercisable
participant grant 2P Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled BEZ per share period
BEALZR RILAS AREHA R it X g AREER  SROKE e
(ddimmyyyy) (HKS &) (dd/mmiyyy)
Director
Bz
YEH V-nee 25/09/1996 384,000 - (384,000) - - - 0.80 25/09/1998 -
£z 241092008
25/09/1996 384,000 - (384,000) - - - 0.80 25/09/1999 -
24/09/2009
Employees 25/09/1996 266,000 - (266,000) - - - 0.80 25/09/1997 -
(in aggregate) 241092007
&8 25/09/199 1,892,000 - (1,534,000 - (78,000) 280,000 0.80 25/09/1998 -
(#gr) 24/09/2008
25/09/1996 1,988,000 - 1,630,000 - (78,000) 280,000 0.80 25/09/1999 -
24/09/2009
4,914,000 = (4,198,000) = (156,000) 560,000
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35. Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)

Notes:

(i) The outstanding options as at 31 March 2008 are all vested.

(i)  The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
preceding the dates on which the options were exercised was
approximately HK$1.64 per share.

(i)  On 4 December 2007, the mandatory unconditional cash offers
(the "Offers”) made by Carrick Worldwide Limited on all the then
issued shares of the Company not already owned or agreed to be
acquired by it and parties acting in concert with it and on all the
then outstanding options of the Company (“Option Offer”) were
declared unconditional. The Offers commenced on 4 December 2007
and closed on 27 December 2007. Pursuant to the rules of the 1991
Option Scheme, all the outstanding options thereunder could be
exercised in whole or in part within the period of one month after
the date on which the Offers were declared unconditional. However,
notwithstanding the aforesaid provision, options not yet exercised
after the expiry of the said one-month period and not tendered for
acceptances of the Option Offer remain exercisable pursuant to the
rules of the 1991 Option Scheme.

(iv)  The options cancelled as stated in the above table represented options
tendered for acceptances of the Option Offer at the offer price of
HK$0.98 per option.

2002 Option Scheme

The 2002 Option Scheme was adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 August 2002, which was already
terminated by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 22 May 2008. Pursuant to the 2002
Option Scheme, the directors, at their absolute discretion, had
made offers to grant options to eligible persons who included
executive directors, senior executive, managers or employees
of the Group (“the Group” in the context describing the 2002
Option Scheme shall apply the definition ascribed to it under
the rules of the 2002 Option Scheme) to subscribe for shares
in the capital of the Company. On termination, there were no
outstanding options under the 2002 Option Scheme. Further
details of the 2002 Option Scheme are set out on pages 59 and
60 of this annual report.
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35. Share capital and share options (continued)

(b) Share options (continued)
Details of movements in the options under the 2002 Option
Scheme during the year and options outstanding as at the

beginning and end of the year are as follows:

35. RAK AIRHE )
(b) FERHE

R-EE—

== _

R BT 2 R
RIFAIRAFR 2 RATE RN -

Number of Number of
options held options held
asat asat
1 April 2007 31 March 2008
W-E8+% Changes during the year W-BENE
Name of Date of mA-A EreEg ZB=t-R Exercise price Exercisable
participant grant BEZ Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled BEZ per share period
SEALER b=k AREHA R it X% i AREHR  BROEE 2]
(ddmmiyyyy) (HKS %) (dd/mmdyyyy)
Director
EZ
CHAN Ka-kui 01/02/2007 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - - - 0.82 03/03/2008 -
BRH 3110112017
01/02/2007 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - - - 0.82 03/03/2009-
31/0172017
01/02/2007 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - - - 082 03/03/2010-
31/0172017
Employees
(in aggregate) 01/02/2007 15,000,000 - (10,700,000) (1,500,000) (2,800,000 - 082 03/03/2008 -
8 31012017
(12%) 01/02/2007 7,500,000 - (5,250,000) (750,000) (1,500,000) - 0.82 03/03/2009-
31/0172017
01/02/2007 7,500,000 - (5,250,000) (750,000) (1,500,000) - 082 03/03/2010-
3110172017
36,000,000 - (27,200,000) (3,000,000 (5,800,000) -
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35. Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)

(o)

Notes:

()  The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
preceding the dates on which the options were exercised was
approximately HK$2.31 per share.

(i)  The options lapsed as stated in the above table were all due to
resignation of the relevant grantees.

(i) Pursuant to the rules of the 2002 Option Scheme, all the outstanding
options thereunder could be exercised in whole or in part within the
period of one month after the date on which the Offers were declared
unconditional. Options not yet exercised after the expiry of the said
one-month period would have lapsed pursuant to the rules of the 2002
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding options under the 2002
Option Scheme upon expiry of the said one-month period.

(iv)  The options cancelled as stated in the above table represented options
tendered for acceptances of the Option Offer at the offer price of
HK$0.96 per option.

(v)  Pursuant to the 2002 Option Scheme, offers made to the grantees
for the grant of options were subject to acceptances. The options
stated in the above table were offered to be granted to the relevant
grantees on 1 February 2007 and were open for acceptances by those
grantees during the period from 1 February 2007 to 2 March 2007.
On acceptance of an offer for the grant of option, the option would
be deemed to have been granted on the offer date. In the 2006/2007
annual report of the Company, the date of grant for all these options
was stated as 3 February 2007 which, upon clarification under legal
advice, should be taken only as the date on which the first acceptance
of offer was received.

(vi)  Pursuant to HKFRS 2, Share-based Payment, cancellation was treated
as acceleration of vesting and the amount that otherwise would have
been recognised for services received over the remainder of the vesting
period was recognised immediately in the current year’s income
statement.

Other share arrangements

The Company was informed by a shareholder that on 29 January
2007, it made an offer of option to purchase 4,000,000 shares
of the Company from it at a transfer price of HK$0.751 per
share subject to fulfilment of certain conditions to Mr. CHAN
Ka-kui, the managing director of the Company, and such offer
was accepted by Mr. CHAN Ka-kui on 29 January 2007. The
said transfer price was adjusted subsequently to HK$0.691
per share. On 26 October 2007, under mutual agreement
between such shareholder and Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, the aforesaid
option to purchase shares was cancelled at a consideration of
HK$4,356,000 paid by such shareholder to Mr. CHAN Ka-kui.
In addition, according to a share transfer arrangement agreed
between such shareholder and Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, such
shareholder had transferred to Mr. CHAN Ka-kui a total of
819,738 shares of the Company at transfer prices ranging from
HK$0.933 per share to HK$1.282 per share during the year
ended 31 March 2008. On 26 October 2007, under mutual
agreement between such shareholder and Mr. CHAN Ka-kui,
the aforesaid share transfer arrangement was cancelled.
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35. Share capital and share options (continued)

(c)

(d)

Other share arrangements (continued)

The Company was also informed by such shareholder that
it made other offers to certain employees of the Group to
purchase from it shares of the Company subject to fulfilment of
certain conditions. A total of 221,759 shares of the Company
had been transferred to those employees who accepted the
offers from such shareholder at transfer prices ranging from
HK$0.933 per share to HK$1.282 per share during the year
ended 31 March 2008. Under mutual agreement made between
such shareholder with each of the relevant employees, the
aforesaid share transfer arrangements were all cancelled on 26
October 2007.

2002 Share Scheme

The 2002 Share Scheme was adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 August 2002. Pursuant to the 2002
Share Scheme, the directors may make offers to full-time
employees and executive directors of the Group (“the Group”
in the context describing the 2002 Share Scheme shall have
the definition ascribed to it under the rules of the 2002 Share
Scheme) who have worked for a period of not less than six
months to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.
The 2002 Share Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing from 23 August 2002, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2002
Share Scheme. Further details of the 2002 Share Scheme are set
out on pages 63 to 64 of this annual report.

During the year, no share was issued and allotted pursuant to
the 2002 Share Scheme.

35. RARARIE =)

(9]

(d)

HittR =8 )

ZERRIMBHNAAR  HEASETASEES
BHEEMZY - B EBIRE IEERE TIHRE
THZERREBEARARRD - REE-_TTN
F=ZA=+—HLFEN ZBZREUNTETK
BE0933 T EBREBE 1 282 T  BEREAHE
221,759 AN AN FRSENENZES -
KzeRRESUEBZREEXNE B - L
MZBEHOBELHNR—_TTLE+A -+ B
B2 EEUE

—EREFRETE
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EEEREERAT F3R2007/2008 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 81 758 & M7t

36. Reserves 36. fAE
Group £8
Capital Investment
Exchange Share  redemption General revaluation Capital  Retained
reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
&% RE
B wE REGEE felelei EERE Eft UG REEN 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT RETT BT AETT BETT BT BETT BETT
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iv) (Note v) (Note vi)
(BzH) (P 3i) (RizE) (Ftzkv) (Pi2vi)
At 1 April 2006 RZZTZ/ ENA-H (506) 148430 4,420 121,110 169 - 214,639 488,262
Premium arising from issue of shares — Z{THRMEE 2 HE - 133 - - = = - 133
Profit retained for the year REERDE - - - - - - 105,399 105,399
Exchange differences EHEE 10,312 - - - - - - 10,312
Equity settled share-based AR RERZ
transactions hEEERS = - - - - 1,730 - 1,730
Disposal of available-for-sale HETiEy
financial assets BEEE - - - - (169) - - (169)
Dividends ke - - - - - - (83,074) (83,074)
At 31 March 2007 RZZZ+E-A=1-A 9,806 148 563 4420 121,110 - 1,730 236,964 522,593
Representing: %
Reserves B3 9,806 148 563 4,420 121,110 - 1,730 172,845 458474
2007 final dividend proposed “ETHERERERS - = - - - - 25,648 25,648
Special dividend proposed RRERIRS = = = - - - 38,471 38,471
At 31 March 2007 R=TEtF=A=1-H 9,806 148 563 4,420 121,110 - 1,730 236,964 522,593
At 1 April 2007 R=2EtE¥MA-A 9,806 148,563 4,020 121,110 - 1,730 236,964 522,593
Premium arising from issue of shares  BTHTRAEE 2 HE - 22,523 - - - - - 22,523
Profit retained for the year TEERTET - = = - - - 123,922 123922
Exchange differences i35 7917 - - - - - - 7971
Equity settled share-based AR RETRZ
transactions RIEEER S - - - - - 11,438 - 11,438
Transfer upon exercise of RTEARNAER 2R 5
share-based transaction [ - 11,761 - - - (11,761) - -
Transfer upon cancellation RARER A B
of share options - - - - - (1,407) 1,407 -
Dividends ke - - - - - - (101,033)  (101,033)
At 31 March 2008 R=ZEN\E=A=1-A 17,783 182,847 4,420 121,110 - - 261,260 587,420
Representing: R%:
Reserves e 17,783 182,847 4,420 121,110 - - 234,436 560,596
2008 final dividend proposed —ET)\ERERERE - - - - - - 26,824 26,824
At 31 March 2008 R-BENE=B=1-H 17,783 182,847 4,420 121,110 - - 261,260 587,420
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36. Reserves (ontinued)

36. fFEEw@

il

Company A4 7
Capital
Share redemption Contributed General Capital Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total
REE BEXRERE BARH BERE TNET REER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BETT BT BT BYTTT BB
(Note i) (Note iii) (Note iv) (Note vi)
(B3 (i) (FitzEiv) (Biztvi)
At 1 April 2006 RZEZ/EFNA-H 146,369 4,420 66,718 111,110 - 127,979 456,596
Premium arising from BIIHRAEE 8
issue of shares 133 - - - - - 133
Profit retained for the year REERDEF - - - - - 116,577 116,577
Equity settled share-based SARRAA At 2 B
transactions HERS - - - - 1,730 - 1,730
Dividends R - - - = = (83,074) (83,074)
At 31 March 2007 WZEZLtF=A=1—H 146,502 4,420 66,718 111,110 1,730 161,482 491,962
Representing: R
Reserves 1 146,502 4,420 66,718 111,110 1,730 97,363 427,843
2007 final dividend proposed  —EE+EHEARARE = = = = = 25,648 25,648
Special dividend proposed BRERIRE - = - - - 38,471 38,471
At 31 March 2007 RZZZ+F=A=+—H 146,502 4,420 66,718 111,110 1,730 161,482 491,962
At 1 April 2007 R=EE+tFMA-A 146,502 4,420 66,718 111,10 1,730 161,482 491,962
Premium arising from BIHRAEE 2 RE
issue of shares 22,523 - - - - - 22,523
Profit retained for the year AEERDHEF - = = = = 40,544 40,544
Equity settled share-based AR IR RECHE 2 B
transactions BERS - - - - 11,438 - 11,438
Transfer upon exercise of BITEURG AER 7 25
share-based transaction eER 11,761 - - - (11,761) - -
Transfer upon cancellation RRARAEEH Mg
of share options - - - - (1,407) 1,407 -
Dividends RS = = = - - (101,033)  (101,033)
At 31 March 2008 R-EENE=A=+-A 180,786 4,420 66,718 111,10 - 102,400 465,434
Representing: &
Reserves e 180,786 4,420 66,718 111,110 - 75,576 438,610
2008 final dividend proposed ~ —ZE \ERERER S - = - - - 26,824 26,824
At 31 March 2008 R-EENE=A=+-A 180,786 4,420 66,718 111,10 - 102,400 465,434
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37.

38.

36. Reserves ontinued) 36. @@

Notes: Mi3E

(i) See note 2(c) to the financial statements. ()  REBEHRERMTE2)

(i) Reserve created during the repurchase of shares. (ii) Bl B A% T EE A 2 i o

(i) The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result of the Group @iy ARRZBARBTIR-—NN—F#TZEEBER
reorganisation in 1991 and represents the excess of the then consolidated MELE - BARBHBRARZAEEEFEBLARNR
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of RUFETUEXRZBRAEHBE 5 - BBEARE
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof. Under the —NAN—FRELE - NARIA] BMA RGP RRRE
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company may make distributions to its HAIK ©
members out of the contributed surplus.

(iv)  The Company balance represents reserve created on exercise of scrip option (iv) ARRZEBEFBEHHRABREEEURREME
by members of the Company in lieu of cash dividends while the Group £ mARKE 2z iR ESBEE10,000,0007T
balance also includes HK$10,000,000 (2007: HK$10,000,000) which was (ZZZ+FR/8%10,000,0007T ) B B REAE N IAME
transferred from retained profits for general purpose. —RRMRR -

(v)  Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available- (v) FIHEEMBEE AT EREMES 2 RKBREHN
for-sale financial assets are recognised in the investment revaluation reserve. MEBBEERTAREEGRHE -

(viy  Capital reserve comprises the fair value of the number of unexercised share (i) BARGFEESERET BRI 200 AR D BE
options granted to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with W2 MEMRAN ST BCRERE A TASEREE
the accounting policy adopted for share-based compensation in note 2(t)iii) BARITE 2 RREH B 2 ATE -
to the financial statements.

(viiy Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2008 amounted to (i) RZZEZENF=ZA=1+—HARRIAHRIRZEHER
HK$280,228,000 (2007: HK$339,310,000). 751280,228,000 T (= EZ+F A7E%339,310,000

TT) e
Financial guarantees 37. BAEEIELR
Company &2 7]
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Guarantees given to banks for RTYARERIRTTEERE
facilities granted to Mmia TIR1T 2 IR

— subsidiaries —HB AT 809,415 762,318
809,415 762,318

Contingent liabilities 38. HAAIE

In the normal course of its business, the Group is subject to various EAEHEE ﬂﬁqﬂ ZF%.’E\@:&TE‘»}L,H\E &5 A miEL

claims under its construction contracts. At 31 March 2008, the Group WEERE R NF=ZA=1T—0H AEEZH

had various liquidated damages claims on certain contracts for which DEH %&kﬁm%ﬁﬁ BRE mMAKEERLATS
the Group has filed extension of time claims with the customers. BAEERERGE - EREBEE SRR

The

amount of the ultimate liquidated damages, if any, cannot be

ascertained but the Directors are of the opinion that any resulting
liability would not materially affect the financial position of the
Group.
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39. Related party transactions

Following the completion of acquisition of a major interest in
the Company by the Mission Hills Group on 9 November 2007,
the directors regard Upper Luck Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding
company and Carrick Worldwide Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands, as being the immediate holding company.

Before the acquisition, Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited
(the "HCIH") was a substantial shareholder of the Company. As a
result, HCIH and/or its subsidiaries were regarded as related parties of
the Group.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(a) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the following is a
summary of significant related party transactions entered into
the ordinary course of business between the Group and its
related parties during the year.

39. EREENFIRS
MZZZE-LF+— AN BMission Hills Group([ B %%
E ) et AR A R RSB ER - EE A Upper Luck
Holdings Limited * — KR EBR XS FTMAK L2
BRAR - WAL/ A R K Carrick Worldwide
Limited " —"RREBRZHSFMKZZBRAA]
REEBIERAR -

RATEEESEBUHE 2 AT - Hsin Chong International
Holdings Limited ([ & BFR | ) RA QA RIMEBRER - AT
AR R WAEE 2 BT - AEE SR R, E
NEARBEERNT]

HEPENRMNZ BT
(a) BEAHMBRRARBEAMEDRERIN - KRF

EAREEREABERRERTEBKERD
ETZERERERRARZHMENT -

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Transactions with related companies HEBEATRS
(i) Period from 1 April 2007 to () BHZTZELFOA—HE-TZTtHF
8 November 2007 (date of change +—ANB(EERRK
of a substantial shareholder BEAMA—TTLSF
on 9 November 2007) +—ANHB)HH
Transactions with related companies HBEEARRRS
Revenues Wz
Billing on contracts (note i) FE & %) T RE (i) 3,991 89,741
Rental income (note ii) RN ONCEED, 1,169 2,004
Service centre charges received (note iii) RRT& 0 B AU A (BT 492 824
Insurance premium refund (note iv) RE& B IR E (Bistiv) - 18
Expenses sz
Billing on contracts (note v) BEA XM TIZHEAE(FRY) (1,933) (2,954)
Service centre charges paid (note vi) BRI OB A (Fsrvi) (673) -
(i) Period from 9 November 2007 to (i) BAZZZtLF+—AIEZE
31 March 2008 ZEEN\F=A=1+—HHHE
Transaction with a related company B-REBERERS
Expense X
Corporate membership fee (note vii) NEIgEEE A (i) (947) -
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39. Related party transactions (continued)
Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

A subsidiary provided building construction services to a related company as
the main contractor on terms and prices which were no less favourable than
those offered to third parties employers or main contractors. The relevant
transactions were concluded on arm’s length basis.

Rental income represents income on Hsin Chong Centre leased by the
Group to related companies as headquarters. The tenancy agreements were
concluded at prevailing market rates.

Services centre charges received from related companies represent
administrative services provided by the Group. The relevant services were
reimbursed at cost based on time and expenses allocated to the related
companies.

Insurance premium was refunded on normal commercial terms from a related
company which is an insurance company to a subsidiary due to termination
of the insurance policy.

Billing represents estate agency, project management and other services
rendered to several subsidiaries. The terms and prices concluded were no less
favourable than those obtainable from third parties.

Service centre charges paid to a related company represent fees paid for the
company secretarial services provided by such related company to the Group.
Such fees were charged on a cost recovery basis by reference to the time and
expenses allocated to the Group.

Corporate membership fee paid to a related company represents fee paid
for the golf club services and facilities. The fee was concluded at prevailing
market rate.

Items (i) to (vii) are connected transactions as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

(b) Key management compensation

39. BEEERTIR S
B EE

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

&)

—MEB R RHEREAREANEN G TE =Bk
BAEBZIFF R ERRHETRERB T —REH
ERR] GRS TEAFRAMmEIAL -

HEWATIRBEEEARMAEEEBHEF O/
Hpagz A - BEHRREFTEESEE -

WEBBERR ZRETOERRAERNZERH
BARRKITHERRY - ARARBEZEEMER
RS D B R RS 2 BRKANE -

—RMBRRE—REEGRKE —REFERR A
BIRKRIRBREMREZRBE

REFRAAETHBARRMRYENRE - REEE
REMRT - A2 BRAGRRERTNENE=T7/4
T2 fERS -

BT REBEQRIZRETLEARZEREAF
AAKEREHARDWERY - ZZEMDREASE
FITER o 2 B ) I PR SR A W (B R L -

BT REWERRZARSHRERASRESEARIR
BRGERERE - ARERAERMSWERTE -

FOEVIVEIREEBHARXZMERARZ EHHA
ETHARIREZBERS o

(b) TEEEARZHE

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Salaries and other benefits LETN K E A AE T 24,315 25,137
Bonuses Te4L 6,390 3,133
Contributions to retirement scheme BRIREFE 2R 1,145 1,128
Termination benefits KIEREE A - 1,468
Share-based compensation LARR (7 B E T 2 118 9,901 1,569
41,751 32,435
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40. Commitments under operating leases

At 31 March, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

40. EEMIAIE

R=ZA=+—0  ALERBETIHHE 2 EEROTER

RSN 2 B E TR T

2008 2007
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Company and subsidiaries RARRKMBAR
Land and buildings T RIEF
— not later than one year —F—FR 3,348 5,930
— later than one year but not —EBFEERFNA
later than five years 60 2,852
3,408 8,782

At 31 March, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases, which

R=ZA=1t—R  AEEREFAIHE 2 EEHO(—

BEEMA—E=F)NARRBUE 2 RIEH

B AEE

typically run for a period of one to three years, as follows: LU
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Company and subsidiaries AARRHELE
Land and buildings T+ R EF
— not later than one year —F—FR 14,825 14,288
— later than one year but not —FE_FEERFNR
later than five years 10,459 5,273
25,284 19,561
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4. FREBRERERMET
(a) FrEBMsfRSEELE>ReRATE

41. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

cash inflow generated from operations YR
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before income tax FRISRL BT F 135,985 122,599
Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities  fefh L1541 % 52
and associated companies TR ESE  S R (15,816) (10,088)
Net interest income FBUAFHE (21,364) (14,368)
Depreciation charges e 6,576 7,352
Net fair value gain on investment properties ERBZRAMENTE
in Hong Kong pigilhes:c! (7,529) (4,251)
Fair value loss on an investment property EBBUINN—REYE
outside Hong Kong NEEEE 4,306 =
Impairment loss on a property in Hong Kong ERBZYFERERRE 4,352 -
Write back of impairment loss on prepaid BN HEESRREREBEE
premium for land lease (3,010) =
Amortisation of prepaid premium for land lease  F&f+ + 1070 & & A 4% 936 936
Write off of goodwill R = 1,828
Net gain on disposal of property, HEYE  HERRBRNFE
plant and equipment (252) (1,126)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB A FEF = (4,776)
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary BRI RDER - (6)
Loss on liquidation of an associated company B — ISR IR = 123
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value  &RAFEE A FIsBEZ
through profit or loss UHEERATERE = 277
Dividend income from financial assets at BAFEFARFIKEEZ
fair value through profit or loss M AERENRA (79) (184)
Net gain on disposal and redemption HERERZEAFET AR
of financial assets at fair value through BB 7 IS A w K R 5
profit or loss (59) (6,356)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AR E B EEREEE
financial assets 2,227 2,000
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE R E 2 Mg EERT
financial assets = (756)
Impairment loss on stocks of properties EEBLIN MEFERERRE
outside Hong Kong 2,642 -
Write back of impairment loss on a property EEBUINZ HHHERERYE
under development for sale outside Hong Kong  Ji{& /&5 18 =1 = (38,403)
Impairment loss credited to cost of sales B AEHER AR BEEE (2,094) (32,840)
Write back of impairment loss on stocks of BB 2B EFEREREDE
car park properties in Hong Kong (1,733) -
Net provision for impairment of receivables FEWBR TR B R F 5 7,271 2,785
(Write back of)/provision for unutilised KERER(DE), B
annual leave (1,264) 2,875
Amortisation of intangible assets I A EE Y 600 2,012
Share-based compensation PARRAD BEHE 2 fh1E 11,438 1,730
Operating profit before working capital changes %88 & & B)Ai 2 L& % 123,133 31,363
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41. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement oninuesy 41. SRR ERERM T @

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (a) FAIBBANRRNEKCEEE 2 RERANFEHE
cash inflow generated from operations (continued) iR
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Operating profit before working capital changes  %i@8& ¢ &A1 v KL% 123,133 31,363
Decrease/(increase) in stocks and contracting BREREZT IS, (M)
work-in-progress 75,341 (45,033)
Decrease in financial assets at fair BATEF AR EE
value through profit or loss BB ER A 1,374 50,526
Increase in receivables and prepayments FEUBR 70 R TS 1 hn (45,719) (21,226)
(Decrease)/increase in payables and accruals FERBER R FEST B R CRL), /2N (123,844) 68,529
Decrease in property under development HHEERFYERD
for sale 36,800 197,398
Decrease in restricted deposits ZRR IR T TR D 69,459 -
Exchange differences | (3,746) 4,490
Net cash inflow generated from operations RS ES 7 IS AR 132,798 286,047
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41. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement (ontinued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

A, FEBRERERMT @

(b) NEEMERE 2D

Minority
interests
(including
Share amount due
capital from/(to) Restricted
(including Retained minority Bank bank
premium) profits shareholders) loans deposits Total
PBRR
% (BE
(%N W,/ () ZRE
(BHERE) RERN  HBRRIE) RITEN BITER k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2006 RZTERFHA-A 212,333 214,639 39,642 280,348 (172,926) 574,036
Cash inflow/(outflow) HEZHSE
from financing WA/ (R 152 = (4,553) (255,348) 99,999 (159,750)
Profit for the year REEEF = 105,399 8,632 - - 114,031
Dividends paid EiRRE = (83,074) - - - (83,074)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT - - (1,331) - - (1,331)
Exchange differences BRER - - - - (2,973) (2,973)
At 31 March 2007 R-ZBLE
=ZA=1+—-H 212,485 236,964 42,390 25,000 (75,900) 440,939
Cash inflow/(outflow) BEZES
from financing A/ (R 25,662 - (7,914) (25,000) - (7,252)
Cash inflow from operating BEEB RER = = - - 69,459 69,459
Profit /(loss) for the year RERRF/(BR) - 123,922 (2,883) - - 121,039
Transfer upon exercise of RITEARGD BERZ
share-based transaction 5 mER 11,761 - - - - 11,761
Transfer upon cancellation FR VAT
of share options L8 - 1,407 - - - 1,407
Dividends paid RS = (101,033) = = = (101,033)
Dividend paid to a minority BRF—DH
shareholder RERAR S - - (4,466) - - (4,466)
Exchange differences EXESE = = 5,432 - (497) 4,935
At 31 March 2008 R-BENE
=A=+-8 249,908 261,260 32,559 - (6,938) 536,789
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42 . Event after the balance sheet date

On 19 June 2008, the Company entered into a share purchase
agreement (“Share Purchase Agreement”) with Hsin Chong Holdings
(H.K.) Limited (“Vendor") to acquire 220,448,000 shares (“Sale
Shares”) (approximately 66.40% of its existing issued share capital)
in Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, at a
consideration of HK$348.3 million, equivalent to HK$1.58 per Sale
Share, which is payable in cash. The said acquisition is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval of the Company at a special
general meeting to be convened. The said cash consideration
payable to the Vendor on completion (“Completion”) of the said
acquisition was determined between the Company and the Vendor
after arm’s length negotiations, taking into consideration the recent
price and trading volume of the shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of Synergis (“Synergis Shares”). Completion shall take
place on the third business day after the passing by the Company'’s
independent shareholders at the said special general meeting of all
necessary resolutions in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to
approve the acquisition pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase
Agreement.

Details of the said acquisition were disclosed in the joint
announcement released by the Company and Synergis on 26 June
2008. Immediately following Completion, the Company and parties
acting in concert with it will own approximately 66.40% of the
existing issued share capital of Synergis. As a result, the Company will
then become obliged under Rule 26.1 and Rule 13 of the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases to make mandatory
unconditional cash offers to acquire all the issued Synergis Shares
(other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by it
and parties acting in concert with it) and for cancellation of all the
outstanding share options of Synergis. Quam Securities Company
Limited, on behalf of the Company, will make the said mandatory
unconditional cash offers. The share offer price will be HK$1.58
per Synergis Share, which is equal to the price per Sale Share under
the Share Purchase Agreement. The outstanding share options of
Synergis are exercisable either at HK$0.81 per share or HK$0.80
per share. Accordingly, the option offer price will be HK$0.77 per
option or HK$0.78 per option, which is equivalent to the difference
between the share offer price and the respective exercise price of the
outstanding share options of Synergis.

2. FEHEREIE

RZZZENFRNATNA  AAREFEEEEH)E
FRATI(ZES DRI B ([ ERIBE]) - Bt AR
AIAE A RBERE BB AR SIBRARER EMZH
EEBEEARAR([FEERE])I%220,448,0008%
(MHERML ) - (EEREFE BITIRAL66.40% - RIE
A 751348,300,0007C + HERESRHE RN IEEBE
1.587C + WHELAIR & X o HillRAEZBR AR BB IR
R BRZRREFRARE EiE - B Ll Tk
(TR EREGFESZ LIRS EHRAQF R
B EEENETERATSREES .10tz kK
(TFEBERM D2 B RKZEE  RATHER
[RAVEETE - FFAAREY A FMBREEFIRE K
REBHAEX AR ARFES EMARABEREIATE
RBRIDERBER R GTGEITYEE - HEE=E%
EBBEERK -

FEE FBERARBIRIEEER ST \FX
AZ+ BREZBEAHBRER - EETKE A2
AIRE—BITBZ ALTBBREHEERRRBEHITRA
4166.40% - At - RBEARIMKE - A RRHERST
Al ZRA26.1 RRA3 - AR B ERARKETAD %
AZHEEERMN(EZSHRERE—STHZALE
BEXRZREERIN LAHEAMEHEER Z RITE
BB AT REERSWEER - EE R 885
BRABFREAR R Lt 2 8 b &R IR
B - SRHESEERND ZBNBBER AE1.58
T EERERGEE TEREERG 2B - TEE
18 7 RITERE AR AT AT AR B #50.81 L3 I AR S #50.80
TUATIE - Ett - BRENEESASHERESE0.77
TLS AR BB EERE0.78 7T + BIES R RR(D IR EE (& a5
EEBRIEERESETEEZER -
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43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies 43. TEME A B KSR
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
rEEAE
R/ ERgEsZEOL ERTR
A gEgm LN HEAF BRRE FERK
Subsidiaries:
WEAR
+9  All Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
+0 2EFRAF REBRUES ER1T REER
Ample Honour Hong Kong - 100% HK$1 Investment holding
International Limited B BT REER
FRERERAT
+*  Anber Limited Hong Kong - 62.5% HK$200 Investment holding
BE #2007 REER
+@ Beijing Hsin Chong PRC - 100% US$600,000 Construction project
Project Management w %4600,0007T management and
Consultant Ltd. consultancy services
+@ RHERRERER BEEE BB RER RS
BRAT]
+0  Bioneering Limited British Virgin Islands = 100% Us$1 Investment holding
+# EFRERAF RERLEE ZR1T BB
Cogent Spring Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$85,000,002 Property investment
BB ##:85,000,0027T WERE
+9  Complete Limited British Virgin Islands = 100% Us$1 Investment holding
+# TREBLH RERLEE =l BB
Deventer Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$10 Property holding
BE BEI107T ESSL]
Ever Apex Construction Macau = 100% MOP25,000 Registered contractor
(Macau) Company Limited il BP9#625,0007T services
KERE(RM)BRAR AR R
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43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies

+#

+i#

+@

+@

43. TEMBAEK

440

ik 5l (48)
(continued)
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
EEEfE
3L/ ER ERERAI L BETR
AH ey NN WEAR BRBRE TEXK
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WBAR : ()
Ever Gain Limited Macau - 100% MOP25,000 Provision of labour
KEBRAT il JBFI#525,0007T agency services
R DREA IR RS
Everich Construction Macau - 100% MOP25,000 Registered contractor
(Macau) Limited SBFY RFI25,0007T services
EREECRM)BRAA HEER R
Glenwell Orient Limited Hong Kong - 70% HK$100 Investment holding
SERNBRRA &R 1007 REER
Guangzhou Fengyu Real PRC - 42% HK$80,000,000 Real estate development
Estate Co., Ltd. h 71%80,000,0007C FHERR
BMNEREEEBRAR
Guangzhou Free PRC - 70% HK$12,286,000 Real estate investment
Trade Zone Dongjing H 7%12,286,0007C FHERE
Property Co., Ltd.
BNRERRREZEB AR
HCCG Building and Macau = 100% MOP25,000 Building construction
Civil Engineering A JEF9%25,0007T and civil engineering
(Macau) Limited BFEERLARTRE
HERERIATR
(R BRAR
HCCG China Construction British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
Limited RBREUES £ REER

MEEEPEBRAR
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43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies 43. T BB N TR

(continued)
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
AEERE
R/ ERgERBAL BRTR
AR BEwH N HEAR BRBRE TEXY
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WBAR : ()
HCCG China Facility British Virgin Islands 100% US$1 Investment holding
Management Limited EBEIHE e Al RAEK
MELEREIRE
ERARAH
HCCG China Holdings British Virgin Islands 100% Us$1 Investment holding
Limited EBRAES =S Al REER
MELETEERERAR
HCCG China Investment British Virgin Islands 100% US$1 Investment holding
Limited REENES EX Al REER
MEEEREREERAA
Hsin Chong - Hsin Chong Hong Kong 100% - Building construction and
Aster Joint Venture EE mechanical, electrical
ME-MEDfENR and building services
BFRERKETR
REFHR
Hsin Chong Aster Hong Kong 100% HK$2,050,000 'A' Mechanical, electrical
Building Services & HK$2,050,000 'B' and building services
Limited 751%2,050,0007C A" KEIRRETR
MERHEETRE 75#2,050,0007T 'B'
BRAT
Hsin Chong Aster Hong Kong 100% HK$2,000,000 Mechanical, electrical
Building Services Bk #2,000,0007T and building services
(Asia) Limited BEIRRETR

o HEGMEETRE

(EM) AR
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43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies

+@

+@

43. TBHBAARES =

(continued)
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
EEEfE
3L/ ER EREZEIL ERTR
AH e LN WEAE BRBRE TEXH
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WBAR : ()
Hsin Chong Aster China British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
Limited KERLES E1TT REER
MEGLETRERAA
Hsin Chong Aster Macau = 100% MOP25,000 Electrical and mechanical
Macau Limited RF RFI25,0007T works and maintenance
MERTERM BIRN#&E
BRAT
Hsin Chong Civil Engineering Hong Kong - 100% HK$2 Civil engineering
Company Limited B AL TARIE
MEIARIRBRBAR
Hsin Chong Civil Engineering Hong Kong - 100% HK$7,500,000 A’ Civil engineering
(Asia) Limited BE HK$7,500,000 'B' TARTRE
MELATIE 78 #7,500,0007C A"
(M) BRAF 78#7,500,0007T 'B'
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong - 100% HK$20,000,000 ! Building construction
Company Limited B HK$2,000 and civil engineering
MELERBRAF #B%20,000,0000T ' BFRERIATE
#%2,0007T
Hsin Chong Construction PRC - 100% US$6,100,000 Building construction
Company Limited H %46,100,0007T and civil engineering
MELERERRAA BFRERIATR
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000 Building construction
(Asia) Limited B HK$20,002,000 and civil engineering
MEEEM (M) BRAF 7£%10,0000000C ' BFRERTATIRE
720,002,007
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43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies 43. T BB N TR

(continued)
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
TREmE
L/ aER, ERgEZEL BETR
A gegmi LN HEAF BRRA FERK
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WEAR : (&)
Hsin Chong Construction British Virgin Islands 100% - HK$150,000 Investment holding
(BVI) Ltd. RERUES 78 #150,0007T REER
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong - 100% HK$2 Construction management
(Macau) Limited &6 BT services
MELECRM)BRAR BEERRE
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong - 100% HK$1 Property Development
(Property Development) Limited &% BT WERR
MEEEHERR)BRAF
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong - 100% HK$1 Construction management
Management Limited Hi& BT services
MEEREEARAR BEERRE
Hsin Chong Construction Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000 Construction management
Management Services Limited & & #1,000,0007T services
MELEERRBERAR REERRS
Hsin Chong Construction British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Construction management
Management Services RERZEE e Al services
(China) Limited BEEERG
MELEERRE
(FRE)BRAF
Hsin Chong (Corporate Hong Kong - 100% HK$2 Corporate services
Services) Limited & BT NRIEH
ME(RREB)ERAT
Hsin Chong Development Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
(China) Limited BiE 75810,0007C BERK
MEER(PE)ERAR
Hsin Chong Development Hong Kong - 100% HK$2 Investment holding
(Vietnam) Limited & BT REER

MERR(BE)ERAA
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43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies

+*#

43, E\Eg M{r% /L\\ E.] &Hﬁg‘%}uf@\:

(continued)
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
EEEfE
3L/ R EREZEOL BETR
AH REwH LN WEAE BRBRE TEXH
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WBAR : ()
Hsin Chong Engineering Macau - 100% MOP25,000 Construction management
(Macau) Limited RF JBP#25,0007T services
HETR(RM)BRAA BETERY
Hsin Chong Environmental Hong Kong - 100% HK$5,000,000 Environmental engineering
Engineering Company BE 75,000,0007C REIE
Limited
Hsin Chong Interior Hong Kong - 100% HK$1 Dormant
Holdings Limited BF S T m
Hsin Chong Interiors Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000 Fitting-out, renovation
HEENENBRAT % 7&1,000,0007T & addition and alteration
TAREE - BENE
kTR
Hsin Chong Interiors Hong Kong = 100% HK$1,000,000 Fitting-out, renovation
(Hong Kong) Limited B 75#1,000,0007C & addition and alteration
MEENEH (BE) TAEE - BENE
BRAT RypETR
Hsin Chong Rocks PRC - 99% US$166,700 Consultancy services
Business Management s %£166,7007T in construction business
and Consultant (Beijing) BEEBHARE
Limited
IEREE R RS
EEAABRRA
Hsin Chong (Singapore) Singapore - 100% S$1 Construction and
Pte. Ltd. AR AT provision of construction

related services
BERIRMEEEEEE
ZIR%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4: 4 B 758 & M7t

43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies

+

+
+

43. T BB R TR

5H Tl (48)
(continued)
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
EEEfE
R/ ERgEZEIL BRTR
AR "egmd LN HEAE BRRE TEXK
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WEAR : (&)
Insight One Investments British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
Limited EERLHS =S Al REEKR
ESE—REBRAF
IT & T Builders Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia = 55% MR1,000,000 Building construction
BARAER MR1,000,000° BFRE
£5%1,000,0007C
%1%1,000,0007t°
Jadeport Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
RERLEE =l REER
Key Future Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
BREEERAR RBRUEE =S Al REER
Linders View Limited British Virgin Islands/ - 92.79% US$652 Holding and leasing plant
Hong Kong E£6527T and machinery
ERERRE /BB B R #EHE
New Strength Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
MERRAR RBRUES E217T REBER
Readon View Limited British Virgin Islands/ = 100% US$1 Holding and leasing plant
Hong Kong E Al and machinery
EEEAEE /BB BERR#ERE
Rife Yard Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000 Real estate development
BE 7B%1,0007 FHERR
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43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies

+3¢

+0
+0

B

+#

+#

43, E\Eg M{r% /L\\ E.] &Hﬁg‘%}uf@\:

(continued)
Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
EEEfE
R,/ EREZRIL ERTR
A e LN WEAE BRRE TEXH
Subsidiaries: (continued)
WEAR : (&)
Rocheland Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000  Investment holding
BE w0000 REER
Taxwood Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1  Investment holding
mEAR AR RERLES X2 REER
Wellhurst Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Investment holding
BE BT REER
Yik Shing Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Investment holding
TAERAR BE BT REER
Hsin Chong - Taylor Hong Kong - 60% - Building design and
Woodrow Joint B construction
Venture No. 1 BFN R R
Associated companies:
Beijing Hsin Chong PRC - 25% RMB6,000,000  Facility management
Facility Management 3 AR¥6,000,000r  RpEERE
Co., Ltd.
ERHEREEEERAA]
Cheer Star Development Limited ~ Hong Kong - 22.5% HK$10,000  Hotel operations
BREREARANA BE BE10000  BEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 8/ 758 & Mt

43. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies

(continued)

43. T BB R TR

UH Tl (48)

Country of The Group's effective
incorporation/ percentage of
registration/ interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
AEERE
R/ ERgERBAL BRTR
AF BEwH N HEAR BRBRE TEXY
Associated companies: (continued)
B (8)
CS Management Services Hong Kong = 22.5% HK$2 Hotel management services
Limited &% BT BEERRS
MR ERREER A
Goldian Limited Hong Kong - 25% HK$10,000 Investment holding and
N 110,000 real estate development
REERKEHELR
Infinity Goal Limited Hong Kong - 30% HK$10,000 Real estate development
BB #10,0007T and leasing of
a building's roof
FHEERRASHE
Topway Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 33.33% US$6,000 Investment holding
RERLEE %£6,0007 REER
Victory Guide Limited Hong Kong - 30% HK$10 Property investment
BRAERAR Bt B0 WERE
! Non-voting deferred shares g BIRERRTR
® Preference shares ® BEAR
# Equity joint venture # BEMRE
A Companies incorporated during the year ended 31 March 2008 A REBEZZTN\F=-A=t+—BLFERKIZAA
S Dissolved during the year ended 31 March 2008 * REEZZEZNF=A=1T—HILFERR
¢ Struck off during the year ended 31 March 2008 ¢ REBE_ZTN\F=ZA=+T—HLEFERNI%
w0 Name has already been changed to "Hsin Chong E & M Engineering (Asia) Limited" on 30 May o  AREBEBERZZEENFRA=THERRIFTEH
2008 BEIREMAERRA
% Previously known as "Concrete Repairs (H.K.) Limited" ¢ RIEDRELEEIREE)ABRAR]
@  Wholly foreign owned enterprises @ INEBELE
+  Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers + FHBESRUKEEITAMEBAEZX
©  Previously known as "Hsin Chong Specialist Contractors Limited" © A EFEXELERERAT]
% De-registered during the year ended 31 March 2008 Y RIZTN\F=A=+—HIEFERREEER
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Five Year Financial Summary
L FHHRHE

In HK$ thousand except otherwise indicated

BEETIT - FRIFERRRS

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=Z1+—BHLETHRFE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Operating Results RegxE
Revenue W 2,494,727 3,007,166 2,275,911 1,153,656 1,502,816
Operating profit/(loss) after HBmERAREZ
finance costs SRR (B18) 120,169 112,511 141,114 45,983 (40,289)M
Share of profits less losses/ IR
(losses less profits) of KESR 2
jointly controlled entities and SRR,
associated companies (EEREF) 15,816 10,088 15,723@ (8,154)@ 2,665
Profit/(loss) before income tax FTERATEF, (Ei18) 135,985 122,599 156,837 37,829 (37,624)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrSRi(BIs) /1E % (14,946) (8,568) (6,488) (4,510) 691
Profit/(loss) after income tax FriafiemF,/ (EE) 121,039 114,031 150,349 33,319 (36,933)
Minority interests LER RS 2,883 (8,632) (30,053) (10,329) 38,019
Profit attributable to equity RRARERFEA
holders of the Company e 5T 123,922 105,399 120,296 22,990 1,086
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
Total assets BEE 1,533,832 1,623,696 1,780,450 1,277,559 1,351,451
Total liabilities waR (873,820) (1,028,347) (1,218,939) (803,183) (904,572)
660,012 595,349 561,511 474,376 446,879
Per Share Figures (Cents) sSREF(L)
Basic earnings per share BREREF 19.1 16.5 18.8 3.6 0.2
Diluted earnings per share SRS R 18.7 16.5 18.8 3.6 0.2
Dividend per share FRRAR S 9.5 14.0@ 12.0@ 2.0 0.0
Cash flow from operation BREBRERE
per share 16.7 27.3 23.2 (8.5) 6.0
Net assets value per share BIREEFE 97.6 91.8 86.4 72.7 69.1
Financial Ratios Biigt
Pretax margin BRI 4.8% 3.7% 6.2% 4.0% -2.7%
Dividend payout ratio RSB & 49.7% 84.8% 63.8% 55.6% 0.0%
Debt to capitalisation ratio BEHEREE 0.0% 4.0% 33.3% 33.8% 34.8%
Return on average equity NS EL TaEEEY 20.0% 18.5% 23.7% 5.1% 0.3%

EEEREERART FR2007/2008 155



Five Year Financial Summary 71 8174

Notes:

(M

@)

(©)

)

(©)

(6)

@)

®)

=

5
=

Included HK$38 million write back of impairment loss on a property under
development for sale, Guangzhou, PRC.

Included HK$11 million profit on disposal of a hotel property in Sai Wan, Hong
Kong.

Included HK$88 million write back of impairment loss on a property under
development for sale in Guangzhou, PRC.

Included HK$39 million for equity share of write back of impairment loss on a hotel
property in Sai Wan, Hong Kong.

Included a write back of impairment loss of HK$25 million for a leasehold land and
building in Hong Kong.

Included HK$30 million for equity share of write back of impairment loss on a hotel
property in Sai Wan, Hong Kong.

Included a provision of HK$109 million for impairment in value of a property under
development in Guangzhou, as offset by the write back of provision of HK$60
million for a leasehold land and building in Hong Kong, HK$32 million for gain
on deconsolidation of liquidated subsidiaries and HK$18 million for write back of
special retirement benefit costs.

Included special dividend of HK6.0 cents per ordinary share.
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BB BRI 2 i ERRP YR A EERR
8 38,000,0007T ©

BRUEE - FUREEAORBEMEZ SN EE
11,000,000, ©

BB BN 2 i ERRP YR A EERR
18 88,000,0007T ©

BIE—AMRNEBERBE YR 2 et R0 R (B 5 18 ]
7##39,000,0007T °

BRE-BRUNEEZEN L RET 2 REERDREE
25,000,000 ©

BIE—IAMREBERBE YR 2 et R0 R (B 5 18 ]
7##30,000,0007T °

BIEH—EMRENZERPDEEL ZREREH B
109,000,000t * WFF —IBAI R BB 2 FAL T3 RAEF
&1 B8 %60,000,0007T + AT 4RARTEBERTMEBAR
MEE £ 2 155578 %32,000,0007T & 5k R K 42 7 2 F [0
##18,000,0007T °

BEFIIEREEREBEEK6.01 -



Proforma Combined Balance Sheet of Affiliated Companies

REARZEEAHEERER

The Group had amounts due from and loan to certain affiliated companies
in a total sum of HK$124.9 million and guarantee given to joint venture
partners for banking facility granted of HK$80.2 million totalling
HK$205.1 million as at 31 March 2008 which exceeds 8% of the Group's
total assets. A proforma combined balance sheet of certain affiliated
companies to which the Group provides major financial assistance and the
Group's attributable interest in these affiliated companies are presented
below:

RZEENFZR=+—AAEEETHEARRALER
3B ABEE124,000,0007T - BHETAECEBMEEREREA
75%80,200,0007T * & £ A7#%205,100,0007T © A RAZEEIR
BAEBMBEEES 2N\ - BTEXZHBIEN 2 HE DA
ZHEAHEERBERNAEEMERSEHBARERRS
WA -

Proforma Group's

combined attributable

balance sheet interest

HBESH £E

BEESMER Frib Rz

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BEBTIT

Current assets MENVEE 427,464 120,581
Current liabilities mBaE (233,648) (71,673)
Joint venture partners’ advances BRDERMEN (565,000) (122,000)
Net liabilities BEFRE (371,184) (73,092)
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Major Projects
TETIEEE

Maigr Projects In-Progress

RRETPZ2EEIR
Group's Commencement Anticipated Client/Ultimate
Description interest Contract value date completion date employer
r5EE EF/
IBRE iR EEoka ] MIRM BEHRTAH BAREE
(HKS)
(%)
Construction Works
BETR
Venetian Cotai Parcels 5/6 100% 1,864,074,000 October 2005 December 2009 Venetian Orient Limited
BRI AR MR /X ZZTRETA ZEENETA RABRIMABRRA
Design and Construction of Prince 50% 1,654,258,000 * April 2007 November 2009 Avrchitectural Services
of Wales Hospital - Extension Block —ETHEMA —TTNF+—A Department
BRER TR - BEAR BEZ
Rt RRETE
Venetian Cotai Parcel 1 100% 1,203,145,000 October 2004 April 2008 - Venetian Cotai Limited
BURET AR kiR — “ZTWETA —EE\E0A- BRI ABRKBRHERAR
Main Contract for Atrium Hotel 100% 570,000,000" July 2007 April 2009 Pacific Place Holdings
Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong e “TTNEMA Limited
BRPEBRHALES AEBESREBRRA
Atrium/B 55 B
Venetian Cotai Parcel 2 100% 489,234,000 October 2005 December 2008 Venetian Cotai Limited
BURET AR ki — “ZTRET A “TEN\FE+CA BRI ARBRIAERAR
Civil Engineering Works
TARIR
Stonecutters Bridge 20% 3,211,100,000 April 2004 May 2009 Highways Department
N —ZTMEM A —ZTNFLA BBE
Sha Tin New Town, Stage Il, 20% 1,649,000,000 March 2003 November 2008 Civil Engineering and
Road T3 and Associated Roadworks “ET=F=f “ZT\F+-f Development Department
DRMTRELERTIFERER RIEETE TARIBEEE
ELS and Demolition Works, 100% 188,000,000 March 2008 October 2009 Hysan Development
Proposed Redevelopment of ZZZ\F=f ZTTNETA Company Limited
Hennessy Centre FEEZXERRA
500 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
BB MBS FE500R EFR O BRERER
BRAMMEREIERFRIRE
Reconstruction of Main Sewers from 100% 15,500,000 April 2007 September 2007 ~ The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Grandstand 2 to Mafoo Quarter at —TTHEMA “TTLENA- EEESS

Sha Tin Racecourse
PREE-_FIAERERKES
FTHKEGRERER
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Majtqr Projects In-Progress (continued)

BIFETHZEEIR®

Group's Commencement Anticipated Client/Ultimate
Description interest Contract value date completion date employer
A5E BF/
IBAA it BNEE MIBRH BHRTAH BAEE
(HKS)
(&%)
Building Services Works
EFRBEIR
Prince of Wales Hospital — Extension Block 100% 548,000,000 #* April 2007 October 2009 Avrchitectural Services
- Package Electrical and Mechanical “EEHENA “ETNETA Department
Installation et
HRER RN - EEAR
- HAKERE
Proposed Office Development on KTIL 242 100% 204,500,000 March 2007 July 2008 Winsor Properties
at 102 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong “TTtF=R —ET\F+A Holdings Limited
- MVAC Installation R EE R AR A
BETDAE 1025 BE AR 2425
HERTERRER
- BEERAERRE
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 100% 188,000,000 December 2006 August 2008 Hong Kong Science and
Area A2 at TPTL No.182 ZZTNETA —ZZ\ENR Technology Parks Corporation
(Laboratory Buildings) EARBERT
- HVAC and Electrical Installation
AETHR1825FE BN RES _HIR
NE(EREXRE)
- ERRERERTE
HAECO Aircraft Maintenance Hangar No. 3A  100% 131,360,000 April 2008 May 2009 Hong Kong Aircraft
— Electrical and Mechanical —TT)\FMA “TTNFRA Engineering Company Limited
Ventilation Installation EARHEIREBRAT
BRIREAREE RS
-HERELZE
The Hong Kong Side of Passenger 100% 113,931,000 February 2006 February 2007 - Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Terminal Building at ZTTFZA “TTLE-f- Western Corridor
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Western Corridor Project Office
- HVAC, Electrical and Plumbing AR ERE
& Drainage Installation TRERHAR
REBDBEOFRRAE (BEES)
—EHRE  ERREPKERTE
Redevelopment of Lido Complex 100% 59,000,000 March 2007 August 2008 Gold Shine
at 26-30 Beach Road, Repulse Bay —EELE=f —ZEEN\FENA Investment Limited
- MVAC, Electrical, Fire Services and BRIEEERAT
Plumbing & Drainage Installation
EKEEEE26-30BAERER
—@E - =R B8 OEIR
kR
Retail Centre at Union Square 100% 33,700,000 August 2005 August 2008 MTR Corporation Limited
- Plumbing and Drainage Installation “EERENA —TT)\EN\A BEERERAT

NERTERS
—RHKERRE
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Major Projects = £ T12IEH

Major Projects Completed During the Financial Year and Subsequent to Year End

FUBRFEARFARTUZEELRE

Group's Commencement Completion Client/Ultimate
Description interest Contract value date date employer
x5E &F/
IBAR Frib Rz EEoka MIRA BIAH BHEE
(HKS)
(%)
Construction Works
BETR
Pok Oi Hospital Redevelopment & 100% 1,037,335,000 * September 2003 March 2007 Hospital Authority
Expansion at Yuen Long, N.T. “ET=FHA “TT+F=ZRA BRERER
HATBRERER RERTIZ
Substructure & Superstructure Works 100% 874,751,000 July 2006 January 2008 The Hongkong and
for HSBC Data Centre at ZEERFEA “ETN\E-A Shanghai Banking
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate Lot No. 39 Corporation Limited
HERTEWINREL RITHER L A DPEERTERAA
Beijing Central Park Phase 3 100% 423,108,764 September 2005 March 2008 Beijing Premium Real
ERIHERAEE=H —ZTRFNA —TT\F=R Estate Limited
tREBERMEREERAR
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 55% 414,600,000 * April 2005 July 2007 Hong Kong Science &
Main Works (Area A) “ZZRFMA “ETEELA Technology Parks Corporation
EARBES _H(TIZAR) EAMRERF
Beijing Central Park Phase 2 Group Il 100% 380,256,067 March 2005 May 2007 Beijing Premium Real
IR ERABE —HE —4E “ZTREZf —ZTLEFIA Estate Limited
TREERHEREBRAR
Sand's Podium & Tower 100% 117,559,000 March 2005 December 2007 Venetian Macau Limited
—ZTRE=f S BRI ARPIRIER AR
Civil Engineering Works
TARIR
Sha Tin Racecourse - Extension of 100% 28,973,000 June 2006 February 2007 The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Existing Underpass Contract ZTTRERA el o EEESS
DRESREN TREERTRE
Building Services Works
EFRAEIR
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 45% 414,600,000 * April 2005 July 2007 Hong Kong Science and
Main Works (Area A) “ZZRFNA “ETEELA Technology Parks Corporation
EARBEZE_H(TIZAR) EAMRERF
Pok Qi Hospital Redevelopment 100% 358,707,000 September 2003 March 2007 Hospital Authority
and Expansion at Yuen Long, N.T. ZTT=FNA ZTTLE=R BRERR

- ACMV, Electrical, Fire Services,
Pneumatic Tube Transportation
System and Steam Services Installation

MATHEEERER REETRE
-%H BE-BER BN AEERE
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Major Projects Completed During the Financial Year and Subsequent to Year End (oniinueq)

FOBRFEARFERBRTRZEETIR@

Group's Commencement Completion Client/Ultimate
Description interest Contract value date date employer
F£H BE/
IBA%R Frib s kR ] BIAH BIAH BHAEE
(HKS)
(%)
Building Services Works (continued)
BFREIR(A)
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 100% 259,605,000 June 2005 October 2007 Hong Kong Science and
Main Works (Area B) —ETRENA —ETHE+RA Technology Parks Corporation
- HVAC, Electrical and Fire EBREERT
Services Installation
BEREREZ _H(TE8E)
—ZEHRE BRRENRGiLE
Hong Kong Science Park Phase 2 100% 86,107,000 October 2005 September 2007 Hong Kong Science and
Main Works (Area C) “TTRETA —TE+ENA Technology Parks Corporation
- HVAC and Electrical Installation EENBEERLR
BRRBRZZH(TECE)
—EHRERERLE
* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies

BOABKEDH TEREKERF

# Sub-contract value being awarded by group companies or joint venture
SEKERRRAECERDZAAGHE

+ Undertaken by Hsin Chong — Hsin Chong Aster Joint Venture, a collaboration between the Group's construction arm and the electrical and mechanical

installation division

HIFE—MERMERERFARE - I RNEEREXBIPIRKE

~ Awaiting PC certificate
FBTIHR

A Estimated contract sum
EEtEHeRE

ZERTREGAFGAZAEDRE

EEEREERAT FR2007/2008 161



Major Properties
T2

Properties Held for Investment/Sale as at 31 March 2008
N—EBEN\FZA=+—HBZRE HEWE

Approximate

Percentage of

Description Use gross floor area Status Lease term Group's interest
LE =218 A% BAREAEER iR FH FEBFGER
(square feet) Bt
(FER)
No. 3 Lockhart Road Office 77,000 Rental Short 100%
Wan Chai, Hong Kong Bl HE R
BEBEFHRREIN
Hsin Chong Center Office 107,000 Head Office Medium 100%
107-109 Wai Yip Street, & Pt =p:t
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
FERL
FENEBREZE0721095
Carparks in Lung Mun Oasis Carpark 257 carparks For Sale Medium 100%
43 Lung Mun Road, Bf7 2571 e A
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEPIE B
BB AEPIREFI 435
Guangzhou Wen Chang Pavilion Residential 18,106 For Sale Long 42%
No. 235-267 Wen Chang Road North, = (unsold area) e EH
Li Wan District, Guangzhou City, PRC (REEEE)
BN E R
hEEMNTHER Shops 13,416 For Sale Medium 42%
X E3bE235—2675% [k HE FH
Carpark 61 units For Sale Medium 2%
B 61{E=E AL HE R
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Formula of Financial Ratios

SYp G n e A R RN

Operating margin (excluding financial Operating profit — Financial and securities income
and securities income) = A N — BT R H I
Fa=p e 1o SV Revenue
(T BEMBREHFBAN) Wz
Operating profit after finance costs
Pretax margin = R EE P AR 2 58 m
FREATERRFE Revenue
Wz
Profit after income tax — Share of profits less losses of
Net margin (excluding jointly controlled jointly controlled entities and associated companies
entities and associated companies) = Fr{SHi 1 m 7 — FE(L 2RI ) B 88 R Bt 5 2 s A s 18
FEERAE Revenue
(T EIEHRIESIE S RER) e
Profit before income tax + Interest expenses
Interest coverage ratio = PSR AR R+ AL S F X
FEEEX Interest expenses + Capitalised interest
FEAZ+EER L ZFE
Total debt
Debt to capitalisation ratio = BEE
BEHEARLE Total debt + Deferred income tax + Minority interests +

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

BABHRTEREH+ D BRRERE+ ARG E ARIGEAR R

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

Net assets value per share = ARAEREE ANEIEER KRG
FREERE Number of shares in issue at balance sheet date
REE BB BT ZI’RE
Capital expenditures Cash flow on capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment
to depreciation ratio = BARRZ W%k  HERBECHERE
BARMAEITELX Depreciation
e
Cash flow from operations ™
Capital expenditures coverage ratio = KEEB BB RED
BARYBELLE Cash flow on capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment

BARNZME  WBENREBZRERE

Depreciation

Depreciation to cash flow ratio = e
WEHRSRELX Cash flow from operations ™
KEEBHERED
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Return on average equity = NERESEE AESET
IR R A R B R Average capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company

FHAREIEEHEABIEEARARF#E

Profit before income tax + Interest expenses
Return on total capital and borrowings = FriSBianaT + 28X
BN B A R O 3R R Total debt + Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the Company +
Minority interests

BEE + ARRERIFE ARGERRAEE + DB ER

Total debt
Total debt to cash flow ratio = waE
waEHReRELEX Cash flow from operations "
KEEBZRERED
(1) Cash flow from operations exclude the movement of financial assets at fair (1) i‘“A%%Zﬁ%mLE*@%iﬁﬁiﬁﬁt)\iﬁiﬂEJZE‘E’TEZEU%;Q
value through profit or loss and property under development for sale together ERHHERRPYE SO REREENEFEHEENR
with the proceeds received from sale of stocks of residential properties in order IAEREME RN R EREBEH R REBFN
to reflect a more accurate position of cash flow from contracting and rental
operations.
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7 December 2007
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4 July 2008

20 August 2008
27 August 2008
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Principal Banker
FEERET

Reference Banks
and Financial
Institutions

ERBITRUBHEE

Registered Office
M EE

Principal Place
of Business

IENRER

Principal Share
Registrars and
Transfer Office

FERDBFERE

Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrars
and Transfer Office

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

BELSELRITERAR]

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

BITIRIT(BR)BRAA

BNP Paribas

EBERRERTT

Hang Seng Bank Limited

BEARITARAA

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PEIRTT(HE) AR AR

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

BERITIRHOBRAA]

HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA

ESRARITORL)BRAR

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton, HM11
Bermuda

Hsin Chong Center
107-109 Wai Yip Street
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2579 8238
BANESE
{BEA7107-1095%
HERDL

E:E ¢ (852) 2579 8238
Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

EARMPBE 183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BRDE BEBPRBLBLARAT
BB ERRER1835
SR LA6HE
Stock Code 00404
R 5H5
Board Lot 2,000 shares
BEEE{ 2,000
Share Price Year High ~ HK$3.61
IR1E 2555 AK361T
Year Low HK$1.01
2FHE BB
Website http://www.hsinchong.com
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BREBH FH : info@hcg.com.hk
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